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'irm, 310 West College Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 
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iorth Tampa Street, Suite 2450, Tampa, Florida 

3602, appearing on behalf of Florida Industrial 

lower Users Group. 

ROB VANDIVER, ESQUIRE, Office of Public 

lounsel, c/o The Florida Legislature, 111 W. Madison 

;t., Room 812, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400, 

.ppearing on behalf of the Office of Public Counsel. 

MICHAEL B. TWOMEY, ESQUIRE, P. 0 .  Box 

,256, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-5256, appearing on 

behalf of Claypool, Fisher, Page, Wilson, Strohm, 

,issabet, Wise, Diaz and Will. 

COCHRAN KEATING, ESQUIRE, FPSC General Counsel's 

Iffice, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 

2399-0850, appearing on behalf of Commission Staff. 
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EXHIBITS 

ID. 

Three-page document prepared by staff 107 

(Late-filed) Dollars per ton 1998 and 115 
1999 rail shipment to Gannon and 
waterborne shipments to Gannon 

(Confidential) 251 

(Late-filed) Employee performance goals 258 
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S T I P U L A T I O N  

IT IS STIPULATED that this deposition was 

aken pursuant to notice in accordance with the 

ipplicable Florida Rules of Civil Procedure; that 

,bjections, except as to the form of the question, 

Ire reserved until hearing in this cause; and that 

.eading and signing was not waived. 

IT IS ALSO STIPULATED that any off-the-record. 

conversations are with the consent of the deponent. 
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

MR. KEATING: Let's go back on. Before the break 

,taff handed out three single-page documents that it has 

'reated. If I could go ahead and have those marked as 

leposition Exhibit 4 .  

(Deposition Exhibit 4 marked for identification.) 

1Y MR. KEATING: 

Q Have you had the opportunity to look through those 

Locument s ? 

A I have. 

Q If you could turn to the document - -  there are two 

Locuments that have language in the last paragraph that's 

itricken through. 

A Yes. 

Q If you could turn to the one that has the longer of 

.he two paragraphs? 

A Okay. 

Q Would Tampa Electric consider a proposal or any 

rariation of a proposal similar to what is stated in this 

Locument prior to signing its contract with TECO Transport for 

!004 through 2 0 0 8 ?  

A I am just refreshing, reading through this 

received a proposal that was similar to this. 

Q Who did you receive the proposal from? 

A csx. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Why was that proposal rejected? 

A The costs, we determined that the costs associated 

rith the CSX proposal were higher than the costs derived from 

he combination of Mr. Dibner's models results and the RFP 

.esults. At a minimum they were higher, and then at the point 

It which you continued to add in additional costs, such as, 

.ike I say in my testimony, trucking costs to get to the 

-ailhead and then any additional capital infrastructure costs, 

.t is much, much higher. In fact, I have an exhibit to my 

lirect testimony that outlines exactly why that option would be 

lore expensive. 

Q If the Commission were to approve a proposal - -  if 

.he Commission were to approve this proposal as part of a 

:esolution of this docket, how would Tampa Electric respond 

irom an operations perspective to minimize the impact on its 

:inancia1 condition? . .  

A I don't understand. How would we respond from an 

)perational perspective to minimize our financial condition? I 

lon't understand your question. 

Q If the Commission were to approve this proposal as a 

resolution of this docket, how would Tampa Electric respond 

irom an operational perspective in terms of whether it would, 

)erhaps, for lack of a better phrase, eat any additional costs 

iroposed by the CSX deal, to the extent there are any, or take 

rail as the option? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A I don't - -  first of all, I'm not sure why the 

!ommission would approve such a proposal, given the fact that 

iy testimony outlines, and we prove in all of our exhibits that 

.he CSX proposal was not the least cost alternative for Tampa 

:lectric. 

Secondly, under the scenario, we could be - -  we could 

Lave to assume potentially, you know, dead freight penalties 

Lnd - -  are you asking - -  I think you are asking me would we eat 

:he difference? Why would we eat the difference when we 

lctually have a cheaper alternative with our TECO Transport 

lffiliate. That just wouldn't make sense. It wouldn't be in 

:he best interest of the ratepayers to do that. 

Q Let me have you look at the second of those three 

locuments. And I'm looking at the second one that has language 

stricken through at the bottom of the paragraph. Have you had 

I chance to look through that document? 

A I have briefly. 

Q Did Tampa Electric consider this proposal or any 

similar proposal prior to signing its contracts with TECO 

:ransport? 

A This particular proposal as written here? 

Q Yes. 

A We didn't get a proposal from an unaffiliated ocean 

)arge company to deliver offshore coal. We have received 

potes, as I mentioned, in December of this year to deliver 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Iffshore coal which were not competitive to domestic sources. 

Q Can you identify any drawbacks to this scenario, this 

lroposal from Tampa Electric's perspective? 

A Yes. Just like I said, we have received quotes for 

lelivery of offshore coal both directly into Big Bend, as well 

.s into the Port of Tampa, and neither of those are the most 

'ost-effective approach for offshore coal. The other thing 

hat is not assumed in here is the quantities that you would be 

.equired to burn, and/or take under this delivery scenario. 

.nd as I have noted in the test-burn information notes, the 

,esults actually point out that we can burn a very limited 

.mount of foreign coal at our generating facilities. So I 

hink there is both financial impacts to the ratepayers as well 

.s operational concerns. 

Q If you could look at the third of those three 

.ocuments. Have you reviewed that document? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you believe that that proposal as stated in the 

.ocument would be consistent with Commission Order 20298? 

A No, I do not, because as our expert, Mr. Dibner, and 

believe Mr. Murre11 both testified, there are actually 

iarkets for all three segments of the waterborne and there are 

ompetitors that compete with all of those businesses, 

ncluding the railroad. So this would not be consistent with 

hat. 
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Q Do you have any opinion regarding whether TECO 

'ransport's cost to provide ocean barge service to Tampa 

llectric is greater than the market rate set forth in 

Ir. Dibner's testimony or less than that rate? 

A I don't have knowledge as to their cost structure. 

Q Let me go back to Order Number 20298. I believe that 

s attached in its entirety to your direct testimony? 

A Yes. 

Q I want to turn to the paragraph that we were 

.iscussing earlier, and that is at Page 13 - -  I'm sorry, Page 

2 of the order. It's Page 13 of 25 of Document Number 1 in 

'our Exhibit JTW-1. 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And I am referring to the fourth full 

Naragraph in the page. It starts there is another reason for 

witching. 

A Okay. 

Q The order states there that there is another reason 

or switching to a market pricing system that was alluded to in 

'ECO's statement that the current system, no matter how 

mutstanding the results, there are lingering suspicions that it 

esulted in higher cost. What is your understanding of what 

he current system was at the time that this order was issued? 

A Again, I wasn't in the department. I wasn't even 

,orking for Tampa Electric at the time. It was a cost-plus 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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irrangement. How it was allocated and all of those different 

Iarameters, I'm not aware of. 

Q Moving down a couple of sentences, would you agree 

:hat the order indicates that nonaffiliated contracts typically 

result in competitive bidding systems in which the contract is 

iwarded to the qualified bidder submitting the lowest bid? 

A That is what this says. 

Q At the time that this order was issued, isn't it 

:orrect that the Commission had been engaged in cost of service 

review for those contracts? 

A I believe that is correct. 

Q Would you agree that it is at least a possible 

interpretation of that order that the purpose of the excerpt of 

:he Commission order, this particular paragraph that you 

referred to in your rebuttal testimony, is to show that it is 

icceptable to rely on negotiations between affiliates in 

setting price as long as cost of service regulation is in 

Eorce, but when a market pricing system is used that 

:ompetitive bidding is a better approach? 

A I don't know where it says that negotiation is used 

in a cost of service, but I do agree with your second part of 

:hat statement where market pricing is concerned competitive 

)idding is a better alternative. I don't see where it says the 

Iirst part of your question. - I  

Q Under the 2003 RFP process, were issuance of the RFP 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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m d  a receipt of the bids in response to the RFP distinct 

stages from the negotiation stage? 

A Yes. 

Q Did the stipulation that was approved by the 

:ommission in that order explicitly say that affiliates - -  

:xcuse me, affiliates to Tampa Electric were not expected to 

lid or did it simply give Tampa Electric the flexibility to 

iegotiate specific contract format and pricing indices? 

A Read your question again, I'm sorry. 

Q Did the stipulation approved by the Commission in 

Irder 2 0 2 9 8  explicitly say that affiliates to Tampa Electric 

vere not expected to bid or did it simply give Tampa Electric 

flexibility to negotiate specific contract format and pricing 

indices? 

A It offered bidding as an alternative to determine 

yhat market pricing was, and it also provided the flexibility 

:o negotiate contracts, as well. 

Q I just have a couple more questions. I'm going to 

l u l l  out a document here. I'm going to hand you a document 

:hat was shown to Mr. Dibner yesterday. It is a response to 

gtaff's second set of interrogatories, Number 43, from the 2 0 0 2  

fuel docket. And I would like you to look at the column 2001 

lollars per ton for Gannon rail and Gannon waterborne. 

MR. BEASLEY: This is from the 2 0 0 2  docket? 

MR. KEATING: Yes. And the response provides 2001 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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lollars per ton. 

IY MR. KEATING: 

Q Based on that document, would you agree that the rail 

'ate for shipments of coal to Gannon was lower for that year 

han the waterborne transportation rate for shipments of coal 

o Gannon? 

A It appears that it was. 

Q Do you know if there are any adjustments that would 

eed to be made to those numbers to ensure that that was a fair 

omparison? 

A I do not know if there are any adjustments to be 

lade. I think I can shed some light on why the difference 

xisted. The rail contract that serviced the small number of 

ons that are shown in the left-hand column was a spot contract 

hat was negotiated after our final agreement, I believe, ended 

n 1999 with CSX. And so it really is not comparable to the 

,aterborne contract, which is a long-term agreement for a lot 

lore tons. 

Q Did that amount, the 2001 dollars per ton for Gannon 

ail, is that representative of an entirely spot contract rate? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know if for 1998 and 1999 the rates for 

hipment of coal by rail to Gannon would have been higher or 

ower than the rate for shipments of coal by water to Gannon? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 
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Q Is that something that you could provide in a 

Late-filed exhibit? 

A Yes. 

Q It would be the dollars per ton 1998 and 1999 rail 

ghipments to Gannon and waterborne shipments to Gannon. And 

:odd I add the year 2000 to that request? 

A Sure. 

(Late-filed Deposition Exhibit 5 marked for 

identification.) 

MR. KEATING: Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. VANDIVER: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Wehle. 

A Good afternoon. 

Q A s  you know, my name is Rob Vandiver, and I am with 

:he Office of Public Counsel. I have very, very few questions 

?or you today. 

A Okay. 

Q Earlier I believe you testified that there was a 

;hipper that had called Tampa Electric and complained that they 

qere getting calls from the staff. When was that call made? 

A By that particular carrier? 

Q Yes. 

A It was during the open RFP process. 

Q And who made that call? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A You know, I can't recall who it was, but it is 

'robably in that call log. 

Q That was my next question. It is in the call log. 

J1 right. I believe you said that as a shipper you would not 

iegotiate for backhaul, is that correct? I think you were 

tsked a question, and you said as a shipping client, as a 

;hipper, you would not negotiate. 

A That is correct. Right, because it is irrelevant to 

1 market rate. 

Q Okay. Doesn't that leave money on the table? 

A No. 

Q Why not? 

A Because, again, you don't even know if a backhaul 

iecessarily exists. If it does exist, if it is going to 

:ontinue. And you would have to make assumptions that even for 

:hat backhaul business if that person is actually making money 

)n it. You don't know that. 

Q Okay. So, it is your - -  

A It is none of my business what other business that 

;hipper or that carrier is actually doing on behalf of his or 

ier other customers. 

Q Okay. So you don't believe that it would obtain more 

ralue for your client to try to get the most value for that 

iollar out of that backhaul, knowing that it exists? 

A I believe that the market rates that we receive under 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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lr. Dibner's model are appropriate and backhaul was irrelevant 

.o include in this exercise. 

Q Could we go to Page 2 8  of your testimony, please. 

A The direct? 

Q The rebuttal, please. 

A Okay. 

Q Okay. And I want to talk about this 30 percent 

iigure for the test burn thing. And I would also like to talk 

.n conjunction with that about Staff Exhibit 1, I believe it 

ras. And I think that is at Bates stamp - -  I'm not sure 

Ixactly which one, but this is that Big Bend Colombian coal 

rpec 

Q 

A 

Q 

fica 

A 

:est burn final report. 

A Yes. 

Is your testimony here based on this report? 

Yes. 

Is it based on anything else? I am referring 

ly to your sentence there at Lines 22 through 2 . 
It is based primarily on this. It is also based on 

:he fact that I know that high ash fusion temperature coals do 

lot work in the boilers at Big Bend in vast quantities of them. 

:n other words, you can't put a lot in there without having 

)perational difficulties. 

Q Okay. The sentence that I am referring to says - -  it 

says recent test burns have shown that the maximum amount of 

;outh American coal that can be used in Big Bend boilers is 30 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Nercent, is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And this report doesn't say that, does it? 

A It says it is 30 percent in Big Bend Units 1 through 

and 60 percent in Big Bend 4. 

Q That's what I was getting at. So there is a 

lifferent percentage for Big Bend 4, is there not? 

A However, the Big Bend 4 already is under contract for 

ts own coal. 

Q Okay. Explain that to me. 

A Big Bend 4 is under contract for its own coal from a 

lomestic supplier of which it exclusively is used in that 

,articular unit. And that particular contract has the ability 

.o be extended for up to an additional ten years. 

Q What contract is that? 

A That is the Zeigler contract. 

Q Okay. So the - -  

A So there is not a lot of room to put another type of 

:oal in the Big Bend 4 boiler and that's why we reference just 

iig Bends 1 through 3, knowing that fact. 

Q Okay. And this report is generally favorable for the 

foreign coal, is it not? I mean, I am looking at Bates stamped 

! where it talks about the reduced O&M cost. I'm looking there 

.n the second paragraph under coal analysis parameters about 

:he chlorine levels? 
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A Okay. 

Q Would you agree with that? Do you see significantly 

reduce the risk associated with FGG chlorine levels? 

A Yes. Again, it is this particular coal. There are a 

rariety of coals from South American that may not yield 

mywhere near these results. 

Q Have you tested other South American coals, given the 

favorable report from this coal? 

A No. This study was just done recently, and so we 

lave not purchased any foreign coals because of the price 

rolatility of those coals. 

Q Okay. Do you plan more tests of South American 

:oals? 

A We wouldn't test South American coals until we knew 

:hat we could buy them cost-effectively and reliably. There is 

i lot of factors other than does it work in your boiler to 

zonsider. Price is one of them, reliability of supply is 

mother. And I don't know if you have been keeping up with the 

iolitical climate in South America, but strikes are very 

Zommon. The fact that transportation supply could be blown up 

routinely, which happens a lot in Colombia and Venezuela, which 

neans that you don't have a steady, reliable supply of coal. 

And, in fact, if you all remember, and I think I 

Irought this up in one of our fuel discussions, the ports in 

Ienezuela were shut down for quite some time due to political 
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.nrest. So for a prudent fuel buyer to go out and buy a vast 

:uantity of South American supply, knowing all these 

larameters, as well as the price volatility, would be 

:uestionable, I think. 

Q Do you monitor the buying habits of other Florida 

.tilities? 

A At times we will review their 423 data. 

Q Have you done that recently? 

A We have been pretty much focused on this case. 

Q Okay. But would it surprise you to learn that other 

'lorida utilities have significantly gone to foreign coal? 

A If their boiler designs allow them to do that. I 

Nelieve as well that if they were buying it right now they 

be paying through the nose for it. 

Q But you would agree with me that longer term 

,ontracts would yield lower prices if they had gotten in 

arlier? 

A If they had gotten in earlier, they might have more 

avorable pricing than current supply. 

Q Okay. Another thing, this report - -  and that is why 

had asked you if this report was the sole source for your 

upply. This report doesn't talk about minimums. It talks 

.bout - -  this report just talks about 30 percent. It doesn't 

alk about we can't do more than that. It talks about that 30 

sercent was a favorable mix, is that correct? 
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A No, I wouldn't say that. 

Q Could you direct me to where it says we can't do more 

han 30 percent? 

A It said under the slag tapping on the second page of 

.his, we did - -  or it might actually be the third page, we did 

lot expect or experience any slag tapping issues in Big Bend 1 

.hrough 3 because we deliberately held the Colombian coal 

-raction to no more than 30 percent. This effectively raised 

.he ash fusion temperatures only 100 degrees. They knew that 

lad they actually raised or included more than 3 0  percent, they 

mow that the ash fusion temperature would have raised even 

iigher than that, and it would have caused slagging problems. 

Q Right. But that is nowhere in this report, is it? I 

lean, there is no - -  

A But it is the knowledge of the combustion engineers 

:hat work at our station. They're not - -  they know what works 

tn their boilers. 

Q Okay. 

A Right. And it says the test burn confirmed, on the 

_ .  Iirst page, it could be consumed at up to 60 percent in Big 

3end 4 and up to 30 percent in Units 1 through 3 .  

Q Okay. And so those tests have been performed that 

fou all know that this is the maximum amount that can be burned 

in  - -  

A Of this particular type of fuel. 
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Q Okay. 

A They expected problems above those, so that is why 

hey kept them at those levels. 

Q Okay. You talked about CTL Trucking. When did you 

tart doing business with CTL Trucking? 

A We started doing business with them once we started 

aking deliveries of trucked coal to our Polk Power Station. 

n 1996, maybe. I think that is when we started taking our 

irst deliveries. 

Q You all signed a contract with them at that time? 

A Yes. 

Q You just renewed that contract, I think that is what 

rou said? 

A Yes. Yes. 

Q Okay. And so they are another transportation partner 

rith Tampa Electric? 

A They are one of our suppliers. 

Q Yeah. And when you all renewed that contract with 

.hat transportation partner, that did not include a right of 

.irst refusal. . .  

A No, but one of the reasons why we actually continued 

.o do business with them is because they had specially designed 

.rucks for our use that were not - -  were not used for any other 

;ervice of theirs with any other customer. 

Q Excuse me? 
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A Their bottom dump trucks, their tandem trailer trucks 

hat are actually used at our Polk Power Station. And because 

If that fact, we actually had designed our system to be able to 

.eceive those types of trailer trucks. 

Q The trucks that CTL uses are specifically designed 

or Tampa Electric? 

A Yes. 

Q Well, that would seem to be that they have invested 

ignificant capital equipment for Tampa Electric's service? 

A Yes. 

Q Wasn't that the exact same rationale that you all 

.ave used for the right of first refusal? 

A It is. However, we have actually modified our plant 

o be able to receive dump trucks, as well. So we opened up 

hat market to allow others to be able to participate in that 

iarket . 

Q But wouldn't the same rationale apply on the barge 

ide? I mean, that is the same right - -  I mean, that's the 

ame rationale that you used to - -  

A I wasn't a party to the original contract. I'm not 

ure why a right of first refusal was not negotiated at that 

ime . 

Q Do you understand that - -  

A Yes, I do. 

Q - -  the logic on one side would seemingly apply, 
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Iecause the specialized equipment on the barge side and on the 

:ruck side - -  

A I suppose you could say that the truckers should have 

actually pushed to have that in there. 

Q Right. And the corporate philosophy would seem to 

ipply with equal force from one to the other, wouldn't you 

agree? 

A Whose corporate philosophy? 

Q Tampa Electric's? 

A Why would I be the one pushing for a right of first 

refusal? It is usually the supplier that actually wants a 

right of first refusal for their capital investment. S o  they 

ihould be the one actually trying to get that to continue the 

msiness for their capital investment. 

Q And CTL is not an affiliated company? 

A No, they are not. 

Q Okay. All right, moving on. At Page 5, and a 

:hese, MS. Wehle, are in your rebuttal testimony. 

A Okay. 

Q Page 25, Line 22. Let's see, did you test the 

Jalidity of the Dibner report? 

A What do you mean by test the validity of it? 

Q Did you check any comparative prices? 

A Comparative to - -  

Q Did you do - -  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

of 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

125 

A - -  market to marketplace? 

Q Yes. Did you call any other suppliers? 

A The suppliers wouldn't share what their prices are. 

hat is  confidential information. 

Q So you did no market surveys where - -  

A Well, the RFP was the market survey. Mr. Dibner is 

he expert in that area. I'm not sure I would be qualified to 

ouble-check his work. 

Q Okay. So you didn't call any shippers or anything 

ike that? 

A NO. 

Q If we could go to Page 29, Line 8. Oh, I'm sorry, 

s .  Wehle, can we go back to Page 26? I have a note here. 

A Sure. 

Q On Page 26, there at Lines 11 and 12, how many days 

re you allowed to operate on scrub, do you know offhand? 

A It is minimal. Each unit has i t s  own specific number 

mf days, and at most it is 30 on an annual basis. 

Q Okay. 

A But they do decline according to the consent decree. 

just don't know the actual range that it does decline from 

here. 

Q So Big Bend 1 would have a set number of days, Big 

lend 2 would have a set number of days? 

A Right. And at most any of them have 30. 
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Q Thirty per year? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

A And, again, what I do know is 

the consent decree is enforced further. 

Q And would those 30 days per y 

we move forward in time? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

126 

that that changes as 

ar decline in time as 

A That is my understanding of the consent decree. 

Q I understand. So it is 30 this year, and it may be 

2 5  next year? 

A Right, but I just don't know that for a fact. 

Q I think we were at - -  let me see, Page 2 9 ,  Line 8, if 

we could go there, please. Let's see. Let's see. And there 

you state that results indicate that foreign coal delivered to 

Big Bend was not the lowest cost on a fully delivered cents per 

ton. Did you do a study on that? 

A Cents per million basis? 

Q Yes. 

A We evaluated that bid on a delivered cents per 

million basis. 

Q Is there a written study on that? 

A We have provided the results of that RFP in our 

numerous POD requests. 
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Q All right. If we could go to Page 55 ,  Line 2 1 ,  

lease. Do you know how much further it is from Tampa to 

acksonville by the water route? 

A Further than what? 

Q From the Texas Gulf Coast locations? 

A I don't know that total mileage, no. 

Q You would agree it is a lot further? 

A It is further. 

Q How did you get the petroleum coke quote? 

A I called that particular broker and asked him if he 

ould provide in a confidential document that quote. 

Q How did you know to call that broker? 

A Because we have done business with them in the past, 

nd I know that he from time to time will utilize TECO 

ransport, so I inquired as to whether he had a current 

rrangement with them. 

Q How did you know that? 

A I called him and asked him. 

Q How did you happen to have that information? 

MR. BEASLEY: Which information? 

A I called the broker and asked him if he had a current 

rrangement with TECO Transport. 

Q So you have done business with the broker in the 

last? 

A Yes. 
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Q Okay. Did you contact anyone else? 

A No. 

Q Did you contact TECO Transport? 

A No. 

Q Okay. Did you discuss this rate with Mr. Dibner? 

A I don't believe so. I don't recall discussing it 

vith him. 

Q Did you make any notes of your conversation with the 

iroker? 

A No, it was a very short telephone call. 

Q Okay. Why did he request confidentiality for that 

iocument? 

A This is a competitive rate, as all rates that we deal 

iith are, that should remain confidential, and he didn't want 

tt to be revealed to the marketplace. 

Q And is it your experience that the confidential rates 

ire more competitive? 

A No. That confidential rates are more competitive? 

io, not necessarily. 

Q Okay. And did he give a reason why he wanted it to 

ie confidential? 

A Because he probably maintains a confidentiality 

igreement with TECO Transport to not reveal those rates. 

MR. VANDIVER: That's all the questions I have. 

?hank you. 
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(Off the record.) 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

IY MR. PERRY: 

Q Good afternoon, MS. Wehle. My name is Timothy Perry. 

represent the Florida Industrial Power Users Group. I've got 

I few questions for you today. 

A Okay. 

Q We are going to start by looking at your direct 

.estimony, so if you would get that in front of you and turn to 

'age 13, please. 

MR. TWOMEY: This is Mike. Could you guys move the 

:elephone louder? 

MR. PERRY: I'll speak up. 

MR. TWOMEY: That's a little better, but you're 

lrifting away, as well. 

MR. PERRY: Okay. I'll speak up. 

1Y MR. PERRY: 

Q On Page 13, Line 13, you characterize the RFP as an 

.nformation gathering tool. Okay. Let me back up. 

On Page 13, Line 12, you say that Tampa Electric is 

lot required to issue an RFP. What was the purpose of doing so 

in this case, of you issuing the RFP? 

A I think as I state further in my testimony, that we 

ised it as a means to gather market price data. 

Q Was there any other outside factors that influenced 
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'ou such as staff recommendations or anything like that? 

A In our conversations earlier in the year, staff had 

leen very interested to understand what we were going to be 

loing and asking - -  and suggesting that an RFP would be 

lppropriate. 

Q And was that considered when you made the decision to 

ssue the RFP? 

A Sure. 

Q On Line 13, like you said, you characterized the RFP 

.s an information gathering tool. What do you mean by that? 

A In light of the fact that TECO Transport had a right 

if first refusal, we wanted to determine what market prices 

rere in order to offer those to our affiliate in the meet or 

ieat scenario. 

Q Did you think that in the end, though, the contract 

rould be awarded to anyone other than TECO Transport? 

A Again, as I answered earlier, I didn't have 

:xpectations one way or the other. 

Q Page 14. On Lines 13 to 14, you said that the RFP 

lathered relevant - -  or helped you obtain relevant and timely 

raterborne transportation market data. Can you explain what 

'ou mean by that? 

A What that - -  what I state there is that we have 

Lecided to issue an RFP as part of our good faith efforts to 

pbtain the most relevant and timely market data available. In 
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ither words, that is a means of testing the market. That was 

:he best means at which we felt we could actually do that. 

Q Okay. And when did 

Transport expire? 

A December 31, 2003. 

Q Why did TECO wait u 

the prior contract with TECO 

til June to issue the RFP if the 

>ontract was to expire in December? 

A I believe I covered that some in both my direct and 

rebuttal testimony, but we were, you know, involved in a lot of 

iifferent activities, deciding how the consent decree was going 

to impact us and our ability to stay on coal. We were very 

involved at that point in all of our Gannon Station shutdown 

sctivities, and the potential for the significant amount of 

lead freight dollars with TECO Transport, and so - -  

Q When did the - -  excuse me. 

A So all of those factors taken into consideration. 

And the other thing we were determining was whether we shou 

just extend the contract or, you know, what would be the terms 

sf the RFP, especially in light of the consent decree and so 

forth. 

Q When did the planning process for the contract 

renewal start to take place? 

A The planning process for the RFP? 

Q Yes, for the RFP, or for obtaining the waterborne 

transportation services for once the contract expired? 
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A I believe in the June time frame, for the most part 

Q Okay. Maybe you misunderstood my question. 

A Okay. 

Q The RFP was issued in June. 

A Yes. 

Q When did you begin to discu s ?  

A In the spring time we had - -  management had these 

ypes of discussions. 

Q March, April, somewhere around there you just - -  

A Yeah, March, April, May, probably ongoing discussions 

n light of how I just responded. 

Q Can you turn to Page 16, please? Turn to Page 2 2 .  

in Line 8, you say that the right of first refusal encourages 

he vendor to provide these highly capital intensive 

ransportation services while protecting the buyer, Tampa 

Ilectric, as well as its ratepayers through a periodic 

,eassessment of the competitive market prices for these 

,ervices. Can you plain how it protects the ratepayer? 

A It requires that incumbent supplier to meet or beat 

,he lowest price offered, let’s say from an RFP mechanism. And 

,o the ratepayer is never harmed. In some cases if the 

ncumbent vendor decides to actually beat the price, they can 

:ven benefit further. 

Q In your experience, how often has that happened where 

,ather than meeting the price they beat the price? 
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A In my experience they have not beaten the price. 

hey typically meet the price. 

Q Do you know of any other - -  are you aware of any 

Ither outside instance where the entity with the right of first 

efusal has beaten the price rather than met it? 

A You know, it is hard for me to say for other entities 

lecause those are typically confidential type arrangements. 

Q Okay. 

A But, again, in those instances the ratepayer is no 

iorse off than they would have been dealing with another 

iupplier as far as being the lowest bidder in that RFP. 

Q You also say that it protects the buyer. How does it 

)rotect the buyer? 

A It encourages the continued service and the continued 

.nvestment, if you will, of that supplier. 

Q Does the buyer usually raise the right of first 

.efusal in the contract negotiation? 

A Typically, the supplier is the one who wants the 

-ight of first refusal, because they are the ones who are 

laking that capital investment. 

Q Do you know who raised the right of first refusal for 

:his contract? 

A That would have probably gone way back to other 

zontracts, you know, that we have had with TECO Transport, and 

:he initial outlay and the continued outlay of capital for our 
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ervices. 

Q Was the right of first refusal renegotiated in this 

o around? 

A It was. ~t was renegotiated. 

'ransport that raised it. 

Q Were you involved in the nego 

I'm sure it was TECO 

iations? 

A I was involved in the negotiations, but not every 

,egotiation session was I involved in. 

Q Do you remember what the negotiations revolved 

round, to the extent that you were involved in the 

.egotiations for the right of first refusal? 

A I don't remember that coming up in those sessions 

hat I actually sat in, so I don't know that I can answer that 

[uestion. 

Q What other people were involved on the part of Tampa 

:lectric? 

A My boss at the time, Mr. Christmas. 

Q In your opinion, does a right of first refusal or 

Loes an RFP result in the lowest price or negotiations? 

A Both of those can end up - -  

Q In your opinion, is there a combination that, in your 

:xperience, has resulted in the lowest price, a combination of 

.hose three that I identified, the right of first refusal, RFP, 

ind negotiation? 

A I have not been involved in a negotiated contract, 
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lecause every single contract that I have been involved with 

ias been part of some kind of RFP process. So it would have to 

le - -  I would have to answer based on the other two. And I 

ielieve both of those can yield the lowest cost result. 

Q Earlier you characterized the RFP as an information 

lathering tool? 

A Uh- huh. 

Q Do you think that it would yield beneficial 

.nformation if TECO Transport were to have to submit a bid in 

'esponse to the RFP, regardless of whether or not it also had 

.he right of first refusal? 

A If they were required to bid? 

Q Yes. 

A I'm not sure that it would have yielded any different 

.esults, or if they know that they have the last look, so to 

!peak, I'm not sure how they would have responded if they were 

.equired to bid. 

Q But would it have been informative had they been 

,equired to bid? 

A It possibly could have shown us what they were 

letermining what they felt the market was at that point. But 

hey still have the opportunity to meet or beat, so it is 

.eally not - -  it is sort of a moot point. 

Q Except if they were to bid a lower price than 

'veryone else? 
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A And if I were in TECO Transport's shoes, I'm not sure 

hat - -  why would you do that? I question that. 

Q Do you think that TECO Transport generally knows what 

Ither people charge for the same transportation services? 

A They are in that business, I would think that they 

rould know what the marketplace would charge. 

Q Okay. 

A As would any supplier who would be facing the same 

ype of scenario that you are talking about. 

Q So do you think that they would inflate their bid? 

A I'm not saying whether they would or wouldn't, 

lecause they weren't required to bid in this. I am just 

ooking at it from a business person's perspective of if I were 

,equired to bid my services, yet I knew I still had a last look 

t what the lowest supplier was, I'm not sure I would put out a 

.eally spectacular offer and, quote, unquote, left money on the 

able. 

Q On Page 23, Lines 7 and 8 ,  you say that the rail bids 

rere nonconforming. What do you mean by that? 

A We had a water transportation RFP. 

Q In other words, you only asked for water carriers? 

A Right. 

Q And since they were a rail carrier, it didn't - -  

A Right. 

Q Okay. Did you send an RFP to the railroad? 
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A Once we received their request, we did. 

Q Was there a reason why you didn't send it to them 

.nit ial ly? 

A It was a water transportation bid, and I didn't think 

.hat they could supply water transportation. 

Q Okay. Do you know when the contract was awarded, 

rhat date? 

A I think we had this discussion earlier. I think in 

.ate September we offered the prices to TECO Transport to meet 

lr beat, and then on October 6th the contract was finalized. 

lo it was - -  

Q Somewhere in between? 

A - -  somewhere in between that, I guess. If you mean 

[warded, we finally inked the contract on October 6th. 

Q How long did it take TECO Transport to respond to the 

.etter that was sent, as I understand it? 

A It was almost immediately that they responded and we 

)egan negotiations, because, again, it was a very short window 

)f time. 

Q Who did TECO Transport contact when they decided to 

lccept the rates that were proposed? 

A I believe it was my boss, Mr. Christmas. 

Q And just you and Mr. Christmas participated in the 

tegotiat ions? 

A Myself, Karen Bramley at times participated, I 
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larticipated at times, and so did Mr. Christmas. 

Q Did you meet in person or discuss over the telephone, 

iy e-mail, what was - -  

A We met in person. 

Q And how many meetings were there? 

A Golly, at least two, maybe three. 

Q Did you at any time attempt to negotiate lower rates 

.han the ones that you proposed to them? 

A That was not the arrangement. The arrangement was to 

ieet or beat. 

Q Let me have you look at your rebuttal testimony. On 

'age 3 ,  towards the bottom, you say that the intervenors have 

.gnored the existing policies by criticizing the content of 

:ampa Electric's June 27, 2003 RFP. I think by 

)olicies you are referring to Order 20298? 

A Yes. 

Q Would you agree that since TECO took 

existing 

t - -  made the 

iecision to issue an RFP, that it should also take on the 

responsibility of making it the best possible RFP to solicit 

:he most responses? 

A Yes. We feel like we did that. 

Q Is it your opinion that you don't have to issue an 

CFP according to the Commission's policies? 

A Yes. I think we have stated that several times. 

Q Given your opinion, do you think that Tampa 
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Slectric's decision to issue the RFP is beyond criticism by 

tntervenors in this case? 

A Beyond criticism. I don't understand your question. 

Q Beyond criticism in that you didn't have to do it in 

:he first place, but you decided to do so anyways? 

A I believe that knowing what I know about the RFP and 

:nowing about what Tampa Electric requires for our operations, 

[ believe that - -  and knowing what I know about what is 

required under the order, I don't see how folks can necessarily 

zriticize what we did. It was a good faith effort to test the 

narket. 

Q Do you understand that one of the issues that was 

leferred from the prior case, the 2003 fuel adjustment case, 

;pecifically related to the RFP? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know who bears the burden of proof in this 

zase for approval of the fuel adjustment charges? 

A Tampa Electric. 

Q Okay. Let me have you turn to Page 5, please? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q On Line 22 you mention the retroactive application of 

I new and yet undefined policy. And I believe that this 

:estimony relates to the benchmark, the issue of the benchmark 

in this case? 

A Can I just read this section, please? 
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Q Sure. 

A I'm ready. 

Q Do you know when the issue regarding the benchmark in 

his case was first identified? 

A I believe in last year's fuel docket. 

Q Do you know if that was an issue before Tampa 

:lectric entered into the contract with TECO Transport? 

A Yes. 

Q Let me have you look at Page 8 ,  Line 18. You state 

.hat it has been conservatively estimated that the 

.ransportation system has saved Tampa Electric's customers over 

; 5 0 0  million in cost alone during the years that it has been in 

)peration. Over what span is that $ 5 0 0  million? 

A Since the inception of the benchmark, which was 1988, 

ind the system I am referring to has been in existence since 

:he 1950s. So this is - -  the $500 million is just since we 

lave been calculating and keeping track, since the benchmark 

nechanism was put in place. 

Q And who made this conservative estimate? 

A It is something that Tampa Electric files and 

:alculates every year and reports to the Commission. 

Q How is the calculation performed? 

A The benchmark methodology, the calculation? It is a 

:umulative savings, if you will, which recognizes the 

lifference between our current rate and the actual benchmark 
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alculation year after year. 

Q Are the past savings an issue in this case? 

A I don't believe they are. I don't know that they 

ave been raised by anyone. We're just pointing out the fact 

hat there have been savings over the years by using our 

ransportation supplier. 

Q Isn't what a carrier can do in the future also 

elevant to the Commission's decision with regards to the price 

f providing a service? 

A It should be something that they should consider. 

owever, I am a believer in the fact that past performance can 

redict future performance, and I believe that given the 

fficiencies that we have developed over time, that these 

avings will continue into the future. 

Q Okay. 

A There is nothing to suggest otherwise. 

Q Is your title the Director of Wholesale Mar 

'uels? 

A Yes. 

ig and 

Q DO your duties include the bidding and negotiating of 

Ither procurement contracts? 

A Yes. 

Q What kinds of other contracts do you deal with? 

A All other. Solid fuel, petroleum coke, oil 

:ontracts, trucking contracts related to - -  as well as on the 
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tholesale marketing side would be negotiating wholesale power 

rrangements. 

Q In your opinion, do you generally get the best price 

or those contracts when you engage in an RFP process? 

A That has been our practice, and I would say it has 

rorked well over the years. Do I know that I get the absolute 

owest price that is out there? No one will ever know that for 

lure. But I believe that the RFP mechanism is one of the best 

rays to test the marketplace. 

Q That is the method that you prefer? 

A Yes. 

Q Or that Tampa Electric prefers? 

A Yes. And I believe that is a very common methodology 

[sed by other procurement agents in the industry. 

Q On the last line of Page 10, which is Line 2 5 ,  

:ontinuing to Page 11, Line 2 2 ,  there is a question to you that 

itates: Under the Commission's Order Number 2 0 2 9 8 ,  is Tampa 

:lectric obligated to negotiate with its affiliate at 

rrm's-length? What is your opinion? Is it your opinion that 

you have an obligation to negotiate at arm's-length? 

A The order states that we are free to negotiate with 

)ur affiliate in any manner we deem fair and reasonable. We 

Lave negotiated with our supplier in an arm's-length fashion, 

ust like I would with any supplier. 

Q So you think that the fair and reasonable thing to do 
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s to negotiate at arm's-length? 

A I do. 

Q On Page 11, Lines 17 and 18, you say that Tampa 

:lectric went well beyond the requirements of the Commission's 

bolicies by conducting the RFP and strictly followed these 

iolicies in arriving at a contract price. To what policies 

ipecifically are you referring to? 

A The policies under which we guide ourselves under an 

!FP process, our own internal policies. 

Q Those are your internal policies? 

A Uh-huh. And I believe - -  strike that. 

Q Are those policies formed from Commission orders? 

A Or they foreign from them? 

Q Formed? 

A Oh. I believe that the Commission has provided 

pidance on procurement activities and those are in line with 

hose gu dance documents. 

Q And are they in part guided by Tampa Electric's duty 

.o its shareholders, as well? 

A They are guided by good business practices, which 

lctually benefit all that we deal with, shareholders, 

.atepayers. 

Q In your opinion is there any other company that can 

ieet Tampa Electric's transportation needs, other than TECO 

'ransport? 
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A I believe that there are companies that can provide 

ater transportation service, maybe not on the complete 

ourney. I believe that there are those companies out there, 

nd I believe that the railroad could potentially provide 

ransportation services to Tampa Electric Company. 

Q Have they done so in the past? 

A The railroad has, yes. 

Q On Page 14, Lines 4 to 7, you identify several 

,ecently negotiated contracts that contain right of first 

.efusal clauses. Do you know if those contracts were 

legotiated with affiliates of those utilities or companies? 

A Again, I have provided those documents as part of my 

'OD request, but I don't recall that they were. I recall that 

or the most part they were either transportation companies or 

)ther coal companies that were not affiliated with these 

)rganizations. 

Q Do you know what the length of the relationship 

)etween the organizations were? 

A I don't know. Again, the reason why I chose to put 

.his in was to demonstrate that right of first refusal clauses 

Lre common in the coal and coal transportation industry. 

Q And you don't purport to know anything else other 

.han that? 

A I know that they exist. I don't know all the 

)arameters or the terms of each of those arrangements. 
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Q On Page 14 in the first full Q and A there, it says 

:hat the bid prices were not unduly impacted by external 

:ircumstances. DO you know if they were impacted at all by any 

?xternal circumstances? 

A The Q and A that starts on Line 9 ?  

Q Yes, ma'am. 

A I can't say for sure if they were or were not. I 

ion't know the answer to that. 

Q Have you compared the provisions of the recent RFP 

vith the RFP that was issued, I guess, back in ' 9 8  for the last 

:ontract? 

A I have that as an exhibit to my testimony. 

Q Okay. On Page 16, Line 3, you discuss Tampa 

Clectric's preference for the payment schedule requirement, is 

:hat correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Were bidders told how the preference would be 

veighted when evaluating the RFP? 

A No, they were not. 

Q Was there any way for them to tell the importance of 

:his preference? 

A No, there was not. However, they were free to offer 

in alternative if they did not like what was considered in the 

?FP. 

Q In your testimony, you cite to the fact that one of 
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hlf's contracts, Gulf Power's contract contains a right of 

:irst refusal clause. . ,  

A Yes. 

Q Do you know of any other Florida utilities that have 

:ight of first refusal clauses in their contracts? 

A That is confidential data. I wouldn't be privy to 

:hat. 

Q You also said earlier that you didn't ask the 

railroad to make a proposal. Was this because you weren't 

tnterested in a proposal from the railroad? 

A No, it was because it was a waterborne transportation 

CFP. And, again, I didn't think that the railroad had the 

ibility to respond to a waterborne bid proposal. 

Q In response to some earlier questioning you said that 

Ir. Hugh Smith was your prior boss? 

A Yes. 

Q And that he was involved with the RFP process until 

ibout September? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know if Mr. Smith's separation from Tampa 

Zlectric was voluntary or involuntary? 

A I believe it was involuntary. 

Q Do you know if his separation was related at all to 

:he RFP process? 

A I do not think it was at all related to the RFP 
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irocess. 

Q In response to some earlier questioning, I believe 

hat you said that the RFP, the number of RFP responses may 

lave been reduced because of the level of scrutiny that the 

'ase was receiving? 

A That is my opinion. 

Q Why do you think that the scrutiny would scare off 

iidders ? 

A Because I think that bidders wouldn't want their 

,onfidential numbers to be potentially revealed in a public 

Iroceeding. Whether or not that might have happened or not, it 

s their perception of it, and so it is very unusual to be 

'ontacted by a governmental agency in another state encouraging 

leople to bid and inquiring about it. And so I think that they 

rere just leery of preparing. They didn't know where this 

fould all end up or go. 

Q Do you have any reason to believe that those bidders 

'ere contacted based on confidential information? 

A What kind of confidential information? 

Q In other words, you cited that it was unusual for the 

lidders to be contacted by a public official? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q And you also said that the companies, in your 

pinion, were leery to bid because of public disclosure of 

onfidential information? 
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A Uh-huh. 

Q Do you think that the public official used 

onfidential information to contact the bidders? 

A No. I believe they contacted them - -  what I 

nderstand to be the case is they were contacted and encouraged 

o bid and asked a lot of questions about the bid process. And 

don't believe there was any confidential information shared, 

just believe that there was a general inquiry made and people 

idn't want any part of it. 

Q Did all the bidders that you sent an RFP to respond 

o you, respond to Tampa Electric in the form of a denial 

etter or a bid? 

A I don't remember that all of them did. We did 

eceive denial letters, though, saying that they weren't 

nterested in bidding or could not bid at this time, which 

s - -  it is standard that you don't get - -  necessarily get 

esponses from everyone that you actually include in an RF 

Q Did any of the letters identify PSC, Florida Public 

ervice Commission, or press scrutiny as a reason for not 

'idding? 

A I don't believe they did in writing, no. 

Q In fact, only one of the letters identified a reason 

or not bidding, and the reason given was that the author 

onveyed that the right of first refusal clause would prohibit 

hem from being able to win the business that was being 
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Iffered, isn't that correct? 

A That was their opinion. But it is interesting that 

hat particular party also maintains a right of first refusal 

'lause with one of their actual customers. I found that quite 

ronic. 

Q Was TECO Transport provided with a copy of the RFP at 

he same time that the other potential bidders were? 

A Yes, they were. 

Q Wouldn't it be fair to say that it was TECO 

'ransport's choice not to bid on the RFP? 

A Certainly. 

Q Who made the decision to hire Mr. Dibner in relation 

o this case? 

A I believe the ultimate decision was made between 

Ir. Smith and myself. 

Q How much experience does TECO have in issuing RFPs 

or waterborne transportation service? 

A The current staff has experience with the prior 

laterborne transportation RFP that went out, and by utilizing 

lr. Dibner's long-standing expertise in the industry, we felt 

onfident that the joint experience would be a good match. 

Q Let me ask you to turn to Page 10 in your rebuttal. 

.nd on Lines 4 to 6, you say that Tampa Electric is free to 

egotiate its contracts with its affiliate in any manner it 

eems to be fair and reasonable? 
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A Yes. 

Q Isn't there a caveat to that? Doesn't the Public 

;ervice Commission have to approve the price is reasonable? 

A I'm not an expert in that area. I don't know that. 

C mean, ultimately they review that, the prudency of those 

irices via audit and otherwise. And, certainly, the benchmark 

i s  another mechanism where they actually review those rates on 

in after-the-fact basis. 

Q Do you receive any regular reports on the locations 

,f TECO Transport's vessels and what cargo they are carrying? 

A Daily, sometimes more than once a day. 

Q Don't those reports show both head haul and backhaul 

noveme n t s ? 

A They show movements for other customers, as well as 

)ur movements. 

Q Do those reports contain such data as the tonnages 

:hat are being transported by the ships? 

A That I don't know. I think we have provided some of 

:hose reports in our PODS. We would have to actually look at 

:hose particular reports. Again, I don't deal with TECO 

rransport on a day-to-day basis. 

Q How often do you receive those reports? 

A They are received in our group by our transportation 

:oordinator daily, if not more. Any time there is a change in 

:he actual projection, they would receive that updated report. 
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Q Before Mr. Dibner's rates were given to TECO 

Transport to meet or beat, did you ever consider including 

backhaul amounts to reduce the prices of Mr. Dibner's rates? 

A No, we did not consider that. 

Q Did anyone else in your group raise that as an issue? 

A No. 

Q In conducting the RFPs, whether they are for 

waterborne transportation services or fuel procurement RFPs, do 

you ever ask for bidder feedback on the back end of the RFP? 

A Bidder feedback? 

Q Yes. In other words, do you solicit any feedback 

from the bidders at the conclusion of the RFP? 

A What kind of feedback? I'm not sure. 

Q Any type of feedback with regards to the terms and 

conditions or the process? 

A Oftentimes we have questions throughout the process 

where people will call and ask questions as to different 

terminology that we use. We typically use a very standard 

document that has been run through our legal department, and so 

it is very self-explanatory. If someone doesn't understand 

anything, they are certainly free to call. We do have folks 

call to try and understand where we are in our decision 

process, if we have made a decision, if they are the winning 

bidder, you know, all of those kinds of things. I have 

looked - -  and just so you know, I have looked at other RFPs 
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hat are done by other utilities, and I think ours is right in 

ine with the best of them. 

Q Can you describe to me how the shipping reports that 

‘ou receive feed into the fuel management system? 

A They are directly entered by TECO Barge Line, as well 

s people at the terminal, and Tampa Electric folks actually 

nter any vessels that are received at Big Bend Station. So 

hey are directly linked, but it is via information gathered, 

nd then this is gone through a compiler of sorts. I am not a 

omputer guru by any stretch of the imagination. And then it 

eeds into the fuels management system. 

Q Does it just show the fuel that is being transported? 

A Yes. It shows the tonnage, it shows the vessel, it 

,bows the contract that it was being shipped on, it shows the 

reights, you know the dates, all the relevant information that 

‘ou would need to upload and input into our fuels management 

.omputer system. 

Q Does your system compile any information for nonfuel 

iovements or movements that are made for other TECO Transport 

:lients? 

A No, we wouldn’t be privy to that. 

Q Who set the minimum and maximum tonnages for the TECO 

’ransport contract? 

A The minimum and maximums were actually set in the 

!FP . 
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Q So Tampa Electric set the tonnages? 

A Yes, we did. 

Q In response to several questions you have noted that 

recently Tampa Electric has had the possibility of being 

:xposed to dead freight charges for not having the minimum 

mount of tons being transported? 

A Uh- huh. 

Q Is there a reason why you didn't reduce the minimum 

:onnage to zero to avoid such charges? 

A No one would take the business at zero. I mean, you 

lave to guarantee them at least some movement. And, again, 

similar to the right of first refusal, you would have to 

parantee them some activity for their investment. The 

:ontract wouldn't be attractive. You would be operating at 

;pot rates. I mean, similar to like - -  a coal supplier would 

lot - -  they are going to want to know how much they are going 

:o sell you. It is not going to be at our whim when we choose 

:o take deliveries or not. I'm not sure - -  

Q So it is your opinion they only work on, say, a take 

)r pay arrangement? Isn't that essentially what it is? 

A Up to a certain volume. I mean, obviously for the 

iollars that are associated with that, the consideration given 

ior that movement, there is alternate consideration given and 

it least a minimum amount of volume. 

Q Is a million tons the absolute minimum that you will 
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dentify? 

A No, the absolutely minimums were what we had 

dentified in the RFP. 

Q You also mentioned that ACBL visited Tampa Electric 

o discuss the RFP after the - -  after they had received the 

lenial letter? 

A Yes. I believe it was after they received that, 

lecause we had continued to contact them throughout the bidding 

Irocess while the bid was still open to try to get financial 

lata from them, and had not received it. And so I remember 

hose conversations, and then I believe their visit was 

lctually after the bid closed. 

Q Was it before Tampa Electric contacted TECO Transport 

iith regard to the right of first refusal clause? 

A I don't recall if it was. Again, remember, that was 

I very short window of time, so I don't remember. 

Q Do you remember what your thinking was when you 

lecided not to meet with the ACBL representatives? 

A I wasn't available to meet with the ACBL 

-epresentative. He actually came into Tampa, and so other 

iembers of my staff actually met with him. 

Q Do you know who met with him? 

A I believe it was at least Marty Duff, and I don't 

:now if there was anybody else that actually met with him. 

MR. PERRY: Thank you, MS. Wehle. That is all of my 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22  

2 3  

24  

2 5  

155  

questions. 

(Brief recess. ) 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Ms. Wehle, good afternoon. Can you hear me? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. I will try to make this short, and I apologize 

if I ask anything at all that was previously asked. Although I 

tried to pay close attention, it was very difficult to hear all 

the questions. So, I will ask you to start with is it TECO's 

position that the current contractual rates paid to TECO 

Transport are affirmed by the rail benchmark, two, Mr. Dibner's 

model or both? 

A Mike, we need to ask you to repeat it. Myself and 

the court reporter, we both did not hear it. 

Q I'll take the phone off speaker and see if it works 

better. 

MR. BEASLEY: That's much better. 

THE WITNESS: That's much better, Mike. 

MR. TWOMEY: Okay. Now I can't hear, but that is 

okay. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Is it TECO's position that the current contractual 

rates paid to TECO Transport are affirmed by, one, the rail 

benchmark, two, Mr. Dibner's model, or, three, both of those? 
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A Well, Mr. Dibner's model, yes. The benchmark 

calculation isn't done until an after-the-fact look. In fact, 

the benchmark for 2003  hasn't even been calculated yet, and 

that was under the last year of the prior agreement. 

Q Okay. Stated differently, if you had to actually 

select the rates that you were going to ask the Commission to 

be allowed to pay TECO Transport, would you use the rail 

benchmark or Mr. Dibner's model? 

A Mr. Dibner's model. 

Q Okay. As being most representative of a fair and 

reasonable rate? 

A Yes. 

Q As most representative of a, quote, unquote, market 

rate? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, as I understand your rebuttal testimony, you are 

saying that TECO is taking the position that there are, quote, 

unquote, markets for all three legs or components of the 

waterborne transportation system, is that correct? 

A Yes. I say that in my testimony, and I believe 

Mr. Dibner also says the same i n  his. 

Q Right. Now, as I understand it, you are saying that 

there is competition for a market to include the Gulf 

transportation leg, and tell me if I am correct or not. 

Apparently, you are basing that conclusion primarily on the 
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act that you see competition from the railroad, is that 

iorrect? 

A It is not just competition from the railroad; it is 

.Is0 the fact that there are other providers, Gulf providers 

.hat could compete even for portions of the business, but have 

ihosen not to. They are just off busy doing what we assume is 

Ither business. 

Q I see. So that it doesn't - -  in your estimation, it 

loesn't take responsive bids so long as there are other people 

jut there doing that type of business, to go ahead and 

:onstruct or show the existence of a market, correct? 

A That is correct. We know that those parties do 

!xist, and that if the circumstances were right, that they 

tctually would and - -  could and would bid on the business and 

)ossibly have the business. 

Q Okay. But at least in part, you are basing your 

:onclusion that there is a market for the Gulf transportation 

)ased in part on the fact that there is competition from the 

railroad, correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Okay. Now, I think I heard Mr. Keating ask you 

?arlier this morning if you were a CPA. and I think you said 

res, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. At Page 4 of your rebuttal testimony, you 
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discuss the outrageousness of one of Dr. Hochstein's 

conclusions that the water transportation rates could be 

excessive by 40 million a year, and you say starting at Line 

22, put into perspective how outrageous these allegations are, 

according to TECO Energy's 2000 annual report, TECO Transport's 

total net income for 2003 was only 15.3 million, and revenues 

from Tampa Electric accounted for about 38 percent of the 

business's total revenues. Do you see that? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, I know that somebody, I think it was Cochran 

Keating, asked you some questions about the annual report, and 

I didn't hear all of the discussion. But my question to you is 

that, would you agree that - -  would you concede that the amount. 

of TECO Transport's total revenues might 

ascertaining whether or not the $40 mill 

sustainable? 

A Actually, no, I don't agree wi 

play a role in 

on figure would be 

h that 

Q Well, if you would, tell me what your point is in 

comparing a $ 4 0  million amount or adjustment, if you will, to 

what TECO's total net income for the year is. Net income is 

prof it, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q Okay. And the net income is what is generally left 

after you deduct your expenses from your gross income, right, 

your revenues? 
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A Right. 

Q Okay. So what is the relevance of comparing the 

Jrofit to the $40 million figure? 

A It was to just show the fact that the profit that 

:hey make from all of their revenue streams is only $15.3 

nillion. And to sort of say that they are overcharging us b: 

40 million, it just doesn't compute. The revenue stream that 

:hey receive from u s ,  and I don't have the number in front of 

ne, but I believe it was in the $96 million range. 

Ir. Hochstein, or Dr. Hochstein's allegation would be that they 

ire overcharging us by half of our rates, and that just seems 

Ludicrous to me. 

Q Okay. But you reach that by discussing what the 

revenues are there versus what the profit is, right? 

A But the profit here is for all their revenues. It is 

mly $15 million. I don't know how he derives the fact that 

:hey are overcharging us by 40 million. You would think that 

:he net income would then exceed $40 million, just on our piece 

%lone, if they are overcharging us. 

Q Okay. I think perhaps staff asked you this. When 

IOU all signed the most recent contract with TECO Transport, 

rou knew that there were questions by at least the staff 

2oncerning the validity, the ongoing validity of the benchmark, 

:orrect? 

A That is correct. 
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Q Okay. At Page 11 - -  have you submitted any changes 

o your testimony, yet? 

A I have. we actually passed those out today, this 

iorning, before the deposition began. 

Q Okay. On Page 11, Line 23, did you - -  

A We thought Dr. Hochstein wrote that order. 

Q You mean you thought I voted on it and Dr. Hochstein 

rote it? 

A That's right. 

Q Good. Good. Now, in connection with that, I'm 

wrious - -  

A Well, let me just say, Mike, that we actually struck 

.hat particular sentence from my - -  

Q I was curious, though. Looking at the first page 

lfter the cover of your Document Number 1, and I see in the 

:xcerpts from Order Number 20298 that you identify me again as 

.he staff attorney in Order Number 20298 written by Mr. Twomey. 

'ou are not suggesting that I had any ownership in that order 

)r was responsible for the vote, are you? 

A I think just by the sheer token that all we are 

;aying is that - -  or all I am saying is that you wrote it as a 

;ummary document, as an item that was a result of all of the 

liscussions . 

Q Right. Not to belabor this, but Mr. Keating will 

)robably write the order for the Commission that comes at the 
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:onclusion of this hearing. And would you agree with me that 

lrhat he will write will reflect what the Commission votes on 

m d  not his own conclusions, right? 

A That is probably the case. 

Q Okay. Now, at Page 17 of your rebuttal testimony, 

just briefly, beginning at Line 2 0 ,  you talk about some of the 

reasoning why TECO Transport wasn't required to bid. And you 

30 on to say, starting at Line 2 0 ,  if TECO Transport was 

interested in continuing to perform the services, their 

3bligation was to, quote, unquote, meet or beat market price 

€or such services. 

Now. given their druthers, if they were - -  if they 

dere presented with a number as a result of other bids or 

dhatever, what would be the motivation for TECO Transport to 

Deat a number, that is to undercut it, as opposed to merely 

neeting the bid offer by another? 

A I think I was asked that question before this 

afternoon by somebody. I don't remember exactly who. 

Q I'm sorry, I didn't hear it. 

A That's okay. 

Q What was your answer? 

A I believe that in order for them to probably beat 

that price, there would probably have to be some other 

negotiated item that would be presented by the buyer, by Tampa 

Electric. That would be the only thing I can think of. 
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Q But isn't it true, or if it is not, tell me why, that 

their contractual obligation is solely to meet that price, the 

bid of the others, so that TECO can claim that it is getting 

least as good a deal as if the competitive bid was used? 

A There is nothing - -  it is not a so-called claim as 

you characterize it. Their obligation is to meet or beat th 

price. The established price, the lowest bid out of the RFP 

presented to them. They can choose to take it or leave it. 

at 

is 

There is not a claim of anybody on anybody's part of why we are 

doing this. We are doing this to provide the ratepayers with 

the lowest cost alternative. 

Q Okay. Would you agree with me that if TECO Transport 

were required to bid with other vendors in a competitive bid, 

that their goal would have to be to try and submit - -  if they 

wanted to keep the business, their goal would have to be to 

submit a bid that was low enough to actually beat the other 

qualified respondents and not merely meet one? 

A If there was no right of first refusal clause? 

Q Yes, if there were no right of first refusal. 

A That would be true. 

Q Okay. 

A Again, all things considered in that bid process. 

Q Sure. On Page 29 of your rebuttal testimony - -  let 

me see where it is. Starting at the question and answer 

starting at Line 3 ,  you discuss - -  the question is: Have you 
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received recent bid solicitations for imported coal in the last 

year, if so, what were the results. And I believe I heard 

pieces of questioning on this either this morning or this 

afternoon, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. I don't want to overdo this, but, again, I h 

a hard time hearing some of the questions. How many 

respondents did you get to the import coal bid solicitation? 

I 

A It was not an import coal bid solicitation. It was a 

general bid solicitation of which both foreign and domestic 

suppliers actually responded. 

Q I see. Are those responses in the discovery? 

A Yes. 

Q They are? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recall where? If you don't, that's fine. 

I'll  fin'-^ it. 

A No, I don't. 

Q Okay. At Line 8 of that page you say the results of 

that solicitation indicate that foreign coal delivered directly 

to Big Bend Station was not the lowest cost on a fully 

delivered cents her million basis when compared to domestic 

coal. And you go on to say those solicitations were made 

before the run-up of prices in foreign coal. How many 

solicitations do you have to deliver coal to Big Bend Station? 
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A How many do we have? 

Q Yes. You say the results of that solicitation 

ndicate that foreign coal delivered directly to Big Bend 

tation. 

A This is the only pending solicitation that we still 

lave open at this time. 

Q Okay. And how many suppliers or vendors offered to 

iring foreign coal directly to Big Bend? 

A I'm thinking of one. I don't recall if there was 

lore than one. 

Q Okay. Is that shown in the discovery response? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And you say it was not the lowest cost on a 

iully delivered cents per million Btu? 

A Yes. 

Q Was the coal that was offered to you in those bid 

responses, the foreign coal, was the fact that it wasn't the 

.owest cost on a million Btu basis because the price was high, 

:he Btus were low, there was some other coal quality problem, 

)r a combination of those? 

A No. It was because on a delivered basis evaluation, 

:he total transportation and coal commodity price was not the 

Lowest. 

Q Okay. Not on a dollars per ton, but on a million 

3tUS? 
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A Exactly. We do it on a cents per million basis to 

ave all of the respondents on a comparative basis. 

Q Right. It's like kind of a miles per gallon basis, 

ight? 

A Exactly. 

Q But I'm asking a little bit further. The fact that 

t wasn't the lowest cost on a million Btu basis, was it due, 

f you recall, to the fact that the price per ton was high or 

hat the Btu value per ton was low, or both? 

A This actual solicitation was for a low Btu product, 

nd so I had a variety of responses from those that did 

espond. What I recall from this particular instance was that 

he Btus were not low in comparison to others, and it was, 

gain, a fully delivered product by the actual supplier. 

Q Okay. Let me see where I have the - -  one of your - -  

et me see where your document is here. I wanted to ask you 

bout that. Document 6 ,  your rebuttal testimony? 

A Yes. 

Q It is on Page 99 of your testimony. 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have that? 

A Yes. 

Q Those are Colombian and Venezuelan spot prices, and I 

ust wanted to ask you, I was curious. What are the mine or 

.endor codes at the bottom there for each of - -  the symbology 
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:or each of the lines. One of them, VN, is for Venezuela, I 

issume, right? 

A Yes. Santa Marta, which is another port. Puerto 

3olivar (phonetic). 

Q The SMRGA? 

A Is Santa Marta. 

Q Which country is that in? 

A I don't recall. I believe it is in Venezuela. It is 

m e  or the other. 

Q Okay. PBV? 

A Puerto Bolivar. 

Q Uh- huh. 

A And then - -  

Q Where is that? 

A That is in Colombia. 

Q Colombia. Okay. 

A And Puerto Bolivar/DRMD is Puerto 

kummond product. 

3livar for a 

Q Okay. The Venezuelan coal is a little bit higher Btu 

ralue than the Colombian apparently. But if you recall, was 

:he coal offered to you in this most recent solicitation in 

:hat range of Btus? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Let's see here. On Page 5 6  of your rebuttal 

:est imony . 
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A Okay. 

Q You start at - -  well, the question is at Line 6, 

3bout Dr. Hochstein saying that the coal from the midwest 

fields can only rationally be transported to Tampa Electric's 

3ig Bend Station by water. Do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, did you listen to or read his deposition? 

A I listened to a very small part of it. 

Q Okay. Did you hear enough or would you agree with me 

:hat in his deposition Dr. Hochstein made some effort to 

:larify that he meant that statement to be applicable to mines 

:hat are close to the rivers? 

A Mike, I didn't hear that. 

Q You didn't hear that? 

A NO, I didn't. 

Q Okay. Let's see. Now, on Page 62, you say in your 

inswer starting at Line 12, TECO Transport offers the most 

:fficient, reliable and cost-effective means of transporting 

:oal to Tampa Electric, even Dr. Hochstein acknowledges this. 

[ s  it your testimony there that Dr. Hochstein unqualifiably 

;aid that TECO Transport offers the most efficient, reliable 

m d  cost-effective means of transporting coal to Tampa Electric 

iithout any caveats? 

A I don't know that he had any caveats. I was just - -  

.t was just a general statement that Dr. Hochstein acknowledges 
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:hat waterborne transportation is a logical choice for Tampa 

Clectric and that TECO - -  for Tampa Electric. 

Q Okay. On Page 58 - -  I'm sorry. Let's go back to 

'age 5 7  for a second. At Page 57 ,  Line 2, you state that many 

,f the foreign fuels have high ash fusion temperatures, which 

:ause operational problems in the Big Bend boilers. Do you see 

:hat? 

A Yes. 

Q And I just took it that when you said many of the 

ioreign fuels have high ash fusion, that you recognized, had it 

.n your mind that there were some that don't, is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Okay. And how do you distinguish which of the fuels, 

: mean, which fuels have high ash fusion temperatures versus 

:hose that don't, if you know off the top of your head? 

A For the most part, South American fuels tend to have 

iigh ash fusion temperatures. There are those that don't. For 

tnstance, Indonesian fuels tend to not have high ash fusion 

:emperatures. It is just going to be really symptomatic of how 

:hat mine was formed over the millions of years as the coal 

seam was formed. And how we do - -  how we determine what those 

ire is by requiring official lab analysis to be performed with 

:he ash fusion temperature results to be reported by those 

,articular mines that are trying to provide fuel to us. 

Q Right. And then you just compare those to what the 
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Design. 

_ _  requirements are? 

Exactly . 

Let me see. Now, you may have answered this a minute 

ine 4, in talking about the most recent bid analysis 

Yes. 

Is that in the discovery, as well? 

That is the same bid analysis we just talked about. 

The same one, okay. On Page 58, Line 4, you discuss 

the fact that at the time Tampa Electric's waterborne 

transportation RFP - -  at the time of the RFP, Marigold-Drummond 

was planning to build a terminal, but had no permits in place, 

correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q I have either read someplace in the discovery, I 

think, or heard in a deposition recently that either 

Marigold-Drummond, or perhaps I am confused, Kinder Morgan had 

been supplying coal to Lakeland and others, foreign coal from 

Lakeland and others, through the Port of Tampa for a number of 

years? 

A I don't know that that was for a number of years. 

They did operate, as I mention further down on in Line 9, it 

was Kinder Morgan who was operating through the port's Peer 219 
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acility. But there they were required to unload a vessel 

irectly into trucks. So it was not a very convenient or 

imple facility. And to my knowledge, it has not been 

,perating that way for several years. It has just been a 

.ecent phenomenon. 

Q If you are aware, is the new facility at Kinder 

[organ situated such that they can operate more efficiently 

.ow? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Okay. So they might be better situated to serve your 

.eeds in the future than they were in the past? 

A It could be. 

Q Okay. HOW about the Marigold-Drummond terminal, is 

t - -  did you say it is in operation now? 

A I don't know if it has been operating or not. It was 

,till under construction in March. 

Q March of this year? 

A March of this year. I believe they have all of their 

termits and whatnot that would allow them to actually accept 

.essels and unload vessels. I just don't know what the level 

If activity is that is going on there. 

Q Okay. Let's see. On Page 6 4 ,  I think I heard you 

.11 talking about this earlier today. 

A Yes. 

Q And it may have been Rob Vandiver asking you this. 
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ose quote is that? 

I believe it was Mr. Jenkins. A 

Q 

A 

Q 

nsid r 

Joe Jenkins? 

Yes. 

Okay. And, let's see. 

hat there is - -  with I: 

1 7 1  

Okay. MS. Wehle, do you 

spect to the three different 

mponents or legs of the existing waterborne transportation 

Ute, do you consider that there is significant competition 

r the river borne leg? 

A I don't know what you mean by significant. 

Q Well, do you consider that there is competition on 

e river? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And Mr. Dibner's recognizes that, right? 

A Right. 

Q That there are other carriers? 

A Yes. 

Q That there are a sufficient number of boats, at least 

the time of his testimony, enough vessels that the supply, 

lparently - -  his conclusion was greater than the demand? 

A I believe that is what he said. You would have to go 

.ck and check his testimony. 

Q Okay. Now, how about for the transloading area, as 

)posed to just the market, is there, in fact, competition for 

.ansloading? 
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IMT bid? 

the Gulf. 

spond, 

That is correct. 

Am I correct in my recollection that the use - -  you 

11 used the IMT bid as the place marker to establish the 

iarket rate for transloading services, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q And am I correct in recalling as well that that 

.esulted in the transloading rate to increase, vis-a-vis what 

t had been before? 

A On the average. It is really not fair to say because 

he other rate was broken out in two different components. 

Q Which components were those? 

A Those were direct transfer rate and then a storage to 

[round rate. And those two were different in the prior 

'ontract. If you averaged those two on a 50/50 basis, you 

:ould say that the rate went up. But you would have to make 

hat assumption. 

Q I see. Now, on the Gulf leg - -  

A Yes. 
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Q - -  aside from there being a market, quote, unquote, 

.s established by the existence of other vessels capable of 

terforming that service, and/or the railroad being able to 

.ransfer or carry the same coal, is there, in fact, any, quote, 

inquote, competition? 

A I believe that there is competition. 

Q Okay. And do you think that is significant? 

A I don't know what you mean by significant. 

Q Well, that's a fair question. I'm not sure how to 

lefine it. I guess a lot, mucho competition. 

A Mucho competition. 

Q That is Mr. Dibner's testimony. 

A I would have to defer to Mr. Dibner - -  

Q Of course, that's why I said that. 

A - -  to say whether there was significant competition 

)r not. 

Q Do you recall, though, who the vessel competition 

rould be for the - -  

A It would be those carriers that we actually solicited 

.n our RFP that actually could serve the waterborne leg. 

Q Okay. Let me - -  

A Excuse me, the ocean leg. 

Q Okay. Let me check my notes here quickly and see if 

:'ve got - -  I forget the reference in your testimony now, but 

Lo you recall how many tons of foreign coal you received at Big 
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lend in 2 0 0 3 ?  

A I don't. I don't know that we've - -  I referenced it 

.n my testimony. I believe I probably provided that 

.nformation either in - -  in an interrogatory response. 

Q Okay. Irrespective of whether it is in your 

.estimony, do you recall what the number is approximately? 

A I don't actually. 

Q For last year? 

A I don't. The vast majority of the foreign coal that 

re have purchased has been used at our Polk Power Station. It 

ras minimal. Probably this test burn that we have continued to 

:alk about was probably the biggest piece that was used at Big 

3end. 

MR. TWOMEY: Okay. That's all I have. Thank you 

iuch. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Wehle. 

A Good afternoon. 

Q My name is Shef Wright. And as you know, I am an 

ittorney for CSX Transportation in this proceeding. 

A Yes. 

Q And I've got some questions for you. 

A Okay. 
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Q Your testimony was prepared under your direction and 

upervision, is that correct? 

A That’s correct. 

Q Who, if anyone, assisted you in writing that 

estimony? 

A The people that I am going to list really were more 

)f a review than an assistance, per se. 

Q Okay. 

A Ms. Bramley, Mr. Duff, folks from the regulatory 

iroup reviewed it before it was finally sent out, my boss, Mr. 

!hristmas. 

Q Did your attorneys review it before it was sent out? 

A I believe they reviewed it. 

Q Did I understand your testimony this afternoon that 

‘ou basically wrote almost all of this yourself? 

A Yes. 

Q Good. Are you being tendered as an expert witness i 

:his proceeding? 

A I am being tendered as the company witness who can 

inswer on behalf of Tampa Electric. 

Q Do you know whether you are being tendered as an 

?xpert witness? 

MR. BEASLEY: We have not discussed that. We Will 

Irior to the hearing and will certainly let you know. 

MR. WRIGHT: Okay. 
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3Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q I'm not going to ask you how much money, what your 

salary is, but I want to ask you about how your compensation 

structure and how your total compensation is determined as you 

ire employed by Tampa Electric Company. You are employed by 

rampa Electric Company itself, are you not? 

A That is correct. 

Q Do you receive a base salary? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you receive a bonus typically? 

A Yes, if one is awarded through our bonus compensation 

irogram. 

Q What determines whether bonuses are awarded through 

:he bonus compensation program at Tampa Electric? 

A At my level? 

Q Yes, please. 

A There are predetermined goals that are :t e her 

:he prior - -  end of the prior year or the beginning of the 

:urrent year that are again set and determined specifically for 

ne. And after the year is complete, it is decided by myself 

vith my input whether or not I have actually achieved those 

Joals or not. And there are certain percentages given to the 

rariety of different categories of goals. And that is 

:omistent throughout the company. 

Q Are these goals like objectives in a management by 
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lbjectives culture, do you know? 

A The types of goals are, some of it, is whether or not 

he company actually achieves its financial performance 

werall. Setting net income targets, and I have - -  whether or 

tot there is any safety goals that are achieved and 

mvironmental goals, as well as personal goals specifically for 

le. 

Q Okay. What are your personal specific goals that you 

ire required to meet? 

A For 2004 ,  I have a variety of personal goals which 

:omprise about 40 percent of my overall bonus structure, and 

.hose are from a variety of - -  attracting talent to the 

)rganization when there are opportunities for that, attending 

.raining programs. Let me see, succession planning for others 

.n our group, communication and interaction with other 

lepartments that I work with. It is those types of goals. 

;ometimes meeting with vendors, meeting with - -  I also am a 

rendor, meeting with customers a certain number of times. It 

.s those types of goals. 

Q You mentioned at the beginning of that response that 

.hose represent about 40 percent of your bonus structure? 

A Yes. 

Q What is the other 60 percent? 

A Those company goals that I had talked about earlier, 

.ike whether or not we have achieved net income targets, safety 
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oals, and the like. 

Q Thank you. In your response a minute ago you 

entioned that you are also a vendor; what do you sell? 

A We sell wholesale power. 

Q Do you sell fuel? 

A No, not typically. Only on a very rare occasion do 

'e sell fuel. 

Q Does any part of your bonus depend on minimizing the 

otal delivered cost of fuel to Tampa Electric's power plants? 

A I don't know that that is specifically spelled out in 

iy bonus structure. 

Q Is your boss still Mr. Christmas? 

A Yes. 

Q Is that Bruce Christmas? 

A Yes. 

Q I know him from the gas business. 

A Okay. 

Q Do you know whether any part of his bonus depends on 

iinimizing the total delivered cost of fuel to Tampa Electric's 

)ewer plants? 

A I have not seen his goals. 

Q Do you know whether the bonus for anyone in your 

{roup, as you used that term a little while ago, has a bonus 

.hat depends on minimizing the total delivered cost of fuel? 

A Not to my knowledge. 
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Q Thank you. 

A I believe that particular item is a general objective 

hat the department holds. I don't know that we - -  you know, 

re don't have specific individual goals for that. 

Q You have been asked a number of questions around the 

ssue I am about to ask you about. 

A Okay. 

Q I don't think I heard the question asked this way. 

A Okay. 

Q I'm trying not to be duplicative. You were asked a 

umber of questions about the fact that Tampa Electric presents 

'ECO Transport and Trade with a proposed price? 

A That is correct. 

Q And then TECO Transport - -  is it TECO Transport and 

'rade, is that right? 

A It is no longer and Trade. It's just TECO Transport. 

Q Thank you. And that TECO Transport can either accept 

t, meet it, or beat it, or reject it, is that accurate? 

A Right. 

Q Here is my question: Why doesn't Tampa Electric ask 

'ECO Transport to submit a price proposal to Tampa Electric 

irst? 

A That wasn't the terms of the arrangement. I am back 

o that same argument of providing them with a last look and 

lsking them to bid seemed somewhat inconsistent to me, okay? 
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Q Yes. 

A And so by requiring them to bid, I'm not sure that 

:hey would necessarily be incented to provide an extremely 

iggressive proposal when they also have the opportunity to meet 

)r beat the lowest price. 

Q And is it your understanding that the last look, 

right of first refusal, meet or beat provisions, are simply a 

Jiven to you as part of the contract with TECO Transport? 

A I don't know what you mean by a given. 

Q You just take that as given as part of the existing 

irrangement as you used the term a moment ago? 

A It was a part of the agreement that I assumed when I 

)ecame director of fuels, if that is what you are referring to. 

Q Have you personally tried to negotiate that out of 

:here, such that TECO Transport would be required to submit a 

)rice proposal? 

A No, I have not. 

Q Has anyone else at Tampa Electric attempted to do so, 

:o your knowledge? 

A I don't know that answer. 

Q Just to be clear, would it be fair to say that you 

ire not aware of anyone at Tampa Electric having attempted to 

i o  so? 

A That would be correct. 

Q Am I correct to understand that the meet or beat 
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rices that - -  price or prices that Tampa Electric proposed to 

ECO Transport were those derived by Mr. Dibner? 

A Mr. Dibner on the river, and Mr. Dibner's model 

esults as well on the ocean piece. And the terminal was the 

MT bid. 

Q Thank you. What other types of contracts have you 

dministered in your career since becoming, I think, a senior 

ontracts administrator at Tampa Electric in about 1 9 9 5 ?  

A For the most part, coal contracts and petroleum coke 

ontracts, which were the bulk of Tampa Electric's fuel supply. 

t the time we were 98 percent coal-fired, so - -  

Q To the extent that you know, how many of those 

ontracts have a last look or a meet or beat type provision in 

hem? 

A Currently, do you mean? 

Q Let's go for today, please? 

A I can think of two. 

Q Okay. And which are those? I think everybody in the 

'oom is in the confidentiality club. 

A There's a Peabody contract that we currently have and 

bur Zeigler agreement. 

Q Are you aware of other contracts that have had those 

erms since 1995? I've got it right that it was 1995 you 

iecame a senior contracts administrator? 

A 1995, yes. I believe there may have been one other 
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'eabody contract that actually has since expired. 

Q Along this same line, you were asked a number of 

yuestion regarding rights of first refusal in contracts like 

he questions I have just asked you. What I want to ask you 

.bout is what your knowledge base is for that? How many other 

.tility coal contracts are you aware of, other than those that 

'ou are familiar with for Tampa Electric specifically? 

A I think, again, I referenced the information from 

.eading media articles. Utility contracts are confidential in 

.ature, and unless I were to actually either work for the 

,upplier or work for that utility, I'm not sure I would be 

lrivy to any of those. 

Q And I understand that, but I just want to be clear 

hat - -  I just want to be clear that I understand what your 

rame of reference is. 

A Okay. 

Q Is it fair to say that it is the contracts that you 

.now about from working with Tampa Electric and then general 

nformation you have read in the media? 

A General information in the marketplace, that's 

orrect. 

Q And from that, is it your understanding that barge 

ontracts frequently have rights of first refusal in them? 

A I don't think I can say that they frequently have 

hem. 
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Q Do you know whether it is typical for coal contracts 

o have rights of first refusal or last looks in them? 

A I think it is typical for long-term agreements to 

.ave rights of first refusals in them. I know that every coal 

upplier that comes to visit me that wants to negotiate a 

ong-term agreement, or put a new panel in, or develop a new 

ection of a mine wants to be able to continue to provide that 

ervice if they are going to invest in that mine. 

Q But, again, you don't know about any specific 

ontracts outside of your personal experience? 

A No, sir. 

Q The same question with regard to rail contracts? 

A I don't know. 

Q Truck contracts? 

A I don't know. 

Q Other than your contract with CTL? 

A Other than my contracts, exactly. 

Q I think you have - -  is it correct that Tampa Electric 

urrently has more than one contract with Peabody? 

A Yes. 

Q Which of those contracts has the right of first 

efusal, to the best of your knowledge? 

A It is our Black Beauty contract. 

Q Do you in your present job have primary 

esponsibility for selecting - -  for making the final decision 
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Nn coal transportation for Tampa Electric? 

A Within my approval levels. 

Q I apologize. I think I didn't word my question the 

ray I meant to. Would it be more correct that you have primary 

uthority for making recommendations to higher level 

ianagement? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Okay. Is the same general proposition true with 

espect to Tampa Electric's coal supply decisions? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

Q Are those decisions ultimately made at the board 

eve1 or are they made by Mr. Christmas or somebody between 

Ir. Christmas and the board? 

A It depends on the term and the amount of dollars. 

[r. Christmas can make some of those decisions. 

Is this direct testimony? 

Q Yes. I am going to go chronologically and by page, 

ope, beginning with your direct testimony. 

Does Tampa Electric blend any fuel for its Polk 

enerating station at Big Bend? 

A No, it does not. 

Q So it is your testimony that all of Polk's fuel comes 

n and goes to one stack and from that stack straight to the 

rucks? 

A It is preblended before it gets to Big Bend. 
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Q And just to be clear, the answer to my question was 

res? 

A Yes. 

Q I would like to ask if you would, please, look at 

'age 23  of your direct testimony. Beginning at Line 18 on that 

,age, you make the statement that, secondly, the company 

recognized that there could be additional transportation costs, 

such as trucking costs from existing coal supply sources to 

rail loading facilities that needed to be taken into account. 

ly first question is, did you only look at that with respect to 

?xisting coal supply sources? 

A Yes. 

Q So would I be correct to conclude from that answer 

:hat you did not look at it from any other potential coal 

;upply sources in this context? 

A We looked at the current existing contracts that we 

lad in place. 

Q And so wouldn't it be correct that you did not look 

tt the costs to get coal by rail from any source other than 

Tour existing coal supply sources? 

A There still could be additional transportation costs 

:o get other costs that are not rail served to a railhead. 

Q I understand that. My question was did you look at 

:hat with respect to any other coal supply source? 

A No, because we would have to assume what that coal 
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'upply source would be. 

Q The next sentence continuing there at Line 2 2  on Page 

!3 ,  says that, third, Tampa Electric needed to evaluate the 

tmpact on cost-effectiveness of acquiring coal from different 

;upply locations in the event that rail service were used 

instead of water transportation services. Did you evaluate an: 

:oal supply locations, coal supply sources, other than your 

?xisting coal supply sources in that part of whatever analysis 

IOU did? 

A We looked at what other rail served regions coal 

iricing was at the time and whether or not those qualities 

ictually met our boiler design. 

Q What other regions did you look at? 

A Well, Central Appalachia obviously was one where rail 

i s  served most often out of, but those boiler designs - -  those 

fuels don't typically work in our Big Bend boilers. And then 

ue looked at whether or not Pittsburg 8 would have been 

:ost-effective. 

Q Is it correct that Pittsburg 8 will work in your 

,oilers? 

A Yes, and we have bought Pittsburg 8 in the past. 

Q Is it also correct that some western Kentucky coals, 

including that from the Dotiki Mine will work in Tampa 

Zlectric's boilers? 

A Yes, and we've bought Dotiki in the past, as well. 
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Q Do you know whether Patiki coal will work in your 

boilers? 

A I don't know. 

Q Did you look at Patiki? 

A We have looked at them in the past. I'm not sure why 

it hasn't been a fuel selection. 

Q What specific evaluation of the impact on 

cost-effectiveness of acquiring coal from different supply 

locations did you perform in evaluating the CSXT rail 

transportation proposals? 

A We just reviewed what the prices were in those 

regions. We didn't do a formal evaluation. 

Q When you say you reviewed what the prices were in 

those regions, what sources of information did you look at for 

those prices? 

A Typically, those prices as reported in the coal 

media. I don't recall specifically. 

Q You mean like the Argus (phonetic) Coal Trader and 

Coal Transportation Report and publications like that? 

A Coal Daily and others, uh-huh. 

Q And during what time period, like month, if you 

could, did you do that evaluation? 

A I don't remember. It would have had to have been 

around about the times that we were evaluating this rail 

proposal. 
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Q Did that evaluation result in the production of any 

locument reflecting that evaluation? 

A No, it did not. The evaluation that did result in a 

locument is actually attached as my exhibit. 

Q Document Number 3? 

A JTW-1, Document Number 3, right. 

Q And when was that prepared? 

A When was that prepared? 

Q That is my question, yes, ma'am. 

A After we received the bids, August of 2003. It was 

iiled with my direct testimony and - -  it was actually filed in 

iy direct testimony in September of last year in the '03 docket 

ind then resubmitted in this docket. 

Q I have a redacted version, but that is not a problem 

ior the question I want to ask you. 

A Okay. 

Q The question I want to ask you is this: Isn't it 

:rue that all of the sources listed on Document Number 3, Page 

! of 3 are, in fact, existing Tampa Electric sources? 

A Yes. 

Q And so would I be correct to conclude from that you 

lid not look, did not perform the same analysis for any new 

tlternative sources other than these? 

A I didn't have any direct pricing from anybody else to 

lo an evaluation, and all of our 2004 needs were actually 
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Jurchased already. So I had to look at what we already had 

inder contract. 

Q Turning to Page 2 5  of your direct testimony, toward 

:he bottom at Line 2 1 ,  you make the statement that you reviewed 

:he data utilized and the methods of analysis employed by 

jargent and Lundy. 

A Yes. 

Q Tell me specifically what data utilized by Sargent 

m d  Lundy you reviewed? 

A They provided quite a bit of work papers associated 

yith their final report, and I just really reviewed those. I 

lidn't review any kind of source documents. I relied on our 

jeneration engineering folks who had direct contact with 

;argent and Lundy to review the methodologies since they are 

really more in that business than I am. 

Q And who would those persons be? 

A I believe the contact person at Tampa Electric was 

3alph Painter and possibly individuals on his staff. 

Q You make the statement you also reviewed the methods 

J f  analysis employed by Sargent and Lundy. Exactly what 

nethods of analysis did you review? 

A I looked at whether or not they reviewed some of the 

gchematics and things like that. It was a very high-level 

review. Again, I left the detailed review and discussions to 

Jur generation engineering group. 
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Q And when you say high level, you are talking about 

or 50,000 feet, as we might say? 

I'm not an expert in that field, 

something in the range of 40 

That would be it. A 

so - -  

Q 

utilized 

Did you inquire as 

ny vendor quotes f 

for their estimates? 

to whether Sargent and Lundy 

r the equipment that they assumed 

A No, I did not. I didn't inquire one way or the 

other. 

Q Thanks. If you would turn to Page 27. There, 

beginning at Line 19, you make the statement that in addition 

to evaluating the capital costs for rail infrastructure, Tampa 

Electric also considered the impact on cost-effectiveness of 

acquiring coal from different supply locations in the event 

that rail transportation were used instead of waterborne 

transportation. Was that the general look at regional prices 

that you mentioned a little while ago? 

A Regional prices and the fact that we would no longer 

be able to take petroleum coke via waterborne transportation 

cost-effectively. 

Q When you say you would no longer be able to take 

petroleum coke by waterborne cost-effectively, what do you mean 

by that? 

A Well, that - -  and Mr. Murre11 talks about this in his 

testimony. To our knowledge, there are no refineries that are 
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ail served. And so the bid that was provided by CSX required 

minimum of one million tons to be from rail served origins, 

nd so this could preclude the use of petroleum coke at, say, 

ur - -  at Big Bend as well as our Polk Power Station where up 

o 60 percent of our fuel mix is petroleum coke. 

Q What is the total solid fuel burn or consumption at 

olk per year? 

A About 7 5 0 , 0 0 0  tons. 

Q And that is out of a total of approximately how many 

ons of total solid fuel consumed by Tampa Electric per year? 

A About five million. 

Q Why or how would taking one million tons of coal by 

ail out of a total of five million tons preclude Tampa 

lectric's ability to obtain 60 percent of 7 5 0 , 0 0 0 ,  that is 

bout 4 5 0 , 0 0 0  tons per year, petroleum coke cost-effectively? 

A We were looking at using rail as being the full 

lternative for u s .  

Q So do I understand your immediately previous response 

s that you evaluated rail as an all or nothing proposal, the 

SXT bids? 

A We evaluated both proposals. What we looked at was 

Q Go ahead. 

A Okay. - -  and your comment here is we looked at all 

he impacts associated with the cost-effectiveness of acquiring 
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ur fuel supply, and we determined - -  we were trying to factor 

hether there would be any pet coke impact at all. 

Q Well, I understood the remark you made a minute ago 

hat you - -  I think you used approximately these words, that 

'ou considered rail as a full alternative and evaluated it as 

uch? 

A Right. And actually if we took direct rail into Polk 

'ower Station that would preclude the ability for us to take 

ome petroleum coke in there. It could, it could preclude 

hat. 

Q Did you evaluate taking exactly one million tons a 

'ear of coal for Big Bend as part of your overall fuel 

Nrocurement strategy? 

A No, because we didn't have any room for that one 

iillion tons in the 2004 supply portfolio, so what we evaluated 

'as where we stood with rail given our 2 0 0 4  supply portfolio. 

Q And this evaluation is performed when, again? 

A August. 

Q Did you have room for Polk fuel supply as of that 

Noint in time? 

A I don't understand your question. 

Q Well, I think you just made the remark that you 

.idn't have any room at all in your coal procurement - -  

A Right. All of our coal procurement - -  

Q - -  for 2 0 0 4  when you did this evaluation? 
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A Right. We looked at the evaluation on a long-term 

)asis if we were to have rail infrastructure built, and what 

he impacts would be to our fuel supply. 

Q So when you say you looked at it on a long-term 

)asis, did you look at it for 2 0 0 5 ?  

A No, because I didn't know where I was going to buy 

111 of my fuel. We were just saying theoretically. We were 

.rying to understand the impacts theoretically of what it could 

Lo to our fuel supply going into the future. But the actual 

malysis that I performed as my exhibit was on 2 0 0 4  fuel. 

Q Okay. Did you do any specific analyses of different 

lmounts of coal by rail factoring in the offered prices and 

.erms and conditions provided to Tampa Electric by CSX 

'ransportation? 

A Yes, we did, as far as this exhibit is concerned. 

Q Now, did you consider specifically a million tons a 

rear? 

A No, we didn't even factor that in there. That would 

lave been - -  we would have been subjected to dead freight 

)enalties because our coal supply doesn't have direct rail 

)rigins for 2 0 0 4 .  

Q What about for 2 0 0 5 ?  When you said you made a 

:heoretical consideration for long-term, did you make a 

.heoretical evaluation of taking, say, a million tons a year 

irom CSX? 
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A No, because it - -  well, we looked at what the pricing 

would have been for 2 0 0 4 ,  and given the fact that it was more 

expensive given our current fuel supply portfolio, we didn't 

even go beyond that. It was a more expensive alternative in 

the immediate year. 

Q So you didn't look at two million tons or three 

million tons or any other specific portfolio mix? 

A Right. 

Q Did you personally review CSX's bid submitted to 

Tampa Electric? 

A Yes. 

Q Where in that bid do you see dead freight penalties? 

A I don't have the bid with me. Thank you. 

Q You're welcome. I will aver to you that that is a 

copy of the bid as I understand that to be the document that I 

just removed from my personal copy of the testimony of Bob 

White. 

A We can probably use Jim's copy if you would rather. 

Q I would actually prefer that, but we can do it 

however you want. 

A And I think the question was where do I see dead 

freight penalties? 

Q Dead freight penalties, yes. 

A I think dead freight penalties - -  dead freight rates 

are listed on Attachment B, Page 16 of 5 9 .  
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Q I will be with you in a minute. Okay. 

A Okay. At $ 5 . 3 3  per net ton below minimum annual 

,olumes. 

Q Do you know whether CSX agreed to waive dead freight 

)enalties for 2 0 0 4  as part of its proposal? 

A They agreed to no annual volume requirements for 

: 0 0 4 .  

Q Would that be the equivalent? 

A That would be the equivalent of that. However, there 

rould be - -  there are minimums established for 2 0 0 5  through 

1008. So  if we had - -  if we had not achieved the million tons, 

let tons at Big Bend of direct served origin mines per year in 

! 0 0 5  through 2 0 0 8 ,  we would have - -  we would have been 

;ubjected to dead freight penalties. 

Q Does Tampa Electric face the possibility of dead 

Freight charges in its contract with TECO Transport? 

A Certainly. Except I have a whole host, a variety of 

)laces where I can actually buy my coal. It doesn't have to be 

lust direct of rail-served mines, which are few and far between 

.n western Kentucky, to my knowledge. 

Q Are you familiar with the document titled, CSX 

:ransportation Directory of Origin Coals? 

A I don't know that I have actually read through the 

mtire document. I know it exists. 

Q Do you recall whether you have actually held a copy 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22 

23 

2 4  

2 5  

196 

n your hand? 

A I think I have. 

Q Okay. 

A From my understanding of reading that document is 

.here is only one company that actually has direct origin mines 

n western Kentucky, and that would be Alliance. And that is 

.ypically where we buy our Illinois Basin coal out of, is the 

restern Kentucky market. 

Q Do you know whether Tampa Electric buys more of its 

loa1 from western Kentucky, from Illinois, or from Indiana, or 

'rom another region? 

A I don't know the exact breakdown of all the mine 

.ocations. I would say we buy a fair amount from western 

Eentucky and from Illinois, and it changes from time to time 

)ased on who actually provides us a bid and who actually has 

iupply available. 

Q Say for 2004, what percentage of Tampa Electric's 

:oal will come from western Kentucky? 

A I don't have those percentages readily available. 

Q And you don't have even a ballpark in your mind? 

A No, I don't. 

Q The same question with regard to Illinois Basin coal? 

A Well, that is all Illinois Basin coal. 

Q Okay. And then the same question with regard to 

specific Illinois sources? Don't know? 
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A I believe we have provided that kind of information 

n our interrogatory responses, so someone could actually do 

.he math. 

Q Have you personally been to western Kentucky to the 

loa1 fields there? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Have you visited rail origin mines there? 

A I have visited mines that have rail origin in 

:ndiana, in Illinois, but I have not been to the Alliance mines 

.n western Kentucky. 

Q Which mines have you been to in Indiana and Illinois? 

A I have been to the Summerville Mine. I have been to 

:he Zeigler Mine. I have been to - -  I'm trying to think, the 

:ugar Camp Mine in Illinois. I have been to the Arclar Mines 

.n - -  I'm not sure if they are actually in Illinois or not. I 

lave been to the Galatia Mine in Illinois, and I have been to a 

rariety of - -  I have been to TECO Coal's mines in eastern 

:entucky, and I've been to Pittsburg mines, as well. As well 

IS  Powder River Basin mines. I think that covers my coal mine 

1 ourneys . 

Q Do you recall which Pittsburg mines you have been to? 

A I was to the Blackswell Mine and the Humphrey Mine. 

ictually went underground at Humphrey. 

Q Cool. I have been to some surface mines, but I've 

lever been underground. It's pretty neat. 
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Isn't it true that as of January lst, 2004 Tampa 

llectric Company documents show that at that point Tampa 

:lectric had 500,000 tons of uncommitted spot coal for Big Bend 

md/or Polk in 2 0 0 4 ?  

A I don't know when those documents were produced. 

'here could be as much as 500,000 tons. There also could not 

)e as much as 500,000 tons, as well. We just make our buying 

lecisions given our burn, our actual burn. That is not a lot 

)f burn that can actually swing one way or the other, as well 

is the fact that that might actually be filled with petroleum 

:oke purchases. 

Q Do you know whether the Galatia Mine loads rail 

lirect? 

A It does. 

Q Which railroad? 

A The Illinois Central. 

Q Same question with Zeis 

A Zeigler loads on the UP, the Union Pacific. 

Q Summerville? 

A I want to say the Indiana - -  it is an Indiana 

railroad, I believe. I can't recall the exact name of it. 

Q Sugar Camp? 

A To my knowledge it does not have rail service. 

Q Do you know whether the Cardinal or Cardinal Voyer 

(phonetic) Mine in western Kentucky loads direct rail? 
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A I do not. 

Q The same question for the Cimarron Mine (phonetic)? 

A I do not. I'm not familiar with those mines. 

Q Charlay (phonetic) ? 

A I don't know. 

Q LoadStar? 

A I don't even know if - -  LoadStar was in bankruptcy. 

:Om not sure if they have actually emerged or not. I'm not 

iure. 

Q Do you know whether - -  do you know whether they have 

lirect rail loading capability? 

A I do not know. 

Q The same question, the Blackswell Mine. 

A The Blackswell Mine does have direct rail. 

Q And the Humphrey mine? 

A I'm not sure if the Humphrey Mine is still 

)perational . 

(Brief recess. ) 

3Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q Okay. My next question for you is regarding the 

:urrent coal contracts. When does the Zeigler contract expire? 

A The Zeigler contract expires at the end of 2004. 

Jowever, it has a possibility of being extended an additional 

:en years. 

Q And is that possibility up to Zeigler? 
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A It is a right of first refusal. 

Q In favor of Zeigler, right? 

A They have the right. 

Q Is that up to the fuel tonnage of the contract? 

A That is 1 5 0 , 0 0 0  tons, which is not the full 

:ommitment that we currently have. 

Q When does the Illinois fuel contract expire? 

A I believe at the-end of this year. 

Q Is there a similar right of first refusal in favor of 

:he supplier in that contract? 

A No. 

Q The same question for the Peabody Patriot? 

A Can I ask what you are looking at, because it might 

ictually help me. 

Q Certainly. Maybe not, but you certainly may. I am 

.ooking at a table from Dr. Sansom's that he derived from - -  

A That is helpful. I believe this contract is up at 

:he end of this year. 

Q And by "this contract," you mean the Peabody Patriot? 

A Yes. 

Q The same question for the Dodge Hill contract there. 

A The Dodge Hill contract goes through at least 2007, 

ind has a market reopener at that time. And I believe it 

Joes - -  it could go as far - -  as long as 2010, if I remember 

:orrectly, but - -  
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Q Thank you. And the same question - -  

A It actually - -  excuse me. It may have a reopener in 

0 0 5  and it could go as long as 2 0 0 7 ,  I believe, is what I 

ieant to say. 

Q Thank you. And, finally, the same question with 

espect to the Dodge - -  the next question, the Dodge Hill put 

ontract. 

A The put contract is right in line with the Dodge Hill 

ontract. 

Q Thank you. Does Tampa Electric presently have a 

ong-term contract with Alliance? 

A No. 

Q I didn't think so. I knew that you had bought some 

If their coal. I j u s t  wanted to inquire. 

We have seen references in some documents to a coal 

,upplier identified as Contractor Number One. Can you tell us 

rho that is? 

A That is a spot contractor that has a mine in Nebo, 

:entucky. It is a brand new supplier that we have not used in 

he past. 

Q And you said that is a spot supplier? 

A Yes. 

Q Is there a long-term contract with that supplier? 

A NO. 

Q When did you sign the contract with that supplier, 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

202 

ontractor Number One? 

A I believe we started taking shipments either late 

ast year or early 2004. 

Q In terms of duration of the supply, how does that 

,pot contract work? 

A What is the term of the contract? 

Q Well, it is confusing. Well, let's ask that question 

irst. What is the term of the contract? 

A It is an 18-month agreement. 

Q Is there a specified volume that Contractor Number 

)ne is to deliver over that 18-month period? 

A Yes. 

Q Does it have a minimum and a maximum? 

A No, it is just a specified volume. 

Q And what is that volume? 

A I believe it's 350,000 tons. 

Q Thank you. 

A So it is about - -  it is minimal. 

Q And you do have - -  where does Contractor Number One 

.oad? 

A I don't recall the exact river dock location. 

Q Is it one of the river docks listed in your exhibit 

locument? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you know whether Contractor Number One has the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

203 

apability to load rail? 

A I do not know that. 

Q Do you have a long-term contract with Black Beauty or 

oal from the Black Beauty Mine? 

A We have a long-term agreement. Black Beauty has 

everal different components with Arclar. We have an agreement 

ith them. We call it Black Beauty. But, you know, they own 

everal different mines. 

Q When does that contract expire? 

A 2007. 

Q What is the minimum tonnage under that contract? 

A I believe it is 500,000 tons. I wish I had my coal 

ontract matrix with me. I didn't know I was going to get 

sked questions about that. We have provided all of this 

nformation in production of documents to interrogatories. 

Q Is the Black Beauty contract with the entity known 

s - -  I think you said Arclar? 

A Yes. 

Q When was that contract signed? 

A It might have been as much as a year or two ago. I 

lon't recall the exact time frame. 

Q Thank you. 

MR. BEASLEY: I need to confer with my client for a 

loment. 

MR. WRIGHT: Certainly. If you need to take a break 
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nd speak to your client privately, that's completely okay. 

MR. BEASLEY: Okay. Good. Thank you. 

MR. WRIGHT: Anytime. I know you would do the same 

or me. 

(Off the record.) 

MR. WRIGHT: We can go back on. 

Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q MS. Wehle, do you participate in preparing any forms 

hat are filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

egarding Tampa Electric's coal supply arrangements? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Are you aware of a routine report known as FERC Form 

8 0 ?  

A Yes, I am. I am aware of that. 

Q And it is my information that that is filed every two 

'ears in Docket Number IN79-6. Does that sound right to you? 

A That sounds right. 

Q Who files the Form 5 8 0 ?  

A I believe our regulatory group probably files it. 

Q And it is filed in the name of Tampa Electric 

!ompany ? 

A That is correct. 

Q Isn't it true that what is filed in that form 

ncludes the minimum tonnages and the term in years of the 

itility's coal contracts? 
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A I don't recall the specifics of what is in that 

. .  .iling. I haven't looked at one in quite sometime. 

Q Do you what, if any, information in that FERC Form 

i80 is protected as confidential under the applicable rules or 

)rders of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission? 

A I don't know the answer to that. 

Q Are you aware that the form is filed every two years? 

A I believe that that was the calendar rotation. 

Iowever, for some reason it seems as though the last filing was 

ielayed, so it might have actually gone longer than two years. 

Q 

ire filed? 

In your job do you normally review those when they 

A Again, it goes to our regulatory group. I think 

:here might - -  there is some participation by the folks on my 

;taff to help provide some of the data that is ultimately 

Filed. But I think it is - -  it is sort of a concerted effort, 

,ecause if I recall correctly, it is a very thick filing. 

Q Does it actually include the contracts themselves? 

A The physical contracts? 

Q Yes. 

A I don't think so. I don't know. 

Q Okay, When you said it was very thick, I thought it 

night have been. 

A There are lots and lots of pages of data. 

Q Okay. Moving on, how much syn-fuel does Tampa 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

11 

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22 

2 3  

2 4  

2 5  

2 0 6  

lectric buy as a proportion of its total plus or minus five 

illion tons a year? 

A I believe we are in the neighborhood of 10 to 20 

ercent, in that range. 

Q And then there is another, say, plus or minus 4 5 0 , 0 0 0  

ons of pet coke out of the five million total? 

A Again, give or take. It just depends on the given 

ear. 

Q Well, I was using 60 percent of 750,000 tons which 

re numbers that you gave me, and that's why - -  

A That is just for Polk Power Station. We do burn pet 

oke at Big Bend. 

Q And do the syn-fuels come from the sources identified 

n your exhibit? 

A Which exhibit? 

Q Document Number 3, Page 2 of 2. I'm not asking 

pecifically which one. 

A I believe that is correct. 

Q When you analyzed the CSX rail bid, how much did 

'ou - -  how much of the company's total solid fuel did you apply 

he syn-fuel adder in adjusting the rail rate? 

A To a million tons. 

Q One million tons? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q And what value did you use for total expected 
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Lemurrage charges per year? 

A I believe it is calculated in Footnote Number 2. 

Q If you could just tell me. I have the blacked out 

rersion, so I would appreciate it. 

A On a per ton basis we looked at 6 cents additional, 

ind by using the demurrage rates that were in the tariff at 

;300 per hour. 

Q And so that 6 cents per ton was the total estimated 

lemurrage impact in your analysis, is that accurate? 

A That's correct. 

Q Who prepared this exhibit? 

A It was prepared under my direction. 

Q Do you remember who specifically prepared it? 

A I think, again, it was a concerted effort by my 

;taf f . 

Q Did Mr. Duff participate in preparing this exhibit? 

A I don't believe he did. 

Q And was that 6 cents then on five million tons? 

A Yes. It is actually 5.5 million tons, the full 

imount of the higher proposal. 

Q On Page 31 of your testimony - -  

A Which testimony are we back to? 

Q I am still on the direct. 

MR. BEASLEY: 31 you said? 

MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 
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IY MR. WRIGHT: 

Q There is a concluding clause, part of a bigger 

ientence, it begins at Line 9 and continues to Line 10 that 

lays, Tampa Electric determines that the bidders' proposals 

iere not competitive. And my question for you is who 

bersonally made that determination? 

A Again, based on the analysis that was performed, I 

.ecommended to my management that those proposals be rejected. 

Q So would I be correct to understand that the 

letermination was made by someone higher than you in the 

:ompany based on your recommendation? 

A Yes. 

Q And who would that have been? Would that have 

.ncluded Mr. Christmas? 

A Yes. 

Q Would it also have included Ms. Jordon? 

A No. 

Q Anybody else besides Mr. Christmas? 

A No. 

Q Would there have been anyone from regulatory affairs 

>r regulatory relations involved in that decision? 

A No. They would have been apprised of it. 

Q I would like to ask you to look at Page 38 of your 

:estimony, please? 

A Okay 
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Q At Lines 16 through 18 there is a reference to the 

tverage of the lowest costs paid by Florida Municipal Utilities 

ior coal deliveries by rail. Would it be more accurate for 

:hat to state the average of the lowest publicly available 

:osts paid by Florida Municipal Utilities? 

A Of those that we have identified that we regularl: 

)oil. I believe the order says publicly available rates. 

Q ~ And so inserting the word publicly available costs 

:here would actually make that a more accurate statement, 

rouldn't it? 

A Yes. 

Q You don't actually know for a fact what the lowest 

:ates paid by municipal utilities in Florida for coal 

:ransportation are, do you? 

A We poll them and they provide those rates to u s .  

Q Do they provide you their actual confidential 

tnf ormation? 

A They provide us what their rates are, their actual 

rates that they pay. 

Q And is that broken down into publicly available 

information and nonpublicly available information? Are all Of 

:hose rates publicly available? 

A I don't know the answer to that, because we go 

iirectly to the municipality and ask them for those, and they 

respond. We don't actually have to do a public records search 
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or that. 

Q Do you know whether volume discounts are included in 

he values that they report to you? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Do you treat all of the rates quoted to Tampa 

lectric or reported to Tampa Electric by the subject 

unicipalities as being publicly available for purposes of 

electing those that are used to calculate the benchmark? 

A Yes. 

Q That is one bit of good news. I am done with the 

irect testimony. 

A The bad news is you have a lot of yellow tabs on the 

ther . 

I am now Q Yes. I know that you have been asked - -  

ooking at Page 4 of your rebuttal testimony. 

A Okay. 

Q And I know that you have been asked some questions 

.bout the information contained at the bottom there already, 

!ut I think I am going to ask you a different question - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  than what you have been asked so far. And that is 

rhat exactly is the nexus between TECO Transport's net 

)peratin9 income and true market-based prices? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q Well, as I understand some of the intervenors 
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testimony, for example, that I think by Dr. Hochstein, they 

3ssert that Tampa is overpaying for waterborne transportation 

oy as much as $40 millions a year, to which you respond that 

you believe that is ludicrous, to use your word, because TECO 

rransport's earnings, its net income are only $15.3 million. 

A For all of its business. 

Q For all of its business. But my question for you is 

dhat, if anything, is the nexus between TECO Transport's net 

income and true market-based costs? 

A The best I can answer that is with the - -  I don't 

know what their market-based costs are. I know what their 

narket-based rates are. And the best I can say is the 

allegations that we're being overcharged by $40 million a year, 

given the revenue stream that we provide to them, and given the 

fact that that would represent nearly half, just for 2003, 

seems incredible to me. I don't know what the nexus is. 

Q Would you agree that a company's earnings are a 

direct function of its revenues and its costs? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. So if costs are what they are and revenues are 

less, the earnings are going to be less, correct, for any given 

company? 

A If all other things remain equal, that is correct. 

Q And isn't it true that companies have, you know, in a 

given year a significant number of corporations in the United 
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ltates actually have negative earnings? 

A Yes. 

Q And wouldn't you agree that that is because the 

)rites that they are able to charge for their goods or services 

.n the market are not sufficient to produce revenues to produce 

)ositive earnings? 

A It is either that or their costs are too high. It is 

)ne or the other. 

Q Right. But wouldn't you agree that it would have to 

)e - -  it would have to be - -  given costs, wouldn't you agree 

.hat the revenues are insufficient to produce earnings at the 

)rites they are able to charge in the market? 

A Yes, that would be correct. 

Q Referring to the benchmark again, briefly, you have 

xiticized the intervenors for not offering - -  and I think this 

:omes to the end of your testimony, but I'm going to jump to 

.t. You criticize the intervenors for not offering an 

ilternative. Are you aware of Dr. Sansom's suggestion that the 

ictual rail bid should provide an appropriate benchmark? 

A I believe that he had that in his testimony. 

Q Leaving aside for the moment your positions, your 

:ompany and your personal positions with regard to the accuracy 

,f what the real rail cost would be, wouldn't you agree that 

:he actual rail bid, the actual cost of obtaining services by 

rail appropriately adjusted would, in fact, be an appropriate 
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lenchmark against which to measure waterborne transportation 

!OStS? 

A It could serve as one of the alternatives. However, 

think you would have to take it into consideration with the 

Ither municipalities and the state and what they are charged. 

,gain, it is the benchmark that allows for rail service into 

he State of Florida. 

Q Well, wouldn't a more appropriate benchmark for Tampa 

:lectric Company be the cost. of rail service to Tampa Electric 

!ompany ? 

A It could be. 

Q If the Public Service Commission were to decide to go 

.hat particular route, again, leaving aside the disagreements 

re have over the actual calculation of the rail cost, would you 

lave any reason to quarrel with such a decision? 

A I really haven't thought about it enough to actually 

iorm an opinion at this point. 

Q Okay. Just a question about the RFP process. Did 

'ampa Electric send an RFP to International Marine Terminal? 

A We sent an RFP to Kinder Morgan, who owns IMT. 

Q Was there any personal contact between you or anyone 

:lse at Tampa Electric Company and Kinder Morgan or anyone at 

:MT regarding their bid before it was submitted? 

A I believe we discussed that earlier today. 

Q I apologize for the duplication. 
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A That's okay. And, again, it is in the call log, 

I. don't know what the date was. 

Q Thank you. But is the answer to my question yes 

Ear as you recall? 

A I don't know what the date was. 

Q Oh, you don't know what the date was, so you don 

mow where it was relative to when the bid was received? 

A Right. 

and 

as 

t 

Q I understand. Thank you. On Pages 2 1  and 2 2  of your 

rebuttal testimony at which you discuss the proposals submitted 

:o Tampa Electric by CSX Transportation on October 23rd, 2 0 0 2 .  

lo I understand your testimony correctly to be that you did not 

:onsider this to be serious? 

A That was one of the - -  I don't know that I would say 

:hat it wasn't serious. I believe CSX was serious at the time, 

:hat they wanted to recapture their market share, our market 

;hare of revenues. I'm not sure that the bid was bona fide, 

:hough, given the reasons I cite here. 

Q Okay. We will come back to that in a second. You 

just said you thought CSX was serious, but I have a little 

:rouble comparing that to the statement on Page 2 2 ,  Line 11, 

vhere you say Tampa Electric did not consider it a serious 

xoposal. Can you help me out? 

A Well, I don't think - -  the proposal may not have been 

serious. I do think that they wanted to seriously recapture 
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ur business. 

Q Do you believe that CSX was ready and willing to sit 

nd talk with you toward negotiating a contract based on the 

roposal they tendered to you on October 23rd, 2 0 0 2 ?  

A I don't know whether they were or they weren't. I 

now that we told them time and team again that we had a 

urrent contract and that actually had minimum tonnage 

eliveries through 2 0 0 3 ,  yet they provided us this particular 

roposal. 

Q Well, when you told them time and time again that you 

ad a contract, does that indicate that they continued to ask 

ou time and time again for the opportunity to present a 

roposal and to negotiate with Tampa Electric toward a coal 

ransportation contract? 

A Restate your question. 

Q Were they relatively persistent 

egotiate with Tampa Electric toward a co 

ontract? 

A They were very persistent. 

in trying to 

1 transportati n 

Q Do you know whether the entire proposal was 

onditioned on CSXT's board approval or only the rail 

acilities piece of it? 

A I don't recall. 

Q There were specific prices included in that proposal, 

'ere there not? 
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A Yes. 

Q Did you regard those prices as serious price 

Iroposals? 

A I regarded those prices as extremely aggressive. 

Q You never entered into any negotiations with CSX, did 

,ou? 

A I have not, no. 

Q Did.anyone else at Tampa Electric? 

A In prior times when we have actually taken rail 

lelivery from them. 

Q Thank you. In response to or following on their 

)ctober 23rd, 2002  proposal? 

A NO, we did not. 

Q You didn't. When were the coal-fired boilers at 

:annon Station closed? 

A The actual boilers closed themselves? It was 

;taggered dates during 2003. 

Q I have some other information that indicates that 

:hey were staggered dates, all of which occurred before 

Iecember 31st, 2 0 0 2 .  Are you telling me that that is 

maccurate? 

MR. BEASLEY: You said 2 0 0 2 ?  

MR. WRIGHT: Correct. That is my question. 

THE REPORTER: I don't recall that. I mean, I don't 

:now that your information is accurate. 
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Q I'm asking. 

A Oh, okay. NO, 

3gain, staggered dates. 

Q Until when? 

A I believe the 

in October of 2003. 

217 

we continued to burn coal there, 

ast unit that actually fired coa was 

Q When was the decision made by Tampa Electric to close 

Zannon as a coal-fired plant and recreate it as the repowered 

natural gas fired Bayside generating station? 

A That was part of the consent decree decision. When 

the actual decision to take it off line and actually create a 

schedule? 

Q That is my real question. 

A Okay. I believe in either late January or early 

February of 2003. 

Q Thank you. I am looking at what appears to be an 

unofficial transcript of a deposition that I think perhaps was 

taken in the 030001 docket. And I want to ask you a couple - -  

it does relate also to your testimony on Page 23 - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  regarding dead freight impacts that Tampa Electric 

was facing relative to its TECO Transport contract during that 

time frame. Do I understand your testimony at Page 23 of your 

rebuttal to indicate that Tampa Electric was facing potential 
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lead freight charge impacts totalling over 15 million 

.ssociated with its relationship with TECO Transport? 

A Right, related to our Gannon - -  our early shutdown of 

he Gannon Station. 

Q Thank you. I apologize for interrupting. 

What did Tampa Electric's final dead freight 

iability, if anything, turn out to be in connection with that 

losure? 

A There was a dead freight total at the end of 2003. I 

on't recall what it was. I believe it was less than the 15 

lillion, but it was - -  it might have been in the neighborhood 

f 10 to 12 million, but that figure was waived. 

Q And it was waived by TECO Transport? 

A TECO Transport. 

Q If you recall, when did TECO Transport agree to waive 

he dead freight liability, whatever it was? 

A Well, it would have had to have been after the year 

as complete and the total minimums, the total shipments would 

ave been known. So I believe it was in early 2 0 0 4 .  

Q Looking at your rebuttal testimony at the bottom of 

age 24, you make this statement: The company seeks full 

upply contracts that optimize the company's needs. To what 

xtent does Tampa Electric seek proposals from rail source coal 

uppl ier s ? 

A Again, in the past when we have sought coal, we have 
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sked for it to be delivered to the river because we had a 

ransportation contract. And so if a rail-served mine chose to 

ither truck or rail to the river, they certainly could have 

,one that. 

Q If you know, how much of Tampa Electric's solid fuel 

nitially loads on rail on it's to way to the river? 

A I don't know that. Didn't you ask me that already? 

Q I don't think that I did. I think I asked you about 

-arious mines, but I don't think I asked you that question 

.bout the proportion or the number of tons? 

A I don't know those percentage off the top of my head. 

Q Is it substantial, do you know? 

A Well, I know the Zeigler contract, off the top of my 

lead, represents 20 percent of our commitment. 

Q Do I understand correctly that Zeigler loads directly 

.o Union Pacific? 

A That is correct. Galatia is another one which is 

:llinois Central. 

Q And am I also correct that Dotiki loads direct to 

:sx? 

A That's correct. 

Q Can you think of any others off the top of your head 

:hat do load rail direct that you buy? 

A That we currently have under contract or that we buy? 

Q Well, let's do currently under contract first. 
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A I think I have listed the ones that we currently have 

inder contract. 

Q Okay. 

A And, obviously, any of the other suppliers certainly 

fould have an opportunity to provide rail service or actually 

ruck to the river as an alternative. 

Q Referring to Page 2 1  of your testimony at Lines 6 

hrough 10, you make the statement that CSXT might be a partial 

ransportation solution if they were willing to make an all 

nclusive legitimate proposal for delivery to Big Bend, and if 

'ou were able to solve certain blending and storage 

imitations. My question for you is what would be the 

haracteristics of an "all inclusive legitimate proposal," as 

'ou use the term in your testimony? 

A One in which at a time at which we actually are not 

nder any kind of minimum contract with another supplier, one 

,here we could discuss and talk about all of the capital 

mprovements and capital that would have to be decided between 

he two parties. And then, obviously, just other terms and 

sarameters that would be included in a normal transportation 

roposal. 

Q A s  you sit here today, off the top of your head - -  or 

ctually it shouldn't be off the top of your head, because I 

hink you have thought about this a fair amount. Were there 

ny specific other parameters as you just used the term that 
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'ampa Electric's July 31st, 2003 bid did not address, CSXT's 

'uly 31st, 2003 bid did not address? 

A I can't think of what they would be off the top of my 

lead. 

Q Is it your position that approaching Tampa Electric 

n October of 2002 for rail deliveries beginning in 2004 was 

tot an appropriate time? 

A Remember, at the time we still had. a contract with 

'ECO Transport, and we had to offer them the right of first 

.efusal. So I believe it was premature at that time to add 

.nything with CSX. 

Q Well, couldn't you, at that point in time, have 

legotiated with CSX, obtained a contract for deliveries, 

lbtained a - -  as you use the term, an all inclusive legitimate 

lroposal for services to begin January 1, 2004 after the TECO 

'ransport contract then in effect would have expired, and then 

.ake that to TECO Transport and say meet or beat it? 

A Well, that particular proposal was not what we 

ionsidered to be a legitimate proposal, and, again, a bona fide 

Iffer. And we felt like we needed to conduct an RFP of other 

raterborne transportation suppliers in order to determine the 

lest offer to offer to TECO Transport at the time. 

Q Had you made the determination in October of 2002 to 

:onduct an RFP? 

A NO. 
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Q You didn't make that until May or June of 2003, did 

'OU? 

A Right. 

Q Couldn't, i.e., would it not have been possible for 

'ampa Electric to have negotiated a legitimate proposal with 

:SX's understanding that TECO Transport had a right of first 

.efusal during that general time frame and then used that in an 

!FP process or any other evaluation of alternatives? 

A Well, again, we would have probably chosen to survey 

.he market, as well, not just use CSX's offer as the meet or 

)eat proposal, and based on the fact that in my calculations of 

bur supply portfolio - -  or, excuse me, our coal portfolio this 

ras not the cheapest alternative. And so the offer that we did 

)resent to TECO Transport to meet or beat was actually the 

iheapest alternative. 

Q I understand your position, but my question is 

iouldn't Tampa Electric have accomplished that negotiation 0- a 

)roposal that would satisfy your all inclusive legitimacy 

:oncerns during a time beginning about 14 months before the 

'ECO Transport contract was due to expire? 

A We were not prepared to do it at that time. That was 

:SX's time frame, and I think I allude to the fact they were 

'eady to do that. We were not prepared to do it at that time, 

ind we had not chosen, like you say, to actually issue an RFP. 

Q Well, relative to the December 31, 2003 expiration of 
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he previous contract with TECO Transport, what would have been 

n appropriate time for CSXT to have presented to Tampa 

lectric an all inclusive legitimate proposal? 

A Well, they did actually present one during our RFP 

rocess and we utilized that, we evaluated it. 

Q So your testimony is that five months in advance of 

he expiration is an appropriate time for CSX to make that 

,roposal? 

A You know, CSX knew what our timing was and we were 

oing to do it according to our terms, not according to what 

uited CSX's timetable. And that determination, again, was 

lade in the springtime. 

Q Why do you say that CSXT's offer was not a bona fide 

Nf f er? 

A For the reasons I list in my testimony. The fact 

hat it - -  I don't recall exactly which page. 

Q 21. 

A That it was conditioned on their board approval, that 

t acknowledges that it would serve as a negotiating item by 

itating it would serve as a framework for further discussions, 

.nd we would be subjected to potential dead freight liabilities 

inder the parameters in that proposal even though they knew 

.hat we had a contract that actually extended through 2003. 

Q Other than the four items that you list beginning at 

.he bottom of Page 21 of your testimony, are there any other 
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'easons that you considered CSXT's October 23rd, 2002 proposal 

lot to have been a bona fide offer? 

A No, I don't think s o .  Not any that I can recall at 

his moment. 

Q On Page 28 of your testimony you have a statement 

)eginning at Line 13 that the other remaining utilities in 

'lorida purchased large amounts of low sulfur foreign coal 

recause their generating units lack scrubbers. Let's just run 

he list. I think it is true that Gulf Power does not have any 

icrubbed units at the present time, is that true? 

A I believe that is true. 

Q And I think it is also true that Progress Energy 

'lorida, Inc. has four coal units at Crystal River, none of 

rhich are scrubbed, is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q JEA and FPL together run the St. Johns River Power 

'ark units, and those are scrubbed, are they not? 

A One is a fluidized bed boiler. Again - -  

Q At Power Park is a fluidized bed? 

A I'm not sure if it is at Power Park or not. 

Q So, is the answer you don't know about St. Johns 

!iver Power Park? 

A I do not know. 

Q What about Seminole's Palatka units? 

A I believe those are scrubbed. 
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Q What about OUC's Stanton units? 

A I'm not sure about that. They may have actually 

nstalled scrubbers, whether or not they actually use them I'm 

ot sure. 

Q And the only other two coal-fired power plants I am 

ware of are Indiantown and Cedar Bay, and I believe that 

ndiantown is scrubbed. Do you know? 

A I do not know. 

Q Okay. And I believe Cedar Bay is, in fact, a 

luidized bed plant. Do you know whether that is true? 

A I don't know. 

Q I would like to ask you to look at the bottom of Page 

1 of your testimony. At Line 23 at the conclusion of a 

entence there you have been talking about potential cost 

mpacts associated with a rail transportation arrangement, and 

hen at the very end of the sentence you say to name a few. My 

uestion for you is can you name any others for us today other 

han the four items that you have listed immediately prior to 

hat to name a few statement? 

A If I can have a minute to read it. 

Q You bet. 

A Off the top of my head, I can't name any others. 

Q Okay, thank you. 

A Perhaps you can ask Ms. Guletsky tomorrow if you have 

n opportunity if she knows of any others. 
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Q Did you understand CSXT's July 31, 2003 bid to offer 

o carry fuel to Polk Station strictly as an option separate 

rom carrying coal to Big Bend? 

A In terms of it has a Polk option, I'm not sure 

hat - -  I mean, the two options that are offered are both means 

o get coal to Polk Power Station either by shuttle car from 

ig Bend or direct rail option. 

Q Let's just say if Tampa Electric were to have 

ccepted either of CSXT's bids, the one to two million tons a 

ear or the two to five and a half million tons a year bid, 

ouldn't it have been possible for Tampa Electric to keep its 

xisting transportation and supply arrangements for Polk intact 

nd just take one or two million tons as a minimum for CSX for 

ig Bend? 

A We could have negotiated that. 

Q And did you understand the bid to contemplate that 

ptional arrangement relative to the Polk supply, that is my 

uest ion? 

A I don't recall that being very explicit in the bid. 

Q Do you recall anything in the bid explicitly saying 

ou had to take solid fuel for Polk pursuant to either of the 

sptions offered in the bid? 

A What it said was that the commitment was that they 

,anted 80 percent of the total Polk fuel receipts annually for 

loth the shuttle car option and the direct rail option. 
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Q Was that not in association with agreeing to put in 

he rail handling facilities at Polk? 

A Yes. 

Q And did you understand the bid to give Tampa Electric 

he option just to say, okay with respect to some coal at Big 

lend, but no thanks on Polk? 

A I believe that we could have done that. 

Q If you would look at Page 42 of your testimony. I am 

ooking at relatively - -  

A Okay. 

Q I am looking at a relatively long sentence that 

)egins at Line 7 and concludes at Line 13, but I only want to 

isk you about what I characterize as the second half of that 

;entence beginning at Line 10, in which as I read your 

.estimony you characterize that Doctor Sansom's testimony on 

)ehalf of CSXT suggests that Tampa Electric should breach its 

!xisting coal contracts. Is that an accurate characterization 

)f your testimony? 

A Yes. 

Q Where in Doctor Sansom's testimony does he suggest 

:hat you should breach a contract? 

A I don't know that he specifically says the words 

,reach, but I don't have his testimony in front of me. 

Q Guess what, I do. 

MR. WRIGHT: Do you have it, Jim? 
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MR. BEASLEY: Yes. 

THE REPORTER: I do actually have it in front of me 

:t's going to take me a minute to find it. 

MR. WRIGHT: That's fine. 

IY MR. WRIGHT: 

Q I think the pending questions was t ed 

'OU to tell me where in Doctor Sansom's testimony you believe 

.hat he suggests that Tampa Electric breach its existing coal 

:ontract? 

A On Page 27 of his testimony, Mr. Sansom cites an 

:xample of our Galatia coal, which should have been terminated 

tnd TECO should not have bought Galatia coal in 2004 when it 

:ould have purchased less expensive rail origin coal in the 

;econd quarter of 2003. 

Q And that is what you were relying on for your 

;tatement in your testimony? 

A If we had in essence terminated that agreement we 

rould have - -  one of the allegations could have been breach. 

Q Isn't it true that that contract includes a specific 

:ight to terminate running in favor of Tampa Electric Company? 

A And that right expired before this time frame 

rouldn't have had the opportunity to. 

Q Exactly when did that right expire? 

A I believe it expired in 2002. 

Q On what date? 
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A I don't remember exactly, but I believe we have 

lrovided you with the contracts. 

Q You have provided us with parts of the contracts. I 

lon't recall whether - -  by agreement we agreed to let you all 

.edact certain parts of it and I don't recall whether that 

!articular piece was in there. 

A I want to say it was July of 2002 ,  and it might have 

.ctually been extended to August of 2 0 0 2 .  

MR. WRIGHT: Jim, could I just ask that you furnish 

hat answer to me in a letter. 

MR. BEASLEY: Sure. Okay. 

MR. WRIGHT: We don't need a late-filed. And if you 

mould cite me to the contract where that right to terminate 

lxpiration shows, okay? 

MR. BEASLEY: Okay 

IY MR. WRIGHT: 

Q It is true that Tampa E-xtric did not terminate t--? 

:alatia contract in accordance with its rights under that 

:ontract, yes? 

A That is correct. 

Q Do you have any quarrel with Doctor Sansom's 

.estimony regarding the Zeigler contract? 

A I would have to go back and read it. Can you 

.eference me a particular page? 

Q Page 31. 
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A What specifically? 

Q Do you agree with Doctor Sansom's testimony that 

!igler has the right to match any bid in the context of 

!igler's right of first refusal on a fully delivered cost per 

.llion Btu basis? 

A I believe that is what the contract actually states, 

ibject to check. 

Q Could Tampa Electric Company in giving Zeigler its 

.ght of first refusal select a rail origin bid and ask Zeigler 

) match the rail bid or to bid against a bid on a rail origin 

isis? 

A We could. But they don't have direct rail facilities 

id it would have to be railed to the river. 

Q Excuse me, what did you say? 

A It would have to be railed to the river. 

MR. BEASLEY: She said they don't have rail 

icilities. 

Q You don't have rail facilities at Big Bend? 

A To accept that coal. 

Q Again, assuming what we all know not to be the 

?ality, if there were rail delivery and handling facilities 

3r coal at Big Bend, could Tampa Electric ask Zeigler to 

cercise its right of first refusal relative to a rail bid, 

%livered? 

A If there were existing rail facilities? 
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Q That is the question, yes. 

A Yes. 

Q Has Tampa Electric done whatever it needs to do to 

iresent Zeigler with its right of first refusal? 

A We have presented them with a right of first refusal. 

Q On what basis in terms of where the coal is delivered 

;uch as FOB mine, FOB rail, FOB barge, whatever, on what basis 

lid Tampa Electric present its ROFR to Zeigler? 

MR. BEASLEY: That would be beyond 2004, Shef, So we 

rould need to defer on that. 

MR. WRIGHT: Okay. 

IY MR. WRIGHT: 

Q With the understanding that if we nail down that it 

.eally does end at 2004 we will strike this. Does the right of 

'irst refusal kick in in 2 0 0 5 ?  

A Yes. 

Q Say in terms of months, what is the typical duration 

If a spot coal purchase contract? 

A We typically look at spot as being roughly a year or 

ess. The other contract I mentioned was 18 months, I wouldn't 

'onsider that long-term, so it is in that range. 

Q How far in advance of ,the first delivery date under a 

,pot coal supply contract does Tampa Electric typically execute 

,uch a spot coal supply contract? 

A It can vary. If there is an immediate needed, it 
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,auld be more immediate, and so it could be very close to when 

.elivery commences. 

Q So it could be as little as a few days 

.ypothetically? 

A Hypothetically. 

Q How far in advance of the first delivery of the 

urrent spot contract does Contractor Number One did TECO 

,xecute that contract? 

A Three to four months in advance. 

Q And can you give me a typical lead time. Is it like 

ypically three to six months? 

A Again, it is going to depend on the immediacy of the 

.eed and how much we are looking for. If we are looking for 

ust a few barges to fill a particular need, a lot of times, 

'ou know, sometimes we will get offers from a variety of 

larties that have coal at a river dock that is already waiting 

md ready to load. And so they may actually approach us and it 

iight be a one-time loading. 

Q I understand that it can vary with at least all the 

iactors that you have mentioned. I" really just trying to ask 

.s  there a typical lead time for a spot contract from the date 

if execution to the date of the Zirst delivery. And if the 

inswer is no, that is okay. 

A I can't say that there is a typical amount of time. 

Q Have you signed spot contracts as much as a year in 
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tdvance of initial deliveries? 

A I'm trying to think of one. No, I can't think of 

me. 

Q Just as you sit here right now without asking you to 

.eview any further documents, what is the longest lead time 

'rom contract execution date to initial delivery that you can . .  

.ecall? 

A That Tampa Electric has experienced or that I can - -  

Q Well, that Tampa Electric has executed in your 

bersonal experience? 

A For a spot delivery? 

Q For a spot contract. 

A It could be six months in advance. 

Q Are you familiar with the coal procurement practices 

'f other utilities vis-a-vis the timing of their contracting 

nd deliveries? 

A No, I'm not. 

Q Do you interact with other coal buyers, say, at 

onventions, socially, anything like that? 

A Certainly. 

Q Do you ever talk about things like that? When I say 

ike that, I mean what we have b,een talking about, lead times 

'etween the time they execute a spot contract and when they 

tart taking delivery? 

A I can't recall a specific conversation where we 
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discussed that particular topic. 

Q Do you have any reason to believe that Tampa Electric 

is unique in having the spread being from a few da,ys to maybe 

six months? 

A I wouldn't imagine that we would be unique. I would 

3nticipate that there is a variety of parameters that utilities 

€ace and have opportunities presented with very short windows 

m d  longer windows. 

Q This doesn't really relate to any particular passage 

in your testimony. How often do you personally in your 

sosition evaluate future coal prices? 

A We receive the regular media publications that the 

Zoal industry provides of which they list their coal prices 

that they have been able to determine at least once a week if 

not more often than that, so I review those. 

Q And do those publications typically include 

information regarding spot contracts as well as long-term 

Contracts? 

A Typically it is spot contracts. 

Q Do any of those publications include information 

regarding long-term contracts? 

A I canlt recall off the top of my head. I do know 

though that we have gotten - -  you know, we do engage 

consultants in the business and have bought forecasts that go 

out quite a few more years than that. 
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Q And when you say you bought forecasts, do they 

forecast what it would cost you to - -  what it would cost for a 

utility more or less in Tampa Electric's situation to enter 

into a long-term, say three to five-year contract at a certain 

point in time in the future? 

A Yes, they provide their estimate of coal pricing from 

now and in 10 and 15 years for what coal prices would be on an 

annual basis for the different basins. 

Q And do those projections include both projections for 

spot prices and long-term contract prices? 

A I don't recall that they actually delineate that in 

there. 

Q And do you normally review those.forecasts that you 

purchase from these consultants, you personally in your job? 

A I will review them in a cursory fashion. Again, my 

staff reviews them in more detail. 

Q And in reviewing them do your staff routinely 

summarize them and let you know what is going on in the market? 

A Yes. 

Q I'm looking at your testimony at the bottom of Page 

50 and continuing on to Page 51 at which point you criticize 

Doctor Sansom's testimony regarding losses of coal via barge 

shipment relative to what he testified to are much lesser 

losses associated with rail shipment. You make the statement 

at Line 19 that Doctor Sansom's assertions are incorrect. And 
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iy question or questions for you are what are the bases for 

.our statement there? 

A That those particular assertions are that Mr. 

ansom - -  excuse me, Doctor Sansom states that there is a two 

'ercent Btu loss of coal that is transloaded for barge shipment 

,ue to multiple handling, and that there is an additional 

5-cent per ton Btu loss for coal that is transloaded for, I 

ssume, moisture gain. That has not been our experience. 

Q Have you conducted specific analyses of coals 

urchased in - -  purchased by Tampa Electric and delivered to 

ampa Electric of this issue, losses? 

A A very long time ago back in the early to mid-80s 

here was an analysis done. We tried to get our hands on it, 

ut could not find it, and my recollection of having read that 

as not in line with Doctor Sansom's assertions. That has not 

een our experience, it has been quite a bit less than that. 

Q When you say at Lines 23 and 24 that the quantity an 

uality of coal is measured when it is loaded onto a barge, I 

ant to ask you a couple of questions about that. 

A Sure. 

Q Is it measured when it is loaded onto a barge at the 

iver dock? 

A Yes. 

Q Is it on the basis of those measurements that Tampa 

lectric pays for the coal? 
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A Yes. 

Q Yes? 

A Yes. 

Q Does Tampa Electric subsequently measure the quantity 

tnd quality of coal when it is delivered to the coal pile at 

3ig Bend? 

A No, because it is commingled at Electro-Coal in 

)avant, Louisiana at our terminal. 

Q Do you measure it at Electric Coal? 

A On occasion depending on the needs of, for instance, 

)ur Polk Power Station to understand exactly what we are going 

.o be blending for Polk, so we will take samples of different 

)iles. 

Q But you don't do it on a routine basis? 

A Actually, I can't say routinely we do it, but we do 

ieasure it. And our quality assurance engineer on our staff 

.isits with Electric Coal as well as the river dock locations 

)n a routine basis to make sure that the scales are calibrated 

tnd that the sampling devices are bias tested and calibrated, 

ind that he actually does a program of round-robin testing with 

.he various outside labs that we use. 

Q You stated in a respon,se a minute or two ago that 

'our experience has been that losses are quite a bit less than 

isserted by Doctor Sansom? 

A Yes. 
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Q Do you have a number that you can attach to that 

pite a bit less statement? 

A I do not. 

Q I want to ask you some questions about your testimony 

it Lines 10 through 13 on Page 51. 

A Uh-huh. 

Q In which you are challenging Docto; Sansom's 

:estimony regarding additional as he characterizes it and you 

:haracterize it, additional inventory costs? 

A Uh- huh. 

Q You make the statement that Tampa Electric is 

reimbursed for only the cost of fuel purchased and associated 

:ransportation at the time of consumption. Now, that only 

ipplies to fuel burned, does it not? 

A Yes. 

Q Isn't it true that your fuel cost-recovery charge or 

fuel purchased power cost-recovery charge, if you wish, also 

includes a working capital cost for all Tampa Electric 

:ompany's inventory, coal inventory? 

A I don't know. I don't calculate that. 

Q Well, if it did include it as - -  if your rate 

ictually did include costs for c,oal inventory, then your 

;tatement would not be correct, would it? 

A Actually as I understand your question we have an 

illowable amount of inventory that we are allowed to actually 
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.nclude up to a 98 days supply. So this dollar for ex.tra 

.nventory I'm not sure actually applies. 

Q Well, that may be true relative to your position 

.is-a-vis 98 days of inventory, but if a lesser amount of 

nventory were determined to be reasonable and prudent, then 

rouldn't you agree that the difference between whatever that 

lumber of days is, say 50, and 9 8  would imply an extra working 

:apital cost for such inventory? 

. .  

A There would be additional working capital cost 

,ssociated with maintaining up to a 98-day supply. 

Q And regardless you will agree that Tampa Electric's 

'uel cost recovery charge does include costs associated with 

.he inventory as well as the cost of coal burned, will you not? 

A Yes. It is the carrying costs associated with that 

.nventory, which I think it is rather minimal. I'm not sure it 

.s a dollar a ton. 

Q Do you know what it is? 

A No, I do not, but I don't think it is a dollar a ton. 

Q Did you personally participate in negotiating the 

:ontract by which CSX carried those train loads of coal to - -  

A No, I did not. 

Q Have you ever particinated in negotiating a contract 

ior transportation of coal by rail? 

A My tenure within the fuels department never coincided 

rith that, so, no, I did not. 
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Q Do you monitor publicly available data regarding the 

oal inventories maintained by other utilities in Florida? 

A No, I do not. 

Q So you don't know whether utilities that have dual 

elivery, i.e., barge and rail delivery to their plants 

ypically have a lesser inventory requirement than those with 

nly one mode of delivery, do you? 

A No, I don't know that. 

Q Are you familiar with inventory data that is reported 

y utilities on EIA Form 7 5 9 ?  

A No, I'm not. 

Q Do you have knowledge of other Florida utilities' 

oal transportation and coal supply practices? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Well, what if anything do you know about the tonnages 

hat are delivered to other coal burning utilities by rail and 

y barge in Florida? 

A On occasion I have looked at their 423 reports. 

Q Are you aware that Progress Energy delivers in the 

ange of 67 to 70 percent of its coal to Crystal River by rail 

nd the balance by barge? 

A I don't know those peqcentages. 

Q Are you aware that Seminole Electric Cooperative used 

o take all of its coal at its Palatka plants by, I guess, 

)arge to rail and now it takes it all rail direct? 
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MR. BEASLEY: Object to the form. 

Q You can answer if you understood the question. 

A Can you repeat the question, please. 

Q I will try to break it up. 

MR. BEASLEY: Try to make it a question. 

MR. WRIGHT: I started with are you aware. 

Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q Are you aware that in the earlier days of Seminole's 

alatka plants operations they received their coal - -  

MR. BEASLEY: Off the record. 

(Off-the-record discussion.) 

Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q Do you know whether Seminole used to take its coal by 

arge to a rail delivery and then on to Palatka? 

A That is my understanding. 

Q And do you know whether in approximately 1998 they 

eased that practice and now take all of their coal by rail? 

A I don't know the date specifically. I understand 

hey do take their coal by rail, though. 

Q Thank you. During his deposition yesterday on 

umerous occasions Mr. Dibner asserted that Tampa Electric 

'ompany, it was his impression, ,was afraid if CSXT started 

arrying some coal, in fact, started carrying all the coal that 

'SXT would then basically put the barge company out of TECO's 

~usiness, in any event, and then seek to raise its rates. Did 
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rou ever discuss that issue with Mr. Dibner? 

A I don't recall discussing that with him. 

Q Do you share that opinion? 

A I believe it is a possibility. 

Q Are you aware of any such instance in which anything 

.ike that has ever occurred with respect to CSXT and any of its 

:us tome r s ? 

A I don't know all of CSXT's customers, so I'm not 

.ware of their entire population of customers and whether or 

lot that occurred. 

Q Well, are you aware of any instance in which you 

tould assert that it occurred? 

A I think I just answered that, that I'm not aware. 

Q MS. Wehle, I understand that you reviewed and to some 

legree, at least, relied on deposition testimony given by Mr. 

[erbert Russell Ball I think on behalf of - -  it was on behalf 

If Gulf Power, is my understanding, in Docket Number 030001? 

A Yes. 

Q At what would have been stamped as Bate's Pages 230 

nd 231 of that deposition transcript the following questions 

.nd answers occur. And I am going to read them one pair at a 

,ime and then ask you if you agr,ee with Mr. Ball's answer. 

The first question is, "Are there certain instances 

n which you would expect rail to be cheaper?" Mr. Ball's 

.nswer: "There are certain instances that rail is cheaper, 
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es. 'I 

Do you agree with that statement? 

A There could be certain instances where rail may be 

heaper. 

Q The next question and answer are as follows: Are 

here certain instances that - -  or, excuse me, "Are there 

1 would' usually be ertain circumstances under which ra 

heaper? 'I 

Answer: "Under which they would usually be cheaper?" 

The following question, "Yes. And perhaps if you 

ould just give an example of where it might be cheaper to ship 

y rail than by water." And here comes the substantive answer. 

A Okay. 

Q I won't read this to you, I will hand this to you. 

A Okay. 

Q Fair enough? 

A Thank you. 

Q His answer is, "Well, you know, in most cases, like 

n the case of the Galatia coal, that coal is loaded onto rail 

nitially at the mine. So you would expect that if you had a 

mlant that could be served by rail that it would be cheaper. 

f the coal is loaded into rail cars at the mine, then it would 

)e cheaper to deliver that coal all the way to the plant by 

ail rather than taking it off the rail, transload it onto 

larges and then shipping it by water. I mean, that is one 
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.nstance where I guess that rail could be cheaper." 

And most of this is highlighted. It begins at Line 

:1. Do you have it? 

A No, no, no. Okay. 

Q It begins at Line 2 1  there and continues to the end 

If the highlighted material on the next page. 

A I'm actually looking at - -  if I can recall. 

Q Just to make it clear, my question is: Do you agree 

rith that statement by Mr. Ball? 

A He kind of delivers this scenario and he says that is 

me instance where I would guess that rail could be cheaper. 

t could be cheaper if the rail rates were cheaper than the 

raterborne rates. 

MR. WRIGHT: I'm done. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

MR. WRIGHT: You're welcome. Thank you. 

MR. BEASLEY: Could we take a couple of minutes f o r  

.edirect? 

MR. WRIGHT: Certainly. 

(Off the record.) 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

IY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Wehle, you were asked some questions regarding 

Ir. Dibner's models and whether there were any assumptions in 

lis modeling and in his recommendation that favored Tampa 
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Zlectric or its customers. Do you recall those questions? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you listen to Mr. Dibner's deposition yesterday? 

A Some of it I did. 

Q Did you listen to the portion of his deposition where 

le stated that he was conservative with his inputs into his 

lode 1 s ? 

. .  

A Yes. 

Q That he included little, if any, allowances for 

:ontingencies, and strived to come up with a rate that was 

;ignificantly below a market rate as opposed to at or just 

)ennies below a market rate? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you hear his testimony that his recommended rate 

.s  on the order of two dollars, approximately, below the 

ipplicable market? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you think his efforts in this regard favor the 

nterests of Tampa Electric and its ratepayers? 

A Yes, I believe that is very favorable to ratepayers. 

Q There was some discussion about call log references 

ind handwritten notes, and whetber Tampa Electric informed any 

if the respondents that would accept less than a full 

requirements bid. Do you recall those questions? 

A Yes. 
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Q Did CSXT, in fact, submit a bid for less than Tampa 

llectric's full requirements? 

A Yes. 

Q You were shown a 2 0 0 2  fuel adjustment chart where the 

rail rate was shown as being less than the waterborne rate 

iuring that time frame. Do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q Does that say anything to you about Tampa Electric's 

rillingness to rely on rail transportation when it, in fact, is 

L less expensive option and good for the ratepayers' economic 

mterests? 

A Yes. 

Q What does that tell you? 

A That had we been presented with a rail option that 

ias less expensive, we would have chose to either pursue it or 

ictually provide it to TECO Transport under the right of first 

:efusal clause to meet or beat. 

Q Did the Florida Commission approve Tampa Electric's 

iaterborne coal transportation costs as reasonable for 2 0 0 2 ?  

A Yes. 

Q You were asked some questions about Order Number 

i o 2 9 8  and whether it required oq favored bidding. Did that 

)rder require Tampa Electric to bid its waterborne coal 

:ransportation needs? 

A No, it did not. 
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Q Did the order expressly contemplate, instead, that 

rampa Electric would negotiate a rate with TECO Transport for 

Lts waterborne needs? 

A I'm sorry? 

Q Did the order assume that Tampa Electric would 

. ,  
iegotiate a rate with its affiliate - -  

MR. WRIGHT: I object to this line of quest 

rhe order speaks for itself. 

MR. BEASLEY: She was asked questions about 

)rder. 

oning . 

the 

MR. WRIGHT: You can ask her if she understands it or 

ipplies it, but I don't think you can ask her to interpret it, 

Jim. 

MR. BEASLEY: All right. 

3Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Do you understand the order as contemplating that 

'ampa Electric would negotiate a transportation contract with 

.ts affiliate as opposed to bidding for that work? 

A I understand that to be - -  that could be an option 

:hat we would enter into with our affiliate. 

MR. WRIGHT: Could we go off the record for a second? 

(Off-the-record discuqsion.) 

3Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Okay. Let's plow forward. Mr. Perry asked you some 

pestions about burden of proof in these proceedings. Who do 
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‘ou believe should have the burden of proof when it comes to 

lemonstrating the need to modify or reject any existing 

:ommission-approved methodology? Should it be the proponent of 

my change in that methodology, or the parties who are relying 

)n that methodology as the Commission has prescribed it? 

A It should be the proponent of changing that 

iethodology. 

Q Is Tampa Electric free to ignore any approved policy 

If the Commission? 

A No. 

Q Do you believe any other party that comes before the 

:ommission is free to ignore or disregard existing 

:ommission-approved policy? 

A NO. 

Q You were asked whether you had any type of goal built 

.nto your personal goals concerning minimizing the cost of fuel 

ind purchased power. Do you recall those questions? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you, in fact, have any type of goal that is 

!xpected of you within your company that you can tell us about? 

A Actually I do, I just couldn’t recall it at the time. 

Q What is that? 

A It is a goal of review of a l l  of the clauses, if you 

fill, including the fuel and purchased power clause, and it is 

set on the expected expenditures in those clauses and whether 
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)r not we actually save money within those clauses. So it 

70Uld include minimizing any fuel and purchased power costs. 

Q And who would be the beneficiary of any successful 

.esults in that regard? 

A The ratepayers. 

Q You were asked some questions regarding whether the . .  

:SXT proposal might be used or serve as a benchmark as opposed 

o simply being considered as a bid. Do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q What would suggest to you that the CSXT proposal 

hould not be treated as a benchmark? 

A Well, it just is a bid currently. And actually we 

.ave provided or actually evaluated the bid, and you would have 

o consider all of the additional costs associated with that 

#articular bid, including the additional surcharges for fuel, 

he additional RCFAF charges, and the like in order to actually 

onsider that bid in its totality. 

Q You have a document attached to your testimony that 

,ddresses some of those things that were left out or not 

,eflected in the bid? 

A Yes. 

Q When that subject camq up today, and specifically 

then the staff gave their three proposed potential resolution 

cenarios, you provided me a document I believe that you have 

he original of and I made copies to share with the parties? 
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A We're losing documents. 

Q There's one. Do you recognize that document? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q What is it, if you would tell me, and how does it 

.elate to the exhibit attached to your testimony? 

A It is an expansion of the exhibit attached to my 

.estimony. 

.t does arrive at the same summary and numbers, if you will. 

t provides additional detailed information on the different 

'omponents of the transportation agreement. 

It actually provides more detail'ed information, but 

Q With all those components added in, what does the 

'omparison show in the far right-hand side relative to the rail 

lroposal as adjusted with the Tampa Electric/TECO Transport 

ontract rate? 

A It shows that just with these items associated with 

hese additional charges added to make a comparable evaluation 

o the TECO Transport bid that the rail proposal is more 

xpensive, given our 2004 tonnage requirements, by $1.06 per 

on. 

Q Does this include any capital costs that would be 

equired in order to receive coal by rail at Big Bend Station 

r Polk Station? 

A No, it does not. And it also doesn't include any 

dditional costs, as I reference in my testimony, of the 2 to 

6 a ton that we would incur to bring existing supply sources 
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IO a rail head. 

MR. BEASLEY: I would like to have this marked as a 

ieposition exhibit. 

(Confidential Exhibit 6 marked for identification.) 

3Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Wehle, you were asked some questions about the 

!ffect of the Gannon shutdown and the potential for dead 

freight charges that Tampa Electric would have to pay to TECO 

:ransport in connection with that event. Do you recall those? 

A Yes. 

Q Is it your understanding that Tampa Electric was 

ibligated to pay dead freight to TECO Transport? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recall the amount that was discussed earlier? 

A I believe it was in the neighborhood of 1 0  to 12 

iillion, that was my recollection at the time. 

Q And what occurred with respect to that obligation? 

A TECO Transport actually waived that particular 

)bligation. But had they - -  I believe what would have occurred 

ts  if we had entered, possibly entered into an agreement with 

someone else, another supplier let's say, they probably would 

lot have waived that particular ,obligation and it would have 

Ieen borne by the ratepayers. 

Q Does the relationship between Tampa Electric and its 

iffiliate pay off for the ratepayers where it might not be if 
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t were a third party you were dealing with in that 

'ircumstance? 

A Absolutely. 

Q You were asked some questions about back in the fall 

If 2 0 0 2  when CSXT approached Tampa Electric regarding the 

lotential for rail service to one or both of . .  Tampa Electric 

'ompany's generating stations. Do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q Were there any particular factors, constraints, or 

oncerns at that time that affected Tampa Electric and its 

bility to consider entering into proposals of that nature? 

A Yes. We had a lot of uncertainty that was facing us, 

iuch of which I touch on in my testimony. ,The Gannon Station 

,hutdown that we had to comply with in the consent decree by 

iecember 3 1 ,  2 0 0 4 ;  further consent decree requirements related 

o Big Bend and how, and if - -  how we were going to be 

'omplying with those were really two big uncertainties at the 

ime . 

Q I believe'Mr. Wright asked you a question concerning 

rhether working capital cost recovery is recovered through the 

'ost-recovery clause with respect to an inventory cost 

'omponent. Do you recall that question? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you wish to correct your answer? 

A I do. After further consultation with Mr. Aldazabal, 
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dho is intimately familiar with that clause, there is .no 

inventory cost component related to the fuel clause. 

Q Also, staff handed out an exhibit which,shows a 

schedule reflecting the capital structure of TECO Energy with 

Campa Electric and Peoples Gas removed. Do you recall that? 

. ,  A Yes. 

Q And on Page 49 of the annual report of Tampa Electric 

lompany that was also handed out as part of that exhibit, do 

rou know where TECO Transport would be reflected in the 

.ong-term debt section of that report? 

A I believe it would be in the diversified companies 

mtside of TECO wholesale generation. 

Q And what is the amount for that?" 

A For 2003 it is 118.2 million. 

Q Okay. The amount shown on the cap structure chart 

:hat was supplied shows for TECO Energy minus Tampa Electric 

:ompany, including Peoples Gas, it shows a long-term debt 

:omponent of - - 

A I believe these are billions. 2.069.4 billion. 

Q Okay. And the 118 million that you referred to is 

inly a component of that, right? 

A That is correct. That is for all diversified 

:ompanies. 

Q Including - -  

A Including TECO Transport. 
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Q So it is only a very small amount of the total 

.eferred to in that chart provided by staff? 

A That is correct. 

Q You were given three scenarios by staff, the first of 

rhich I will call the foreign coal by unidentified barge 

iypothetical. Do you recall looking at this document? 

A Yes. 

Q In your view, would this proposal be more economical 

or Tampa Electric's customers than your existing contract with 

'ECO Transport? 

A No, it would not. 

Q Well, if it were approved, what would you think the 

,ffect would be on Tampa Electric's customers? 

They would experience an increase in transportation A 

:osts. 

Q 

:oal b] 

Can you say that this proposal relying on foreign 

an unidentified and as yet determined barge provider 

iould offer Tampa Electric the same reliability as the existing 

!oal transportation agreement with TECO Transport? 

A No, I do not believe that to be the case. 

Q Would this proposal be consistent with the coal 

landling, storage, and blending peeds of your company? 

A No, I do not think it would be. 

Q The next hypothetical that was presented to you was 

- I will call it the railroad movement hypothetical. DO you 
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:hink this would be more economical for your customers. than 

Tour existing arrangement with TECO Transport? 

A No, I do not. 

Q On what do you base that conclusion? 

A If I could see the components of that. 

Q Sure. 

A Well, initially, you know, our analysis showed that 

. .  

.he rail movement was not the cheapest alternative to barge 

iovement. So right off the bat it wouldn't be the most 

tconomical choice for our ratepayers. 

Q And what would be the impact of going with this 

,roposal from the standpoint of your ratepayers? 

A Increased transportation costs to the ratepayer. 

Q The other, I guess, is the ocean segment cost of 

:ervice hypothetical. Do you recall that one? 

A Yes. 

Q And that is the one where you would have market r S 

ior the first two segments, the river and the transloading and 

:hen the cost of service proposal for the cross-Gulf portion of 

:he transit, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q In your view, is this statement refuted in any way by 

:SXT's preparation in this docket? 

A Yes. 

Q How? 
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A CSXT is a competitor in the marketplace, and as such 

.he associated cost-of-service hypothetical scenario should not 

ie applied because there is a relevant market for the ocean 

iomponent . 

Q Is this proposal and the conclusion upon which it is 

lased, that there is no market for the ocean barge service, 

,efuted by Mr. Dibner's testimony? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Do you believe that this approach would be consistent 

,ith the observations in Order Number 2 0 2 9 8  regarding the 

ifficulties associated with administering a cost-of-service 

'ased method of regulation? 

A No, I do not think that. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. 

MR. VANDIVER: Jim, could I ask one or two quick 

.uestions? I have heard something new that I haven't heard 

'efore. It will just take a second. 

MR. BEASLEY: Sure. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

,Y MR. VANDIVER: 

Q Ms. Wehle, is it your testimony that - -  did I 

nderstand you to say that had Tampa Electric changed 

uppliers, TECO Transport would not have forgiven the dead 

reight issue for the Gannon? 

A I believe that would have been the case. 
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Q And what do you base that belief on? 

A They are no longer servicing our needs. They were 

:ontractually due those monies. 

Q And so your belief is that - -  I thought that debt was 

iorgiven in January 2 0 0 4 ?  

That's correct, after the contract was signed and 

tfter we knew exactly what the dead freight would have been 

:alculated to be. It was forgiven after the dead freight 

.iability was actually established. 

. ,  
A 

MR. BEASLEY: So it was really forgiven. 

3Y MR. VANDIVER: 

Q So the contract - -  when was the freight contract 

;igned? 

A October 6th, 2003. 

Q Was there an explicit quid pro quo? 

A No, there was not an explicit quid pro quo. 

Q And it never came up in conversation? 

A Oh, it came up in conversation quite a bit, quite a 

,it. We were constantly reminded of the fact that there was 

iead freight liability established. 

Q Who specifically mentioned it for TECO Transport? 

A I have heard that term, and those numbers used by the 

,resident. 

Q Mr. Rankin. 

A Mr. Rankin. Their CFO, Mr. Bresnahan, and others in 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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3 organization. 

Q And did that affect your decision to award the 

itract to TECO Transport? 

A Not at all. 

MR. VANDIVER: That's all the questions I have. 

mk you. 

MR. BEASLEY: We would like to read and sign. 

MR. WRIGHT: I have recross, I'm sorry, but you 

ised something new. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

MR. WRIGHT: 

Q This relates to your goals. 

A Yes. 

Q Do those goals exist in writing? 

A Yes. 

MR. WRIGHT: May we have those as a late-filed 

Iositio exit, please. 

(Late-filed Exhibit Number 7 marked for 

+ntification.) 

MR. WRIGHT: 

Q I have a couple of questions about Deposition Exhibit 

MR. BEASLEY: It would be cost-recovery reduction 

i l S .  

MR. WRIGHT: I want to see her total, the goals for 
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ier. I assume they are all in one document. Is that a fair 

i s  sump t ion? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. BEASLEY: I'm just saying that cost-recovery 

reduction is what the nature of the goal is. 

MR. WRIGHT: Well, I would characterize it as her 
. .  

ierformance bonus goals. 

MR. BEASLEY: I don't know that it is performance 

ionus; it's just a goal. 

MR. WRIGHT: Employee performance goals, does that 

Iork for you all? 

MR. BEASLEY: It is? 

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 

MR. BEASLEY: Certainly. Late-filed 7. 

Shef, this is already covered in her exhibit. 

MR. WRIGHT: Sorry? 

MR. BEASLEY: This is already covered in her rhibit. 

MR. WRIGHT: Well, I think I am entitled to ask about 

:his. 

1Y MR. WRIGHT: 

Q Do the barge charges shown here include any charges 

ior demurrage? 

A NO. 

Q Do they include any fuel surcharges that might be 

ipplicable to barge transport? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes. 

Q Where do those show up specifically? 

A They are embedded in the rate. The rate is comprised 

If a fixed variable and fuel component. 

Q Including a fuel surcharge? 

A No, there is no surcharge on the January 1, 2 0 0 4  

ates. The fuel is already embedded in that rate. 

Q And these are ' 0 4  rates? 

A These are January 1, ' 0 4 ,  rates compared to January 

, ' 0 4 ,  rail rates. 

Q Does it include any costs to get coal either by rail 

r truck to the river docks indicate in the left-hand column? 

A No. 

Q Does it include any discounts associated with the 

ail offer? 

A No, it does not. You would have to assume that we 

ould be entitled to those discounts given our coal supply 

ocations and the actual tonnages. 

MR. WRIGHT: I understand. Okay. Thank you. 

MR. BEASLEY: One last question. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Why did you consider the demurrage on the rail to be 

n incremental cost? 

A Because the Sargent and Lundy reports indicated that 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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:he facilities as built would have us incur demurrage for every 

;ingle train load that we received at Big Bend Station to the 

:une of, I believe, six hours on the four-hour facility. And 

:o you had to assume that for every single shipment that we 

Jould receive we would actually be incurring demurrage. The 

reason why we didn't include it on the river component is 

)ecause there is no such restriction. We do not experience 

:hat restriction, and so you couldn't assume that in this 

;cenario. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. 

(The deposition concluded at 8 : 0 5  p.m.) 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 031033-El 
OPC'S ISTSET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 1 
PAGE I OF 1 
FILED: JANUARY 5,2004 

1. WP in the Tampa Electric chain of command decided to issue the'Request for 
Proposals? State the date, purpose and persons attending discussions 
regarding the issuance of the RFP. 

a. 

b. 

When was the decision made? 

Was the decision subject to approval by John Rarnil and/or a committee of 
managers? If so, give the date of approval and attendees at the meeting 
granting such approval. 

Were minutes kept of the meeting? c. 

A. The decision to issue the RFP was ultimately made by John Ramil, then 
President of Tampa Electric. The company had been evaluating options for 
negotiating waterborne transportation needs once the existing contract expired. 
Under the existing settlement agreement with the Florida Public Service 
Commission, as described in Commission Order No. 20298, "Tampa Electric 
may negotiate its contracts with its affiliate in any manner it deems reasonable. 

a. 

b. 

The decision to issue an RFP was made in June 2003. 

The decision was made by John Ramil after he received input from the 
Wholesale Marketing and Fuels Department and the Regulatory Affairs 
Department. 

c. No minutes were kept. 
(I 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 031033-El 
OPC'S 1'' SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 8 
PAGE 1 OF 1 
FILED: JANUARY 5,2004 

8. 

A. 

How do cost models compare to actual costs to provide a given service? 

In general, the closeness of a cost prediction from a model to actual costs to provide a 
service is dependent on the absence of chaotic events, the quality of the model's 
construction, the accuracy of the data used and the skill, knowledge and judgment of 
the modeler. One purpose of a cost model is to provide a basis for understanding the 
drivers that bidders use. These drivers are operational, unit costs, asset-based, and 
financial. Sharp differences between spot rates and long-term contract rates exist. 
Spot rates reflect short-term cash flow maximization under a wide range of returns on 
assets. In the worst of times these rates provide minimal and sometimes negative 
returns on assets, sometimes in desperate attempts to avoid laying off personnel and 
de-activating equipment. In the best of times, they provide returns that exceed the 
costs of new equipment by substantial margins. By contrast, long-term contract rates 
tend to closely approximate the full costs of doing business, with appropriate margins 
for risks and uncertainties. An appropriate cost model, e.g., a model that is accurate, 
comprehensive and appropriately detailed, that considers full operating costs, 
including the retums or earnings on the assets and working capital employed that are 
needed to incent a company to operate in a particular trade route or region or to bid 
for business that may entail various risks, will provide a reasonable cost as compared 
to actual costs to provide a given service. 

17 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

OPC’S IsT SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 9 
PAGE I OF 2 
FILED: JANUARY 5,2004 

DOCKET NO. 031033-El 

9. Given Mr. Dibner‘s conclusion in the testimony filed on September 25, 2003, regarding 
the ocean segment at page 20, line 21-25, does TECO Transport have a de facto 
monopoly over the coal transportation at issue in this proceeding? 

No, TECO Transport does not have “a de facto monopoly over the coal transportation 
at issue in this proceeding.” A monopoly is a situation of extreme market power in 
which one provider has exclusive control over or possession of a commodity or 
service. This description is not apt for any segment of the transportation network that 
TECO Transport provides for Tampa Electric’s waterbome coal movements. There is 
a market for each segment of waterborne transportation services used by Tampa 
Electric. 

First, there are five large companies that could potentially serve Tampa Electric’s 
inland river transportation needs, if those companies chose to do so in the locations 
where Tampa Electric requires service. Second, there are at least two terminals that 
could serve Tampa Electric’s needs, as demonstrated by the fact that Tampa Electric 
received a valid terminal services bid from a provider other than the incumbent. Third, 
with regard to the ocean segment, Mr. Dibner‘s statement in his testimony filed in 
Docket No. 030001-El on September 25,2003. was the following: 

A. 

As a result of my analysis, I concluded that no existing fleet or 
combination of Jones Act dry bulk barges or ships other than the TECO 
Transport fleet is capable of competitively serving Tampa Electric’s 
needs from a capacity and price standpoint. [page 20, lines 21-25] 

Mr. Dibner then directly proceeded to explain as follows. 

All of the other fleets and combinations of vessels are committed to 
hauling other products in the dry bulk market and the government- 
impelled preference trades. Therefore, my analysis has determined that 
the appropriate market rates for the ocean segment are based upon the 
continued use of the TECO Transport fleet and reflect the capital, 
operating and opportunity costs of those vessels. [page 20, line 25 - 
page 21, line 7] 

Mr. Dibner‘s statement was intended to convey the fact that, given the supply of 
oceangoing vessels and their current availability, it should not be a surprise that no 
ocean segment bids were submitted in response to Tampa Electric‘s RFP. Tampa 
Electric’s contractual relationship with TECO Transport benefits Tampa Electric and 
has for more than forty years. Tampa Electric’s ocean shipping need is unique. Given 
Tampa Electric’s continuing use of coal and associated growth in shipments over the 
years, there are now no other companies that need as much large-scale and efficient 
seaborne bulk coal coastwise transportation. The TECO Transport core fleet is 
dedicated to serving Tampa Electric’s needs, and as a result, it is the most efficient 

18 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

OPC'S Isr SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 9 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

i - FILED: JANUARY 5,2004 

DOCKET NO. 031033-El 

and least cost option for the company's ocean-going coal movements. The fact that 
the present supply of vessels in the market does not include a second fleet of the size 
and capacity to serve Tampa Electric does not reflect a TECO Transport monopoly; 
rather it reflects the competitive and efficient use of the market's available operating 
capacity. 

Mr. Dibner's testimony describes the existing supply of ocean-going vessels operated 
by companies other than TECO Transport and demonstrates that it is not structured 
for efficient provision of ocean transportation for the volumes of coal that Tampa 
Electric moves. While scores of other barges and ships operate in the ocean-going 
fleet, no single operator controls more than one large vessel, and almost all operable 
equipment is busy. Tugs, barges, and ships that exist in the ocean-going trade are 
generally smaller, specialized or limited in numbers and are otherwise occupied in 
domestic coastwise or preference cargo trades (Jones Act trades). However, TECO 
Transport is clearly not a monopoly because, as in the case of the inland river 
transportation providers, if one or more operators of vessels engaged in the ocean- 
going trades chose to modify its operations to provide the services required by Tampa 
Electric, they could do so, and TECO Transport would not be able to prevent that. 

19 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 031033-El 

A. 

OPC’S SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 27 
PAGE 1 OF 1 
FILED: FEBRUARY 2,2004 

Referring to Bates Stamp 134, 135 and 136, does the fuel cost included in this estimate 
include the total cost of fuel for the retum voyage to Davant? Likewise, do the fixed and 
variable costs include an assumption that the total costs of ocean transport vessels shall 
be recovered from ratepayers with no allocation of expenses or revenues as a result of 
backhaul? Please discuss the reasons why no allocation of backhaul expenses or 
revenues is appropriate in this instance. 

Tampa Electric understands that the aforementioned Bates stamp pages refers to Mr. 
Dibner’s testimony and exhibit and therefore answers as such. Yes, fuel cost for a return 
to Davant is included in Mr. Dibner‘s model. Mr. Dibner estimated the costs for voyages 
that will be required to serve Tampa Electric’s volume and type of transportation needs. 
He based his calculation on the estimated average cost of service for the core fleet that 
serves Tampa Electric, without allocation for backhaul revenues or expenses. Mr. Dibner 
determined that there is no marginal backhaul business. Therefore, backhaul does not 
affect the market for transportation services, and it would not be appropriate to include 
backhaul in setting rates. 

t 
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3. Has Tampa Electric or Mr. Dibner inquired as to why lngram did not bid on TECOs 
solicitation? If so, what was the result of the inquiry? 

A. No, neither Tampa Electric nor Mr. Dibner has contacted lngram or any other recipient of 
Tampa Electric’s 2003 RFP for waterborne transportation services to ask why the 
companies did not submit a bid in response to the RFP. 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 031033-EI 
STAFF'S I* SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. I 
PAGE I OF 3 
FILED: JANUARY 6,2004 

1. Please provide the results of Tampa Electric's most recent test bum of South 
American coal at the Big Bend Station. In your response, please identify the fusion 
temperature of the South American coal test bumed. 

Attached are the results from Tampa Electric's most recent test bum of South 
American coal at Big Bend Station. The fusion temperature of the coal tested was 
2,663" Fahrenheit, H=W, in a reducing atmosphere. 

A. 

L 

1 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Big Bend Station Colombian Coal Test Burn Final Report 

Summary 

During the period April through June 2003, Big Bend Units 1-4 consumed approx. 8OK tons of Colombian 
Coal. The bulk of the coal (68K tons) was consumed by BB4 at blends of up to 60 percent. BB Units 1-3 
consumed the remaining 22K tons at 20-30 percent blends. No significant operational issues were observed 
throughout the tests. This includes slag tapping, fouling, slagging, LOI, opacity, and NOx. 

The Colombian coal tested was a high BTU coal with low ash. The chlorides were also very low (0.03%) 
which is a benefit for the FGD system and the station chloride balance. One limitation is the percentage of 
Colombian in BB1-3 should be held to 30 percent or less because of slag tank freezing concerns due to the 
high ash fusion temperatures. 

In conclusion, the Colombian coal appears to be an acceptable alternative coal. The test bum confirmed it 
could be consumed at up to 60% in 8 8 4  and up to a 30% in units BB 1-3. 

Discussion 

Coal Analysis Parameters 

As seen in the analysis below, the Colombian coal is similar to Big Bend's normally consumed coals. (An 
ash mineral analysis was not available) The notable exceptions include the Chlorine, S02, and the ash 
fusion temperatures. 

A very beneficial component is the 0.03 percent chlorine level, which is only 15-30 percent of our typical 
coals. Since currently over 80% of the chlorides entering the station come from the coal, the use of 
Colombian coal would significantly reduce the risk associated with FGD chloride levels and also 
proportionately reduce the blowdown requirements and O&M. (Reduced lime, dibasic acid, defoamer, 
filter cake disposal) 

The second parameter, the s u l k  content, is only 1.1 Ibs S02/MBTU which approx. 75 percent of our 
typical fuels for FGD use. Normally, the low Sulfur content adversely affects fly ash resistivity, which 
results in precipitator performance issues. However, we experienced no significantly precipitator 
performance issues throughout the test. 

The final parameter, the ash fusion temperatures, is 300-400 deg-F higher than our highest typical coal. 
This could result in slag tapping issues in the BB Units 1-3. For this reason, the Colombian was limited to 
30 percent in these units. This is not an issue in BB4, a dry bottom unit. 

The coal analysis was received fTom a Colombian lab: Inspectorate Colombia LTDA Cert. # 01 -8677 from 
Duke Energy Merchants, LLC. An ash mineral analysis was not available.. 

1 

Prowrtv. units 

BTUilb, as-fired 
Ibs S02/MBTU 

Moisture, % 
Volatiles, % 
Chlorine, % 
Fluorine, ppm 
HGI 
Ash Fusion Temps 

Ash, Yo 

12,400 
1.1 
6.0 
9.0 
36 

0.03 
20 
46 

Comoarisons to BB Tvoical Coals 

similar to STD-H 
very low, (4.5 typical for BB) 
little low 
normal 
normal 
low (0.10 more typical) ;help control chlorides 
normal I low 
slightly lower (50's more typical) ; harder to grind 
300-400 deg-F higher than ZGLR thickens slag in wet bottom units 
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Colombian Coal Test Burn Report 
Page Two 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
P A Q E L  O F 2  

Chronology of Test Burns 

Below are the test bum stadstop times and percentages during the evaluated periods: 

BB1.W: Srart6/4@20 % BB3:Start6/15 @30% BB4: Start4/22@20% 
Start4128 @ 50 % 
End 5/08 @ 50 % 

End 616 @ 20 % End 6/22 @30% 

Tons Consumed 4,153 7,476 67,830 

Total Consumed BB1-4: 79,459 

Test Observations 

As seen in the test chronology, BB4 consumed the majority of the Colombian Coal because of slag tap 
issues in the wet Mom BBI-3. Comments regarding slag tapping, fouling, slagging, LOI, Opacity, and 
NOx are as follows: 

Slag Tapping 
We did not expect or experience any slag tapping issues in BB1-3 because we deliberately held the 
Colombian coal fraction to no more than 30%. This effectively raised the ash fusion temperatures only 100 
deg-F. 

Fouling & Slagghg 
As evidenced by PI system steam temperature charts, there was no evidence of fouling or slagging in the 
boiler areas. 

LO1 
Because ofthe volatile nature of the LOIS, no significant Wends were detectable in the routine W&Fs LO1 
tabulations during the test bums in any of the units 

opacity 
The PI system did not indicate any significant variations in opacity in MY of the test bums. The Colombian 
coal content was held to 50% (3 Ib S02NBTU) to avoid possible fly ash resistivity / opacity issues. 

NOx 
The PI system indicated no significant NOx variations in any of the test bums 

li 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

STAFF’S 3& SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 13 
PAGEIOF3 
FILED: AUGUST 21,2003 

DOCKET NO. 030001-El 

13. Please identify all individuals, including consultants, who developed or provided 
assistance in developing Tampa Electric’s current request for proposals for coal 
transportation service beginning in 2004 (RFP). For each individual identified please 
provide name, business address, employer, and qualifications and experience, 
including experience in developing RFPs for the transportation of coal or other bulk 
commodities. 

The individuals listed below developed or provided assistance in developing Tampa 
Electric’s Request for Proposals (RFP) for coal transportation service beginning in 
2004. Their qualifications and experience are also provided below. 

Hugh W. Smith, Vice President Energy Trading and Sewices 

A. 

Tampa Electric Company 
P.O. Box 11 1 
Tampa, FL 33601 

Joann T. Wehle, Director Wholesale Marketing and Fuels 
Tampa Electric Company 
P.O. Box 11 1 
Tampa, FL 33601 

Karen L. Bramley, Manager Coal Supply 
Tampa Electric Company 
P.O. Box 11 I 
Tampa, FL 33601 

Tampa Electric Company 
P.O. Box 11 1 
Tampa, FL 33601 

Dibner Maritime Associates, LLC 
151 Laurel Road 
Chestnut Hill, MA 02467 

Martin C. Duff, Fuels Strategist * 

Brent Dibner, President 

Qualifications 
Hugh Smith has extensive knowledge of the coal industry and possesses significant 
experience in negotiating all types of fuel supply and fuel transportation agreements. 
Since 1990, he has held positions of increasing responsibility overseeing Tampa 
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DOCKET NO. 030001-El 

Electric's fuel procurement activities. As Vice President of Energy Trading and 
Services, he is responsible for the areas of Asset Management, Wholesale 
Marketing and Fuels, Resource Planning and Environmental Affairs, as well as the 
Human Resources and Financial responsibilities of Energy Supply. In 1995 he was 
promoted to Director of the Environmental and Fuels Department after leading the 
Fuels Department from 1990 to 1995. He graduated from the University of Florida in 
1978 with a Bachelor of Science degree and began his career with Tampa Electric in 
1979 as a chemist in the Production Department. 

Joann Wehle has considerable fuel procurement experience. She has been ' 

responsible for directing all activities associated with the procurement and delivery of 
coal, gas, oil and petroleum coke to Tampa Electric generating stations since taking 
the position of Director of the Fuels Department in 2001. She also oversees the 
evaluation of proposals for the Wholesale Marketing and Fuels Department. which 
she heads. She was employed in the Fuels Department as a Senior Contract 
Administrator from 1995 to 1998 and retumed as Director in 2001. In 2002, the Fuels 
and Wholesale Marketing departments merged and she assumed the Director's 
position. Prior to assuming the Fuels directorship she served as Director of Audit 
Services for TECO Energy, reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors. She holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration with a 
concentration in Accounting from St. Mary's College in Notre Dame, Indiana. She is 
a certified public accountant and certified intemal auditor. 

Karen Bramley has worked in Tampa Electric's Wholesale Marketing and Fuels 
Department since 1999, and she is experienced in the fuel procurement process, 
including soliciting competitive proposals and evaluating proposal results. Since 
2002, she has been Manager of I Supply. During her tenure in the department 

negotiation, issuance and administration of fuel supply contracts. Her evaluation of 
solicitation responses considers the responsiveness of an offer to the stated bid 
specification, terms and the expected reliability of potential suppliers. Her evaluation 
also includes an analysis of commercial terms that takes into account hiskjrical and 
projected inflation factors. cost of money, escalation terms, and market trends. She 
makes recommendations for the solicitation response that will provide the greatest 
reliability and value for Tampa Electric's ratepayers. She completed her Master's 
degree in Public Administration from the University of South Florida in 1993. She 
received a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990, also from the University of South 
Florida, and has been employed by the company since 1996. . 

Martin Duff also has experience with fuel procurement and transportation services. 
Since 2002, he has been employed as a Fuels Strategist in the Wholesale Marketing 
and Fuels Department, where he develops strategies to reduce oil and coal costs 

she has been primarily respond 9 le for solicitation, preparation, evaluation, 
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while balancing inventory and transportation needs and maintaining an optimal ratio 
between long-term and spot-market coal contracts. He joined the Fuels Department 
in 1990 as Coordinator of Fuels Transportation to direct solid fuel shipments that 
included river transportation, the use of terminal services, and Gulf transportation. 
He was also responsible for procuring residual and distillate oil and all fuel trucking 
contracts. He has been employed by Tampa Electric since 1980. 

Brent Dibner is President of Dibner Maritime Associates, LLC. An acknowledged 
expert in the field of bulk transportation and logistics, his clients include many of the 
world's largest integrated oil companies, leading independent ship owners, ' 

shipyards and the financial institutions that serve marine transportation industries. 
During a 25-year consulting career at Mercer Management Consulting, Inc., he 
directed all consulting activities related to the maritime industry. In 2002, he founded 
Dibner Maritime Associates, LLC, and he continues to consult for Mercer 
Management Consulting. He assists clients in developing effective strategies and 
operational programs to compete and grow in global and domestic transportation, 
logistics, and commodity based marketplaces. He has testified before the United 
States Senate, the Federal Maritime Commission and in various admiralty and civil 
marine proceedings. He holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from 
the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration and a Bachelor of Science 
degree in naval architecture and marine engineering from the University of Michigan. 

Y 
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DOCKET NO. 030001-El 

Please describe the process by which Tampa Electric developed its current RFP. In 
your response, please identify the indiiual(s) responsible for each particular stage 
of the development process. 

Listed below are the significant tasks completed as part of the process for 
developing and reviewing Tampa Electric's RFP. Responsible individuals are also 
listed. The individuals who developed the RFP have significant experience in 
issuing solicitations for proposals, evaluating proposals and negotiating contracts. 
They also have extensive industry and market knowledge gained through ' 

participation in fuel supply and transportation markets as described in the company's . .  - 
response to Interrogatory No. 13. 

Task 
Assessed transportation market trends and 
developed information requirements for the 
RFP 

Reviewed Ten-Year Site Plan for minimum 
annual quantities for the 2004-2008 time 
period 

Reviewed Consent Decree to develop 
timeline for possible reductions iq coal bum 

Prepared draft solicitation 

Prepared bid list 

Individual(s) Responsible: 
Joann Wehle 
Karen Bramley 
Martin Duff 
Brent Dibner 

Karen Bramley 
Martin Duff 

Karen Bramley 

Joann Wehle 
Karen Bramley 
Martin Duff 

Joann Wehle 
Karen Bramley 
Martin Duff 
Brent Dibner 

Prepared letters to bidders 

I 

Karen Bramley 
Martin Duff 

Y 
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' 
9 Reviewed solicitation package including all Hugh Smith 

quantities, terms and conditions by Joann Wehle 
management and consultant Brent Dibner 

Updated company management about Hugh Smith 
solicitation status Joann Wehle 

_.. . .  . .  

I 
" 
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15. 

A. 

Please identify all individuals, including consultants, who will assist in evaluating 
responses to Tampa Electrii’s current RFP. For each individual identified please 
provide name, business address, employer, and qualifications and experience, 
including experience in evaluating responses to RFPs for the transportation of coal 
or other bulk commodities. 

The following individuals are expected to assist in evaluating responses to Tampa 
Electric’s current RFP: 

HughSmith 
Joann Wehle 
Karen Bramley 
MartinDuff 
Brent Dibner 

Each individual’s business address, employer, and qualifications and experience are 
identified in the company’s response to Interrogatory No. 13. 

6 
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16. Please describe the process by which Tampa Electric will evaluate responses to its 
current RFP. In your response, please identify the individual@) responsible for each 
particular stage of the evaluation process. 

Listed below are the significant tasks Tampa Electric will complete as part of its 
process for evaluating responses to its current RFP. Responsible individuals are 
provided for each particular stage of process. As described in the company’s 
response to Interrogatory No. 13, the individuals listed have significant experience in 
issuing solicitations for proposals, evaluating proposals, negotiating contracts and 
extensive industry and market knowledge gained through participation in fuel supply 
and transportation markets. 

1. 

A. 

’ 

Evaluate bids to determine compliance with bid requirements. Bids that are 
submitted late are disqualified and retumed unopened to bidder. 
Disqualification or knockout criteria are categorized as financial or operation 
related, which are defined as follows: 

Financial related: 
Active bankruptcy by the transportation provider 

e Pending or incomplete reorganization plan to emerge from bankruptcy 
Credit rating/ financial condition of the company/ alternative credit support 
capability 

Operation related: 
Lack of sufficient capacity to pfrform the services requested in the RFP 

e Inability to perform coal and/& petroleum coke blending- Tampa Electric 
requires a precise blending and storage of multiple coal types 
Limits on operations - Tampa Electric requires a seven day a week, twenty- 
four hour a day operation 
Inadequate storage capacity/pile maintenance - Tampa Electric requires 
that a facility have enough capacity for storage in distinct locations of 
multiple coal types 

Individual(s) Responsible: Joann Wehle, Karen Bramley, Martin Duff and Brent 
Dibner 

I 
Y 
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2. Follow-up by Tampa Electric with individual suppliers to clarify any outstanding 
questions on proposals and request additional information, if needed, to fully 
evaluate bids. 

Individual(s) Responsible: Joann Wehle, Karen Bramley and Martin Duff 

3. If bid responses do not address the bid requirements or bid response terms and 
conditions vary, adjustments will be made to put each bid response on a 
comparative basis. Such potential adjustments may be made to the following: 

Volume In the event the bidder can provide a substantial 
portion, but not the full volume of the required 
services 

The tonnage rate at which a bidder is able to load or 
unload vessels or barges 

Detention of a vessel during loading or unloading 
beyond the scheduled time of departure and the 
compensation paid for such detention based upon 
the proposed tonnage rate or “free time” allowed 

Speed in performance of or completion of a vessel 
loading or unloading ahead of the scheduled time of 
departure and the compensation for such prompt 
loading or unloading based upon the proposed 
tonnage rate or “free time” allowed 

Cost at’a terminal to obtain and analyze coal 
costs samples for compliance with contract or 

environmental specifications 

Cost of weighing the tonnage of a vessel if a facility 
does not have certified belt scales 

The cost of adding dust suppression to either coal or 
petroleum coke. Dust suppression is required on all 
vessels brought to the generating stations for 
environmental purposes 

Fleeting Cost associated with available space to essentially 
‘park” barge tows prior to unloading 

. 

Vessel loading/ 
unloading rates 

Demurrage rates 

Despatch 

Samplinglanalysis 

Weighing costs 

Dust suppression 
costs 
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Tug assistance The number of tugs used to assist arriving 
vesselsbarge tows based on several factors such as 
local weather conditions. vessel maneuverability, 
and vessel's draft. These items are also important to 
ensure that minimum safety standards are met 

charges 

Barge cleaning Cost of cleaning barges 

Early pay discounts Any discount Tampa Electric would receive for early . 

Fuel comparison 

Bid price Allocation of fixed, variable and fuel 

Escalation indices How proposed escalation indices have changed 
historically 

Insurance limits and Acceptable limits and coverage, especially if the 

IThnterface The cost to provide an interface with our existing IT 
systems 

6 Taxes, fees or Includes any applicable taxes, environmental fees, 
subcontracted governmental impositions, and charges for 
services stevedpring 

payment 

Comparable comparison of fuel base or base dollar 
amount, location and timing 

components 

coverage bidder is self-insured 

Individual(s) Responsible: Joann Wehle, Karen Bramley, Mattin Duff and Brent 
Dibner. as necessary. to provide advice to Tampa Electric on making the 
necessary adjustments 

4. In the event that Tampa Electric does not receive an adequate response for the 
bid requirements for each segment, the company and its consuitant will utilize 
inland, terminal and ocean transportation models to determine an appropriate 
market rate for a five-year contract given Tampa Electric's tonnage 
requirements and length of move. The consideration of market rates will 
include traffic trends, supply/demand trends, fuel costs, utilization 
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of open hopper barges, cost of capital, costs, operating conditions, capacity 
requirements, rates of return, taxes, and market conditions. 

Individual(s) Responsible: Joann Wehle, Karen Bramley, Martin Duff and Brent 
Dibner 

5. Provide management a complete analysis of evaluated bids and an 
assessment of the market. 

Individual(s) Responsible: Joann Wehle, Karen Bramley and Brent Dibner. 

L 
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20. Please define "integrated waterbome transportation services" as that term is used in 
Tampa Electric's RFP. Based on this definition, please identify all potential bidders 
known to Tampa Electric (or its consultants in this RFP process) that provide 
"integrated waterborne transportation services." 

Integrated waterborne transportation services as used in Tampa Electric's RFP 
include coordinated river transportation, terminal and ocean transportation services. 
Combining transportation services reduces direct and indirect costs to the buyer by 
providing seamless services between various transportation providers. Tampa 
Electric's RFP clearly states, "Tampa Electric prefers proposals for integrated 

' 

waterbome transportation services. however proposals for segmented services will 
be considered." In addition, there is nothing in Tampa Electric's RFP that precludes 
any transportation provider from partnering with other transportation provider@) to 
provide an integrated package. Therefore, any company could combine its efforts 
with those of one or more companies to create an integrated waterborne 
transportation services proposal that would be evaluated by Tampa Electric. 

The list below represents the entities that Tampa Electric is aware of that provide 
waterborne transportation and terminal services. With the exception of Us current 
provider, Tampa Electric is not aware if any of the potential bidders have provided a 
fully integrated waterborne transportation services package as defined above, from 
the Midwest to Tampa, Florida. 

A. 

Mr. Tom Waters Mr. Siclair Dameron 
American Commercial Barge Line Bumside Terminal 

4258 Hwy. 44 
D a m  ,LA 70725 

P.O. Box 610 
Jeffersonville, IN 47131 

81 m88-0256 (fax) 225/474-3719 (fax) 

v 
812/28&0100 (wk.) 2251474-3792 (Wk.) 

Mr. Ned Smith 
American Steamship 
Centerpoint Corporate Park 
500 Essjay Rd. 
Williamsville, NY 14221 
71 6/635-0222 (wk.) 
71 6/635-1396 (fax) 

Mr. Lany Barbish 
Canal Barge Company 
835 Union St. 
New Orleans, LA 701 12 
5041584-1535 (Wk.) 
504/584-1505 (fax) 

Y 
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Mr. Jim Baldwin 
Central Gulf Lines, Inc. 
650 Poydras St., Suite 1700 
New Orleans, LA 70130 
504/58&0500 (wk.) 
50415257792 (fax) 

Mr. Ed Laurendine 
Cooperm. Smiih 
P.O. Box 242 
Damw, LA 70725 
225/4734288 (wk.) 
225/4736161(fax) 

Mr. Stephen Little 
Crounse Corporation 
2626 Broadway 
Paducah, KY 42001 
270/444-9611 (wk.) 
270/444-9615 (fax) 

Mr. Tom Johnson 
Dixie C a h ,  Inc. 
333 WPA Rd. 
Belle Cham, LA 70037 

713/4351055 (fax) 

Mr. Robert Dammers 
EAST Shipbrokers 
2807 Busch Blvd. 
Tampa, FL 33612 
813/9313033 (Wk.) 
81 319325963 (fax) 

Mr. Richard Walling 
Express Marine 
29th St. at the Delaware 
Camden NJ, 8105 
8561541 -4600 (wk.) 

I 856/541-0338 (fax) 

504/392-7800 (wk.) c 
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Mr. James DeSimone 
Great Lakes 
1800 Terminal Tower 
Cleveland, OH 441 13 
216/621-4854 (wk.) 
216/621-7616 (fax) 

Mr. John Crane 
IC RailMarine Terminal 
7790 Louisiana Hwy. 44 
Convent .LA 70723 

225/562-9948 (fax) 

Mr. Tom Vorholt 
lngram Barge Company 
P.O. Box 23049 
Nashville, TN 37202 

61 51298-8242 (fax) 

Mr. Gene Taft 
lntemational Marine Terminals 
18559 Hwy. 23 
Port Sulphur, LA 70083 

504/656-2071 (fax) 

Mr. Joe Payne - 

Kirby 
P.O. Box 1745 
Houston, TX 77251 
71 31435-1 000 (wk.) 
7131435-1010 (fax) 

Mr. James Andrasick 
Matson Navigaiton Co. 
333 Market St. 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
41 5/9574000 (wk.) 
41 5l957-4234 (fax) 

225/562-5208 (Wk.) 

615/298-8200 (Wk.) 

504/656-7341 (Wk.) 

Y 
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Mr. Keith Darling 
MEMCO 
16090 Swingley Ridge Rd. 
Suite 600 
Chesterfield, MO 63017 
3041675-6300 (wk.) 
304/6754734 (fax) 

Mr. Jack Lordo 
MIG Transport Services, Inc. 
7000 Midland Blvd. 
Amelia, OH 45102 

51 319474659 (fax) 

Mr. George Manders 
Mobile Bay Towing 
P.O. Box 1644 
Mobile, AL 36633 

25114338772 (fax) 

Mr. Ted Trequaltia 
Moran Towing 
Two Greenwich Plaza 
Greenwich, CT 6830 

203/625-7857 (fax) 

Mr. Lawrence Squyers 
North Star Steel Texas 
100 Old Hwy. 90 W. 
Vidor. TX 77662 

409i769-1091 (fax) 

51 31943-7300 (Wk.) 

2511432-261 1 (wk.) 

203/625-7800 (Wk.) x 

4091769-1 066 (Wk.) 
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Mr. Richard Kienitz 
Parker Towing 
P.O. Box 20908 
Tuscaloosa, AL 35402 
20513491677 (wk.) 
205I758-0061 (fax) 

Mr. Craig Roberts 
Tampa Port Authority 
1101 1 Channelside Dr. 
Tampa, FL 33602 
81 3/905-7678 (wk.) 
81 3/204-2606 (fax) 

Mr. Jeff Rankin 
TECO Transport 
702 N. Franklin St. 
Tampa, FL 33602 
81 3/2094244 (wk.) 
81 3/273-0248 (fax) 

16 
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21. Please describe the conditions under which a bidder that does not provide integrated 
waterborne transportation seMces may overcome Tampa Electric’s stated 
preference for integrated waterbome transportation services. 

As described in the response to lntenogatoly No. 20 and as stated in the RFP, 
”Tampa Electric prefers proposals for integrated waterbome transportation services, 
however proposals for segmented services will be considered.” Therefore, the 
company will evaluate integrated packages, the individual components and segment 
bids to determine the overall best rate that meets all of Tampa Electric’s 
requirements. The conditions under which a bidder can overcome the company’s 
preference for an integrated supplier is to provide, with all other things being equal, a 
more attractive competitive proposal. 

A. 

” 
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Segment lnfumatiun ''I 
Torid 

I)epreciatirm 21C1.3 32.7 
Krrtructuring COStS 9.9 4. I 
I,,tere?t chzrger 1;: R5.0 15.6 
IKrnrfiti provision fni t u r s  4R. I 15.2 
Net !1ms1 ihcome from 
conlinuiug operations I' $ 98.9,' X 24.5 $1147.6):": $ 15.3 $ 77.1 I; (5.41". $ (77.5) $ 114.7) 

Goodwill, net 71.2 71.2 - . . - - ~ 

111vestnieiii in 
unconaolidaad affiliates I5R.9 - - 184.6 . 343.5 

Ot lw  ~~ur~-curreiit investments 16.5 16.5 
'Total assets 4.17R.6 651.5 R.7 315.8 340.R 958.7 

~ ~ 

. - - - - ~ 

2002 ~ e v ~ n u e s  - outsiderr $1,,54~>1 SRIR. I  $ 1 1 1 . 1  ~ 1 4 3 . 9  ~ 3 1 6 . 4  s ~ 6 . s  $ - sz.rfi4.~ 
Sales to affiliates 24.3 . - I 111.7 0.7 71.2 (216.:)~ . 

I)epreciation IR5J.R 30.5 12.0 22.3 31.4 17.2 3113.2 
Restructuring et 16.6 I .2 - 17.8 

(Benefit) provision ioor tmes 85.7 14.7 5.8"' in.8 (zz.91 19.71 infi.11 151.71 

' rmi E V W ~ S  91.5K3.2 S 3 l R . I  $ 1 l l . i  $254.6 5317.1 S297.7 $(216.9) 52,lifiJ.II 

- - - ~ 

Interest charges '11.5 14.8 24.3 6.3 8.2 37.1 x.4 171.6 

Net income (loss! from 

Investment in 
unconsolidated affiliates (38.21 - 187.4 - 149.2 

Other nm-cuncnt investments 795.8 49.2 n.3 R45.3 
Total assets 4.119.4 GB.9 2,UXl.l 355.1 21l3.51.167.3 ~ K . I  9,078.4 
Capitid expentlitures 652.2 9.4 223. I 25.2 a . 2  79.9 3.2 I,W5.2 

Sales lo iaffiliates 52.6 . - 123.2 5.1 m.4 (241.31 ~ 

Total reveii~iils ~ 1 . 4 1 2 . 7  ~ 3 ~ 2 . 9  x 81.8 ~ 2 7 4 . 9  ~ 3 0 3 . 5  ~29t l .8 $WI.X s~.483.3 
Depreciation 17.4 27.9 9.8 24.1 w.3 21.1 - 284.6 
nestructuring c u m  . . . - - . - . 

~ - - 
. - - . 

2W1 Revenloes - outsiders 51.3uO.i S352.9 $ 81.8 5151.7 $298.4 5218.4 0 ~ S2.483.3 

M1.8 14.3 17.3 8.Y 7.6 39,l 3n.5 178.5 
(Benefit) pruvision lor ~ ~ X C S  83.5 142 4 . f i : d l  14.2 (19.n) 16.1) 1'3.71 (7.31 
N d  ihcume ilossl lrom 
continuing operations", s I%.O s 23.1 s n.5 s 27.6 $ w~ s z~ s ~ ~ I J . u )  s 255.5 

- . - - . Goodwill. net 70.0 Y5.8 i65.8 



14. Discontinued Operations and Assets 
Held for Sale 
Unioii and Gila River Roject Companies (TPGC) 

In 0ctubt:r 2W3. the company. thc bank h n c i n g  group and 
the Union and Gila River projPc.1 companies entertxl into a suspen- 
sion agrccmcnt isuu Note ZU) in oiticr to conlinoe disaissions 
regarding the oprratiiig hudgetr and performanceof the two 
(mwer plants. In late Ikcrmhn 20113. a stand-still agreement *,as 
entered iiito hv tlir same p l i e s  10 w " i u e  to facilitate the dir- 
cussinns isce Note Mi. See Note 23 for B discussion of subsequent 
r ~ e i i t s  whlcI~ impact hritli tlie suspension and the stand-still 

of Ikc .  3 I, 2W3. inanaget~i i t  was unnmitted to a 
0 E n e r ~ ' s  wnerslilp of tlir equiy or net assets of 

tl,e projrn cooqmiies. ihr compan? aspects 10 complete the 
transfer di'w: in 21~14. TIE IJnion and  (;ita niverprojrct coinn 
paiiies compiised pan or thr'l'W1; operating segment until d-ig- 
nated as assets lheld inr sale iii I)ecrmher 20113. 

SrrNotc 21 r*gardingsuhrequn,t men16 rciatlngto the Union 
and Gila niverprojecl companies. 

As an i l w t  held fcir sale. the assets sild lialiilities thvt air 
to ha trat,sferllrri part of tile 88 I ) ~ c .  3 I .  201~3, 

l iwr  hem rcclaasilicd. ~~spe~t ive lv .  i n  the helmce sheet. 
Fu~~hemio ie.  the comi'an? has detenrined thar'IP1;C meets tlir 
criteria of 8 discontinued operation Kerultr from operations for 
the Ilnion and Gila K i w i  project companies lhwe heen reclassified 
IO '"i)iscontmurrl operations" for all period? presented. For the 
yean ended I k c .  3 i. 2002 and 21x1 I, 'TPK was a development 
singe coinpilnv. 'l'lir lollo%<nlng ta1,le provides selected components 
of discontinued operations for M X : .  

Components oi income Iron, dixontiniied operations - 
Union and Gila River Proiecl Companies 
irnIl1i"ilrl 

ASSCI impairment". (1,105.7) - - 
(Loss) income from opcratiuna (1,239131 - . 
(Loss] uii joint ~ w i i i r c  

Icimiii:ilioii (153.91 - - 
(Loss1 iiicume bdorl: provisiun 

lor imcomc vaxci (1.441.4) 27.4 13.1 
(Bunrhti  provision l i r  

iiicomv l ues  (522.7) 10.6 5.U 
Net ilossi incume from 

discunfinued upcriitions $ (918.7) P 16.8 $ 8.1 

ill Incltideirhargegea wmgniml m accunlimce nlrh 1.45 133. 

ilriri inzpuinwn! ciwrge 
Thr. piwlax asset impaiimmt charg~ui61,185.7 million (5762.0 

million i i l le i  la) i s  comprised of an impannent in long-li\'ed 
asseis and n Irlated charge to rrnect the impacts of hedge 
accounting. 'fhr pir-t;ut msrt iinpvirment charge of$1.0%.3 milb 
lion wns recognized in  accordance with PAS 144. 'The recognition 
of the mser irnpirrrrertt eRectiwlpmxelerated the recognition of 
prei-iouslv capitalized iiiterest. ,4s a result. in  nuordancewlth 
cadi i h v  hedge accounting under FAAS 133. a reversal hom OC1 of 
522.6 iniliion of pre~iax l o w s  on the inteiesl rate swaps wai 
required to  give effect i n  the iiicomr statement 10 the previously 
hedgeti interest r41ich was capitalized during construction. 

In ilddirion, the cchange i n  futuir expectations regarding the 
pwhnhlity to1 the company retainiiig the long-tmn. 11011-iee0ursc 
deht lrsulteti ih the reversal ofan additional Sfi3.8million pre-tax 
lossrs wli icl i  weir p,irviousl\- deferred i n  OCI and related to the 
fulurr recoglition o f  capitalized ioterest arnortizatiori and future 
intrressl crpense oil the non-recnurse debt. vrrriciparrd IO be rec- 
ognized i t )  periods suhsrqumt to  2004. See Note 10 for a full 
drsoipiion ~ifthr m e t  impairment component arid Note 2 for 
additionai details con the hedge accnunting (i1C1 reversall compo 
" W l t i .  

1.os.s 011 join! t w r r m  rrrrriimI6mi 
As riircurrrd 11) greater detail in  Note 12, the consolidation of 

lP(;( .  ~ n n  Apr. I .  2003 I-erultrd in tlir recognition a fa  pre~tax 
cliargc of $153.9 mlllinri 694.7 inillinn after tax) which was record 



Pmperty, plant and equipment 
lltiliw plmt i n  ILIT~?CC 

Elcctric 5,245.6 5.054.4 
Car 77U.1 746.7 

Conrtmctian workin propcss l.lY3.3 1.5568 
Other propcrty 823.2 857.4 
Property. plani and equipment. 

at origJ,ld cost n,wo.z 8,215.3 
Accumuliitcd deprccialion (2,361.2) (2,310.71 

Total propcrty. plmt and 
cquipinenl incr) 5,679.0 5,904.6 

Other assets 
Deferred income tucs 1.051.5 340.2 
Other iwcstmcnis 16.5 1145.3 
Regulatory a s s m  1w.3 IF3.2 
Investment in unrunrolidatcd ;kllilintes 343.5 14YZ 
Goodwill 71.2 193.7 
Dcicrrcd cl,iuees and other iiss~ts 165.1 159.0 n ~~~ ~ 

Assets hcld for side 2.077.4 
Total utlier assets 3,913.5 I.85U.F 

Tola las~~ts  $10,462.3 59,078.4 

Current liabilities 
Long-tcnn ilcbt due within one ymr 

RCC",K% x 6 . 1 5 1 ( X i i  
Nun-rrcoorrc 2s.s 2u.n 

. Notes payable 37.5 3w.5 
rkcuonts paysble u 3 . n  377.4 
Costomcr deposits 101.4 tN.6 
I:i*mnt derivative li;ibilities 12.0 3 9  
llltClCSt acclued 56.6 4Y.8 
rues RCCIII<:tl 149.9 Y5.9 
Liabilities associatd with assets 

hrld for sale 1,544.4 ~ 

Total current liabilities 2.247.2 Ll(H.2 
Other liabilities 

49n.o i y x i  Defemed ihcome tzxcs 
Investment tax credits 22.8 27.5 
Regulatory liabilities 560.2 YJ8.7 
Defcncd " d i t s  and other liabilities 3M.1 321.7 
Liabilitits associated with iisscts 

held for sale 697.8 ~ 

Long-term dvbi. less a m o l u ~  due 
hithin one year 

necuurse 3,660.3 3,112.i 
Non~wcourse 83.2 211 6 
Preferred secunticr 649.1 ~ 

Lfinoiiiy interest 1.9 I .2 
Total other liabilities 6,537.4 d.ioD.4 

Commilments and urntingenencies . 
P & r d  securities 

Capital 

- F4Y.I 

Common r q u i N  (400 nillion slmrec 
authorized; par value $1: 187.8 million 
shares arid 175.8 inillion shairs 
outstanding at I k c .  31,2M3 and 
znm. respectiwlelyi IR7.H 175.8 

Additional paid i n  capital 1.2Z(J.H I.Ehlw..5 
Retained earnings 339.5 1.41,?.7 
,4ccurnulatrd orher ~~ ~~~~ 

comprehensive income i55.81 iJ1.2) 

llnearned compensation i14.w 131.11 
Common equiN 1.692.3 2.64Z.H 

'Total capital 1.677.7 2,611.7 



. 2003 75.0 

21134 m.0 t16.n 
20311 75.0 75.11 
21113 m.7 611.7 
21123 86.4 UG.4 
'1125 51.6 51.ti 
Z l l l 8  54.2 54.2 
211ZU 20.0 20.0 
2ol:! 210.0 21ll.O 
21)12 330.0 3JC1.0 

5.375% (elkctirw rate of5.59%!"! 21Kl7 125.0 125.11 

1,423.9 1248.9 
TeoolesCasSvsIem Soniur Sotw: 'I 111:35% 'Do7 3.4 4.2 

625% lefcctive mtz ~flj.:Il%ji~~ Z U l t i  250.0 ~ 

10.33% 
11I.:l% 
9.93"'. 

21KIU 4.n 5.6 
2ow 6.4 7.2 
2 l l lU  6.6 7.4 

H% 21112 21.3 25.4 

li.37596 (effective rate oi7.35901 ('I 2012 70.0 711.0 
Notes: ii.n75m, (effectivt. rate &.9u%! 'I) 21112 40.0 40.11 

5.375%) (effective rate of5.59%! 21107 25.0 25.0 

'I'KCO Wholesale Nnn-recourse secured facilih; no~es. Series A 7.8% 201~: II 1.11 
179.5 184.H 
. 
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[Choose Font Size] - 
TECO ENERGY I N C  filed this 10-K on 03/15/2004 

'lahie of Contents 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 
El Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or  1S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 

OR 

0 Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or  1S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

For the transition period from to - 

Exnet name of each Registrant as specified in its 
Commission charter, state of incorporation, address of Identification 

File No. principal executive offices. telephone number Number 

I.R.S. Employer 

- 
1-8180 TECO ENERGY, INC. 59-2052286 

(a Florida rorporatian) 
T E C O  Plaza 

702 N. Franklin Street 
Tampa, Florida 33602 

(813) 22841 1 I 

59-0475140 1-5007 TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
(a Florida corporation) 

T E C O  Plam 
702 N. Franklin Street 
Tamps, Fioridn 33602 

(813) 228-4111 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Name of each exchange on 
which registered Title of each c l i w  

TECO Energy, Inc. 
Common Stock, $1 .OO par value 
Common Stock Purchase Rights 

Equity Security Units 

New York Stock Exchange 
New York Stock Exchange 
New York Stock Exchange 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12fg) of the Act: NONE 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants ( I )  have filed all reports required to he filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) have been subject to such tiling requirements for the past 90 days. 

YES iX NO 0 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained 
herein, and will not he contained, to the best of registrants' knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements 
incorporated by reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendments to this Form 10-K. 0 

Indicate by check mark whether TECO Enerpy, Inc. is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). 
YES El NO 0 

http://ccbn.tenkwizard.com/print.php?repo=tenk&ipage=2669661&doc=l&attach=&num=&mda=&size=3 4/7/2004 
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Regulatory assets 
Other 

Total defened debits 

Total assets 

Page 27 of 63 
188.3 163.2 

0. I 5.6 

345.1 325.8 

$ 4,839.7 $ 4,778.3 -- 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
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I'ahle d t'ontcnts 

TAMPA ELECTRSC COMPANY 
CONSOLSDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

ZOO3 2002 

Capital 
Common stock 
Retained earnings 

Total capital 
Long-term debt, less amount due within one year 

Total capitalization 

Current  liabilities 
Long-term debt doe within one year 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Interest accrued 
Taxes accrued 

Total current liabilities 

Deferred credits 
Deferred income taxes 
Investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabilities 
Other 

Total deferred credits 

Total liabilities and capital 

$1,376.8 $1,535.1 
274.9 302.9 

1,651.7 1,838.0 
1,590.9 1,345.6 

3,242.6 3,183.6 

6.1 81.0 
- 10.5 

167.9 178.8 
101.4 94.6 
26.7 18.3 
82.9 46.9 

385.0 430.1 

474.5 483.1 
22.6 27.1 

560.2 538.7 
154.8 115.7 

1,212.1 1,164.6 

$4,839.7 $4,778.3 -- 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

28 

Table nSContents 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
CONSOLSDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(millions) 
For thcyrorr mded Der 31. 2003 ZOO2 2001 

htt~://ccbn.tenkwizard.com/~rint.oho?reoo=tenk&iuaee=266966 1 &doc=l &attach=&num=&mda=&size=3 4/7/2004 
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of 232 employees at Tampa Electric Company, including officers and other personnel from operations and support 
services. 

In 2002, TECO Energy initiated a reshucturing program that impacted approximately 182 employees at Tampa 
Electric. This program included retirements, the elimination of positions and other cost control measures. The total 
costs associated with this program included severance, salary continuation and other termination and retirement 
benefits. 

Tampa Electric recognized a pre-tax expense of $14.0 million and $16.6 million for accrued benefits and other 
termination and retirement benefits for the years ended Dec. 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Tampa Electric Company 
completed these restructuring activities as of Dec. 31,2003. As of Dec. 31,2003 and 2002, respectively, no 
adjustments were made to the benefits initially accrued for and $8.4 million and $16.6 million, respectively, of the 
accrued benefits were paid or otherwise settled. 

9. Income T a x  Expense 
Tampa Electric Company is included in the filing of a consolidated federal income tax retum with TECO Energy and 
its affiliates. Tampa Electric Company’s income tax expense is based upon a separate retum computation. Income tax 
expense consists of the following components: 

Income T a x  Expense 

(millions) 

2003 
Currently payable 
Deferred 
Amortization of investment tax credits 

Total income tax expense 

Included in other income, net 

Included in operating expenses 

2002 
Currently payable 
Deferred 
Amortization of investment tax credits 

Total income tax expense 

Included in other income, net 

Included in operating expenses 

2001 
Currently payable 
Deferred 
Amortization of investment tax credits 

Total income tax expense 
Included in other income, net 

Included in operating expenses 

40 

Federal State Total --- 
$ 74.9 $17.6 $ 92.5 

(16.0) (7.9) (23.9) 
(4.6) - (4.6) 

$ 54.3 $ 9.7 64.0 

(30.0) 

$ 94.0 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- 
$ 66.7 $14.9 $ 81.6 

23.2 0.4 23.6 
(4.4) - (4.4) --- 

$ 85.5 $15.3 100.8 

O S  

$100.3 

--- 
--- --- 
$ 88.6 $15.7 $104.3 

(1.3) (0.7) (2.0) 
(4.4) - (4.4) --- 

$ 82.8 $15.0 97.9 
0.2 

$ 97.7 
--- --- 

Table of Contents 

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of certain liabilities or assets for tax and financial 
reporting purposes. The principal components of the company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized in the 
balance sheet are as follows: 

htto:l/ccbn.tenkwizard.com/orint.oho?reoo=tenk&i~a~e=266966l&doc=l&attach=&num=&mda=&size=3 4/7/2004 



Tampa Electric Company 
Fuel Transportation Hearing 
Docket No. 031033-El 

TECO Energy Consolidated (excluding non-recourse debt) (1) 

Q&l Amount Ratio 

Common Equity 1,677.7 27.82% 
Preferred Stock 649.1 10.76% 

Short-term Debt 43.6 0.72% 

6,030.7 100.00% 

Long-term Debt 3,660.3 60.69% 

Tampa Electric Company (including PGS) (2) 

CaDital Amount &&J 

Common Equity 1,651.7 50.84% 
Preferred Stock 0.0 0.00% 
Long-term Debt 1,590.9 48.97% 
Short-term Debt 6.1 0.19% 

3,248.7 100.00% 

TECO Energy Cons. (less Tampa Elec. Co.) (1)-(2) 

CaDital Amount Ratio 

Common Equity 
Preferred Stock 
Long-term Debt 
Short-term Debt 

26.0 0.93% 
649.1 23.33% 

2,069.4 74.39% 
37.5 1.35% 

2,782.0 100.00% 

Sources: (1) 2003 TECO Energy Annual Report to Shareholders, p. 36 
(2) 2003 Tampa Electric Company SEC 10K Report, p. 28 



Deposition Exhibit No. ~ 

Deposition of Joann T. Wehle, witness on behalf of Tampa Electric Company, by Staff 
Docket No. 031033-E1 
May -, 2004 

Tampa Electric signed an agreement with TECO Transport for the provision of 
transportation and terminal services from January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008 with 
conditions similar to those conditions set forth in Tampa Electric’s June 27, 2003, Request for 
Proposals for Solid Fuel Transportation and Terminal Services (2003 RFP). 

As an alternative to the status quo, consider the following scenario as a basis to determine 
the appropriate amount of costs that Tampa Electric should recover for coal transportation: 

For the period 2004 through 2008, Tampa Electric accepts delivery of coal by 
water from TECO Transport at the annual minimum quantities set forth in the 
2003 RFP. Tampa Electric signs an agreement with CSX Transportation to 
accept delivery of coal by rail for the balance of Tampa Electric’s coal 
requirements. Tampa Electric and CSX Transportation would cooperatively 
identify those coal sources which are compatible with Tampa Electric’s 
operational and environmental constraints and create maximum fuel cost savings 
compared with water transportation. CSX Transportation would construct the 
necessary infrastructure at Big Bend Station andor Polk Station for Tampa 
Electric to accept delivery of coal by rail as set forth in the testimonies of CSX 
Transportation’s witnesses. f i  
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Deposition Exhibit No. __ 
Deposition of Joann T. Wehle, witness on behalf of Tampa Electric Company, by Staff 
Docket No. 031033-E1 
May -, 2004 

Tampa Electric signed an agreement with TECO Transport for the provision of 
transportation and terminal services f?om January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008 with 
conditions similar to those conditions set forth in Tampa Electric’s June 27, 2003, Request for 
Proposals for Solid Fuel Transportation and Terminal Services (2003 RFP). 

As an altemative to the status quo, consider the following scenario as a basis to determine 
the appropriate amount of costs that Tampa Electric should recover for coal transportation: 

For the period 2004 through 2008, Tampa Electric accepts delivery of coal by 
water from TECO Transport at the annual minimum quantities set forth in the 
2003 RFP. Tampa Electric signs an agreement with an unaffiliated ocean barge to 
deliver offshore coal directly in Tampa for the balance of Tampa Electric’s coal 
requirements. Tampa Electric and this unaffiliated party would cooperatively 
identify those coal sources which are compatible with Tampa Electric’s 
operational and environmental constraints and create maximum fuel cost savings 
compared with the status quo. $ rt 
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Deposition Exhibit No. 
Deposition of Joann T. Wehle, witness on behalf of Tampa Electric Company, by Staff 
Docket No. 03 1033-E1 
May -, 2004 

Tampa Electric signed an agreement with TECO Transport for the provision of 
transportation and terminal services from January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2008 with 
conditions similar to those conditions set forth in Tampa Electric’s June 27, 2003, Request for 
Proposals for Solid Fuel Transportation and Terminal Services (2003 RFP). Tampa Electric has 
requested that the Commission approve for cost recovery the rates set forth in its contract with 
TECO Transport. 

As an alternative, consider the following scenario as a basis to determine the appropriate 
amount of costs that Tampa Electric should recover for coal transportation: 

At least two witnesses, Mr. Dibner and Dr. Hochstein, have testified that the 
inland river barge and terminal segments are competitive markets (Le., two or 
more providers in a given segment). However, Mr. Dibner and Dr. Hochstein 
have also testified that only TECO Transport has the barges with the size, 
available capacity, and cost shucture to transport Tampa Electric’s full 
requirements between and among U.S. ports. Because the markets for inland 
river barge and terminal services are arguably competitive, the Commission 
should authorize Tampa Electric to recover approved market rates as set forth by 
Order No. 20298, issued November 10, 1988. However, the market for the ocean 
barge service is not competitive; therefore, the Commission should set cost 
recovery of the ocean barge segment on either a cost allocation method or cost-of- 
service method as set forth by Order No. 20298. 


